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Verisk Analytics (Nasdaq:VRSK) is a leading data analytics pro-
vider serving customers in insurance, energy and specialized 
markets, and financial services. Headquartered in Jersey City, 
New Jersey, the company operates in 30 countries and is a 
member of Standard & Poor’s S&P 500® Index. Verisk is also
part of the Nasdaq-100 Index—which includes the 100 largest
nonfinancial securities listed on the Nasdaq stock market—
with its common stock trading on Nasdaq under the symbol 
VRSK. In 2017, Forbes named Verisk to its World’s Most 
Innovative Companies list and its America’s Best Mid-Size 
Employers list—one of only seven companies to appear  
on both lists. Verisk also earned the Great Place to Work®kk
Certification for our outstanding workplace culture.

Using advanced technologies to collect and analyze billions of 
records, Verisk draws on unique data assets and deep domain 
expertise to provide first-to-market innovations integrated into
customer workflows. The company offers predictive analytics 
and decision support solutions to customers in rating, under-
writing, claims, catastrophe and weather risk, global risk ana-
lytics, natural resources intelligence, economic forecasting, 
and many other fields. To meet the needs of diverse clients,
Verisk employs an experienced staff of business and technical 
specialists, analysts, and certified professionals.

Around the world, Verisk helps customers protect people,
property, and financial assets. For more information, please
visit www.verisk.com.
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The company defines “adjusted EBITDA” as net income from continuing operations before interest expense, provision for income taxes,
and depreciation and amortization expense. In 2016, adjusted EBITDA excludes nonrecurring severance charges, gain on sale of equity
investments, and a nonrecurring ESOP payment, and in 2015, nonrecurring items related to the Wood Mackenzie acquisition. 

The company defines “adjusted net income” as income from continuing operations before amortization of intangibles. In 2016, adjusted
net income excludes a nonrecurring ESOP payment, net of tax, and in 2015, nonrecurring items related to the Wood Mackenzie acquisition, 
net of tax. The company calculates “diluted adjusted earnings per share” as adjusted net income divided by diluted shares.

Adjusted net income, adjusted EBITDA, and adjusted EBITDA margin are non-GAAP financial measures. See inside back cover for the
reconciliations to net income.

The company defines “capital expenditures” as purchases of fixed assets.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31,

2017 2016 2015

(in millions, except for per share data)

Statement of operations

Revenues:

Decision Analytics revenues $ 1,374.9 $ 1,270.9 $ 1,072.5

Risk Assessment revenues 770.3 724.3 688.2 

Revenues $  2,145.2 $ 1,995.2 $ 1,760.7 

Total expenses $  1,344.0  $  1,227.6 $  1,057.3 

Operating income $  801.2 $ 767.6 $ 703.4

Income from continuing operations, net of tax $ 555.1 $ 451.5 $ 487.5

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax $ — $ 139.7 $ 20.1

Net income $ 555.1 $ 591.2 $ 507.6

Adjusted net income from continuing operations $ 630.4 $ 531.5 $ 482.8

Adjusted earnings per share from continuing operations:

Basic $ 3.82 $ 3.16 $ 2.92

Diluted $ 3.74 $ 3.11 $ 2.87 

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations:

Decision Analytics $ 589.1 $ 580.0 $ 507.4

Risk Assessment 458.7 424.7  406.5

Total adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations $  1,047.8 $ 1,004.7 913.9 

Adjusted EBITDA margin from continuing operations 48.8 50.4 51.9

Balance sheet data

Cash and cash equivalents $ 142.3 $ 135.1 $ 138.3

Total assets $  6,020.3 $ 4,631.2 $ 5,593.7 

Total debt $  3,008.8 $ 2,387.0 $ 3,145.7 

Stockholders’ equity $  1,925.4 $ 1,332.4 $ 1,372.0 

Other data

Consolidated cash from operations $  743.5 $  577.5  $  663.8 

Consolidated capital expenditures $ 183.5 $ 156.5 $ 166.1 

% % %
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS,  
CUSTOMERS, AND EMPLOYEES

At Verisk Analytics, our vision to be the world’s most effective 
and responsible data analytics company in pursuit of our  
customers’ most strategic opportunities informs everything 
we do.

In 2017, we again demonstrated our commitment to innova-
tion, customer value, financial performance, and shareholder 
returns. For the third consecutive year, Forbes ranked Verisk 
one of the most innovative companies in the world. The 
magazine also cited us as one of America’s best employers, 
an achievement complemented by our certification from 
Great Place to Work® for the second consecutive year. 

We achieved the highest Net Promoter Score in our history— 
a measure of our customers’ loyalty—reflecting that we serve 
our customers with quality, service, and innovation. Continuing 
to enhance the customer experience will help us generate 
strong revenue growth and profitability now and in the future. 

We welcomed chief financial officer Lee Shavel to the cor- 
porate management team. Lee’s broad financial and opera-
tional experience and success as a public company CFO 
and banker are a strong addition to our finance team.This 
year, we approached our customers, our markets, and our 
investment in innovations with Speed and Focus. As you 
read this year’s Annual Report, you’ll learn about the many 
examples of how we achieved Speed and Focus in 2017. 
 

2017 Review
Overall, 2017 was a year of good performance, as we again 
achieved peer-leading levels of profitability and organic 
revenue growth. We maintained our disciplined capital 
management strategy and invested in growing our business 
organically and through acquisitions while also returning 
capital to shareholders. 

Our 2017 revenues increased 7.5 percent over 2016, to  
$2.1 billion. In our Decision Analytics business segment, 
revenues grew 8.2 percent, to $1.4 billion; in our Risk 
Assessment segment, revenues grew 6.4 percent, to  
$770.3 million. From 2013 to 2017, revenues increased  
at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 12.8 percent. 
Decision Analytics revenues increased at a CAGR of 
18.1 percent, and Risk Assessment revenues increased  
at a CAGR of 5.7 percent.
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The company recorded $555.1 million of net income, up 
22.9 percent from 2016, and $630.4 million of adjusted net 
income, up 18.6 percent from 2016. Net income margin was 
25.9 percent. The company achieved $1.0 billion of adjusted
EBITDA, up 4.3 percent from 2016. Adjusted EBITDA margin
was 48.8 percent. Diluted GAAP earnings per share increased
24.6 percent, to $3.29. Diluted adjusted earnings per share 
increased 20.3 percent, to $3.74. 

Verisk continued to diversify our revenue streams in 2017. 
Approximately 48.9 percent of revenues came from primary
insurers in the property/casualty insurance industry; and 
51.1 percent came from other markets, including energy, 
financial services, and other specialized markets. The 
2016–2017 period marks the first time that revenues from our
newer markets have exceeded those of our traditional market.

We continue to pursue a program of strategic open-market
share repurchases. In 2017, we repurchased approximately 
3.4 million shares for a total cost of $270 million at a weighted 
average price of $80.39, bringing the total to $1.7 billion 
deployed over the past six years. 

In 2017, we provided new and enhanced insurance programs
to address risk exposures and continued to grow unique data 
sets and integrate them into customer workflows. We released
industry-leading catastrophe models and claims management 
tools and made significant strides in growing our remote 
sensing capabilities and geospatial data. In the energy sector,
we grew our chemicals, power, and renewables areas. In finan-
cial services, we expanded solutions for consumer spending 
analytics and merchant and consumer fraud.

We advanced our commitment to sustainability on several 
fronts. We participated in the Carbon Disclosure Project 
for the first time, reporting a decrease in Scope 1 and 2
emissions from the prior year. We also purchased renewable
energy certificates and carbon offsets for 2017 and 2018 in 
amounts equivalent to Verisk’s projected emissions world-
wide. Verisk’s risk analytics are now helping the International
Rescue Committee prepare for the world’s most serious 
humanitarian crises. We strengthened our governance
framework, initiating an extensive third-party credentialing
process and implementing a supplier code of conduct.

Growing the Verisk Family
Acquisitions are a committed component of our growth 
strategy. We completed a series of acquisitions, including
several larger businesses and some smaller companies, to 
expand internationally, augment our offerings in data and
analytics, and enhance our vertical markets.

Larger acquisitions included Sequel, G2 Web Services, LCI, 
and PowerAdvocate, expanding and strengthening our solu-
tions for global commercial and specialty insurance, merchant

risk, banks and creditors, and the energy supply chain. We 
also acquired several smaller companies, including Arium, 
Fintellix, Healix Risk Rating, and MAKE, with solutions in
areas such as liability risk modeling, regulatory reporting, 
medical risk assessment, and wind power. You’ll learn more 
about these and other acquisitions throughout this report.

Long-Term Value Creation  
Our strategy for long-term value creation guides all our 
actions. In a global environment of growing demand, we 
produce solutions that combine data, analytic methods for 
finding meaning in the data, and software for delivering data
and analysis to customers’ workflows. Customers use our 
solutions to make better decisions about risk, investments, 
and operations with greater precision, efficiency, and disci-
pline. And we help customers across the globe protect and 
increase the value of people, property, and financial assets. 
We create shareholder value by pursuing opportunities 
to grow our operating cash flow and generating attractive
returns on capital through thoughtful investment and execu-
tion against our operating priorities.

Business Model
Much of what we do frequently demonstrates two qualities:
• Our solutions often become the standard for all participants 

in a vertical market to perform their data and analytic work.
• Most of our solutions are “ready to use” and don’t require

significant servicing or installation support.

As a result, our business is often characterized by high incre-
mental and total margins and relatively low capital intensity. 
Moreover, we enjoy strong relationships with most, if not all,
of the participants in the vertical markets we serve. Given 
those qualities, the key to long-term value creation for Verisk 
is organic revenue growth leading to scaled margins and bet-
ter returns on invested capital. We’re in an excellent position
to continue to deliver organic growth consistent with our his-
torical performance of approximately 7 percent per annum 
over the last ten years. In turn, organic growth depends on:
• deepening the reach and quality of our analytics so that our 

existing solutions yield more insight and value for customers
• creating a steady stream of new solutions that meet

customers’ emerging needs
• reaching new customers through geographic expansion

The company’s ability to deepen our analytics and create new 
solutions in ways that differentiate us from our competition is
contingent on Verisk being distinctive along four dimensions:
• having unique data assets
• exhibiting deep expertise in our customers’ domains
• providing a steady stream of first-to-market innovations
• being deeply integrated into customer workflows

Much of our thinking and work goes into protecting and
extending those Four Distinctives. The Distinctives tend to
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reside in specific verticals—supporting Verisk’s organization 
in the core markets of property/casualty insurance, energy,
and financial services.

To amplify the Distinctives that come with being the leading
provider of data and analytics to specific vertical markets, 
we invest in our people and infrastructure to become 
increasingly accomplished in four core capabilities:

Large-scale data integration: Advanced capabilities to 
manage and integrate structured and unstructured data 
sets from all relevant sources

Multitier, multispectral data capture: Advanced technologies 
to capture and interpret imagery, telemetry data, sensory 
data, and other emergent data sets in real time and at scale

Visualization of data and analytics: Superior methods to 
use data, visualize it, and make it meaningful, with a focus
on geolocation

Predictive analytics: Machine learning methods leading 
to prediction in complex environments, such as natural 
catastrophes, insurance mitigation and loss, supply chains,
and consumer behavior 

In sum, our approach to long-term value creation centers
on enhancing the Four Distinctives leading to differentiation, 
investing in our core capabilities, and deeply committing to
specific vertical markets to provide scalable data and analytic 
solutions. We’ve added one more theme to this approach: 
the globalization of our business. We’ve traditionally con-
ducted business in the United States, yet our methods are 
applicable worldwide. We’re thoughtfully and steadily posi-
tioning people and operations in overseas markets to create
local data sets and leverage our preexisting analytic methods.

Current Trends and Their Relationship  
to Long-Term Value Creation
The regulatory environment remains relatively unchanged 
where our customers and solutions are concerned. The 
general trend toward lessened regulatory enforcement has
had only mild and marginal effects on our financial services 
and environmental health and safety businesses. The new 
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) in Europe has 
more explicitly described penalties for data breaches, but 
our countermeasures remain strong. In particular, we’re 
committed to the full tokenization of any personally identifi-
able information (PII) in our custody, which is a standard of 
care well beyond normal efforts to encrypt data.

Two technical trends are constructive to our productivity
and growth—cloud-based computing and machine-learned 
analytic methods. The cloud basis for managing technical 
infrastructure allows us to add new capacity and open new
geographies quickly and efficiently and also holds the 
promise of better unit cost economics than operating our 
own data centers. Cloud computing will steadily become 

a greater fraction of our computing infrastructure. Machine- 
learned methods, also referred to as artificial intelligence 
(AI), increase the precision of our analyses and the
productivity of our analysts. These methods will become 
increasingly expressed in our operations over the next
five years.

The corporate tax reform enacted in the United States at 
the end of 2017 is constructive for Verisk. The net effect 
of the several provisions of the reform is for Verisk’s cash
and GAAP results to increase by approximately $90 million 
after tax. Since Verisk is already investing internally at a
high rate—with CapEx as a percent of revenue above 
8 percent at this time—the tax reform will not materially 
influence our rate of internal investment in new solutions. 
However, we’re taking this opportunity to invest more in
our people by doubling the budgets for several of our 
learning and development programs and supporting
long-term wealth creation by increasing our 401(k) match 
and instituting employee stock purchase options outside 
the United States. We’re also exploring ways to increase 
our investment in environmental stewardship beyond the 
purchases of renewable energy certificates and carbon 
offsets that we make today.

Capital Allocation
Because of the scalability of our solutions, we’re highly 
cash-generative. Our strategy for value creation includes 
reinvestment in our business, both for building new solu-
tions ourselves as well as acquiring solution sets mean-
ingful to our customers that help accelerate us to market. 

We recognize the importance of allocating the capital we 
generate to achieve the highest return, and that approach
supports value creation through improved return on 
invested capital. We actively develop investment opportu-
nities internally and externally to identify the potential for
the best returns and operating cash flow growth, leverag-
ing our resources, expertise, and scale. We also evaluate 
options to return capital to shareholders as an important 
part of our capital allocation process and consistent with 
past practice.

As we enter 2018, we find the structure of the markets
we serve and their regulatory environments to be fairly 
stable. Inside our well-optimized business model, we’re 
operating with greater Speed and Focus to accelerate 
value creation for customers. In general, we feel our 
future is in our own hands and rests upon our creativity
and initiative.

Sincerely,

Scott G. Stephenson
Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer
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Verisk works and lives at the intersection of Speed 
and Focus—the crossroads where we undertake and 
execute initiatives in less time without sacrificing qual-
ity. As we embark on projects and develop innovative
solutions, we’re always thinking of ways to achieve 
and balance Speed and Focus. 

Attracting, growing, and retaining the best people
helps us reach Speed and Focus. Verisk’s 7,500 
employees, including experts in diverse fields such as
statistical modeling, data science, chemistry, physics, 
engineering, economics, and meteorology, possess 
the right mix of capabilities and deep domain exper-rr
tise that contributes greatly to our operations.

We apply Speed and Focus to the development and 
commercialization of innovative solutions, such as 
those involving machine learning and high-resolution 
imagery, and to our major technology and platform 
projects. By using a model of continuous develop-
ment, we can provide a steady stream of phased 
solutions to our customers in less time than we 
ever imagined.  

Speed and Focus ensures that we’re laser-focused 
on our customers and their satisfaction, delivering 
quality, service, and innovation. Our work continues
to revolve around the customer experience—helping 
them reduce costs, remain competitive, and improve
their business.   

We live in a dynamic world and so do our customers. 
Working at the intersection of Speed and Focus 
keeps us moving in the right direction, helping our 
customers go farther faster. And that benefits all 
our stakeholders. 

Insurance
Expanded our leading IoT platform for connected 
vehicles, giving insurers more than 28 billion miles of 
real-time driving behavior data for their underwriting
and claims solutions

Grew our vast database of aerial imagery to provide
real-time property information for pre- and post-
catastrophe assessment, claims estimation, and
catastrophe modeling

Provided risk analysis and catastrophe modeling 
solutions for flood, severe thunderstorm, earthquake, 
and cyber risk to help insurers in pricing, underwrit-
ing, loss mitigation, and portfolio management

Energy
Strengthened our deep domain expertise in subsur-rr
face, chemicals, and power and renewables, providing 
analysis, commercial intelligence, and long-term value 
to customers

Launched a cloud-based data strategy and expanded
our e-commerce presence, bringing advanced ana-
lytics and new solutions to customers

Financial Services
Expanded our proprietary data assets for consumer
spending and behaviors, consumer and commercial 
bankruptcy, and fraud and compliance to mitigate 
risks and aid in decision making for banks, payment
system providers, and creditors

Provided point-of-sale analytics for retailers for 
exception reporting, fraud alerts, and consumer 
behavior and trend analysis

Here are some of the ways we helped  
our customers achieve Speed and Focus 
in 2017 in our key vertical markets:

In this year’s report, we highlight the many areas where we harnessed the  
energy of Speed and Focus—creating value for our customers and opportunity  
for our shareholders. 

SPEED + FOCUS
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Underwriting and Rating
Insurance Programs and Emerging Risk
As a leader in developing standardized 
and specialized insurance policy programs, 
Verisk’s ISO business released new and 
enhanced industry programs to address risk 
exposures, including cyber, flood, drones,
and inland marine. The new cyber insurance 
program has enhanced rating variables and 
coverage options to help insurers respond to 
cyber risk with the information they need to 
underwrite those risks with greater precision. 
Our new commercial flood insurance pro-
gram enables insurers to set their own limits
of insurance and provide optional coverage 
for risks not typically covered by the National 
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). We also
significantly enhanced our commercial inland 
marine programs to meet the needs of con-
tractors and property owners.

We launched ISO Circular Navigator™, a 
cloud-based platform to track, visualize, and 
manage critical updates to ISO insurance 
programs. The platform gives insurers the 
ability to save, monitor, and discuss changes
to ISO circulars and view the progress 
they’ve made in implementing these 
changes by state and line of business.

Insurers continued to adopt ISO’s Mozart 
Form Composer™, an innovative forms 
management tool and product development
platform launched in 2016. ISO Electronic 
Rating Content™, which provides automa-
tion for rating data and rules, continued to
expand as end users adopted the tools 
through our technology distribution partners. 
These two key InsurTech platforms help 
insurers achieve operational efficiency and 
streamline processes.

We provided complimentary access to
FireLine® State Risk Reports, which identify 
the number and percentage of households 

at high or extreme risk from wildfire in the 
13 most wildfire-prone states. The reports 
help insurers manage increasingly threaten-
ing wildfire risks, especially significant with 
the challenging wildfire season the United 
States experienced in 2017. 

We also provided complimentary access 
to quarterly cost update reports on recon-
struction cost trends at the national and 
state levels. With Hurricanes Harvey and 
Irma driving up reconstruction costs this 
year, the reports were valuable in helping 
insurers track the latest changes in those 
costs and keep insurance to value current 
throughout the policy life cycle.

Strategic Data and Analytics
Verisk launched solutions in 2017 that gave 
insurers the speed to assess their books of 
business and find opportunities to expand 
with focused insights into risk. We released 
ISO Market Landscape™, an interactive 
dashboard that helps insurers benchmark 
their portfolios against the industry and 
identify areas for potential growth in lines 
of business, risk classes, and regions. We 
also launched the first commercially avail-
able symbol solution, ISO Risk Analyzer®

Commercial Auto Symbols, to help insurers 
make better rating and underwriting
decisions and find new ways to achieve
or maintain profitability.

We also had continued success embedding
ProMetrix® underwriting prefill data and ana-
lytics into customer workflows. The data-
base includes risk information on 6 million 
commercial properties and 26 million busi-
nesses in the United States. The ability to 
prefill ProMetrix commercial property charac-
teristics and information from other commer-rr
cial lines can help insurers expedite quoting,
underwriting, and annual renewals.  

We enhanced our capabilities in policy admin- 
istration and rating solutions for commercial 

PROPERTY/CASUALTY
INSURANCE

UNIQUE DATA 
We grew our data assets 
and now capture building 
features for more than  
90 million U.S. residential 
properties and information 
for more than 46,000 fire 
protection areas. We pro-
vided risk information for 
wildfire, hail, flood, lightning, 
and other major perils for 
those properties. By monitor-
ing the costs of more than 
4,000 labor and material 
components needed to 
rebuild structures, we helped 
insurers manage risk with 
accurate and timely replace-
ment cost estimates. 

TERRORISM  
RISK INSURANCE 
PROGRAM
We collected, aggregated, 
and helped analyze terrorism 
data for the U.S. Department 
of the Treasury for about 
900 insurers participating in 
the Terrorism Risk Insurance 
Program. The program plays 
a key role in ensuring that 
terrorism insurance remains 
available in the United States.

FILINGS AND 
ACTIONS
We submitted more than 
2,400 regulatory filings to 
maintain and enhance ISO 
programs across 29 lines of 
insurance. We analyzed more 
than 13,500 legislative bills 
and 9,000 regulatory actions 
and reviewed approximately 
2,000 court decisions.
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risks with the acquisition of Sequel, a pioneer in complex 
commercial and specialty insurance software innovation, 
and significantly grew our imagery-interpreted data for 
underwriting, rating, and replacement cost estimation.

We also introduced the first version of LightSpeed™, an online 
acquisition platform that fast-tracks verified, bindable quotes 
in two minutes, to a select group of insurers—a significant 
step in getting customer feedback to inform our widespread 
launch in 2018. With speed and quality, LightSpeed delivers 
a seamless customer experience, unmatched data resources,
and groundbreaking predictive analytics.

Internet of Things
American Honda Motor Company signed an exclusive agree-
ment to join the Verisk Data Exchange™, the industry’s lead-
ing IoT platform for connected vehicle and smart home data. 
Honda, like General Motors and other telematics service
providers in the exchange, contributes driving data from 
consenting owners of its connected cars, giving its custom-
ers access to the Verisk Driving Score™. This tool assesses 
driving behavior and provides insurers with scores they can 
use with their usage-based insurance (UBI) programs. Honda’s
agreement with Verisk increases the market share of auto-
makers in the exchange to 27 percent as represented by 
vehicles sold in the United States. By the close of 2017,
the exchange had approximately 3 million vehicles with more 
than 28 billion miles of driving data and continues to grow
by more than 180,000 vehicles every month.

We established an alliance with TomTom Telematics, one 
of the world’s leading telematics solution providers, in which
fleet owners can port driving and vehicle data collected by 
the TomTom WEBFLEET® platform into the Verisk Data
Exchange. The alliance helps fleet operators realize insurance
cost savings through safe driving practices and accurate
operational data.

We also developed a telematics-based Instant Notice of 
Loss (INOL) auto claims product and are implementing it
with insurers. Instant INOL-Auto helps insurers achieve speed
and ease by immediately connecting customers involved in
car accidents directly to their insurers and providing claim
details to adjusters for processing claims as quickly as pos-
sible. Insurers can initiate a claim at the accident scene and
provide an array of services through its preferred partners to
improve claim efficiency and increase customer satisfaction.

Source: American Honda Motor Company 
2018 Honda Accord Touring 2.0T

Underwriting and Rating Focus: Be our  
customers’ preferred partner to accelerate 
innovation, excellence, and profitable growth 
through data analytics and insights
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Claims
Antifraud and Claims Management
Verisk continued to transform ISO ClaimSearch®, a system 
for improving claims processing and fighting fraud, to
become a fully visualized platform. The interactive platform
exhibits Speed and Focus by delivering timely, actionable
intelligence to process claims faster and more effectively, 
along with support for digital images with forensic analysis
and increased data protection. The focused visual informa-
tion gives insurers a quick presentation of an individual 
claimant’s history.

Verisk’s Xactware business implemented a significant
single-claim view enhancement in XactAnalysis®, a full-cycle 
claims analytical and reporting tool for property insurance.
We also tightened integrations between our digital manage-
ment system for personal property management and 
ClaimXperience™, an online portal that helps policyholders 
connect and collaborate directly with their insurance compa-
nies and repairers during the claim process. Videos, photos, 
messages, notes, documents, and customer satisfaction 
ratings in ClaimXperience sync to XactAnalysis, speeding 
up the claim settlement and damage restoration process 
and reducing claim-handling costs.

Xactware also launched RepairWise, a web-based application 
for the home inspection and remodeling markets for quick 
repair estimation, and added job costing and job manage-
ment tools for contractors with the acquisition of Service

Claims Focus: Revolutionize how our  
customers manage the property/casualty 
claims function and achieve recognition  
as thought leaders who create the future
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Software. We also released a new property- 
specific hurricane report, which provides
estimators and adjusters with address-
specific information about sustained wind 
at and near a structure during a hurricane.

Verisk also increased integration with our
Geomni business, leveraging geospatial data 
to improve the speed and quality of property
claims estimation. This integration provides 
assisted estimating, 3D models, and the pre-
cise placements of all exterior features of a 
structure. Fast access to detailed, focused
information can significantly reduce the
time that estimators, appraisers, and other 
property professionals spend on collecting
such information.

Remote Sensing and Geospatial Data
Launched in 2016, Geomni released signifi-
cant new remote sensing capabilities and 
rolled out innovative property solutions in 
2017. Geomni also provided mapping pro-
fessionals with terrestrial data for a wide
range of needs, including forestry, coastal
change, landfill monitoring, landslide predic-
tion, and city planning.

This year, Verisk acquired a number of lead-
ing U.S.-based aerial survey companies 
and their aircraft fleets. With our current and 

planned investments in technologically 
advanced and efficient aerial surveying plat-
forms, the fully implemented Geomni fleet will
operate from 15 hubs strategically located 
throughout the United States. The fleet is 
capable of reaching any point in the contigu-
ous 48 states and Hawaii within hours. 

Geomni captured post-catastrophe imagery
after Hurricanes Harvey, Irma, and Maria;
the California wildfires; and the Montecito, 
California, mudslides. First on the scene 
during Harvey, we began data collection 
flights as the hurricane unfolded and acti-
vated several regional hubs to proactively 
capture aerial imagery of the Southern 
California wildfires and mudslides. Pre- and 
post-catastrophe images help insurers with
claims estimating and management and 
accelerate the restoration process.  

We’re also integrating imagery, property 
characteristics, and data with our weather
solutions and building repair cost research
to provide insurers with post-storm damage 
estimates they can expect on each property.
And we’re integrating our geospatial data into
Verisk’s AIR Worldwide catastrophe models 
and portfolio assessments of catastrophe
loss in real time. 

VAST LIBRARY  
OF IMAGERY AND 
PROPERTY DATA
Geomni continued to build 
its vast library of imagery 
and property data, providing 
insurers and users in the 
property industry with  
real-time access to detailed  
information on all types of 
properties as we launched  
or announced new solutions 
integrated into other Verisk 
products. Those included  
a UAV (unmanned aerial  
vehicle) service for property 
inspections; image-to-scope 
estimation that delivers 
dimensions, plans, and 
material identification into 
Xactware’s claims estimation 
system; and property  
characteristics and imagery 
for insurance-to-value  
calculations and the 
ProMetrix commercial  
property database. 
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Catastrophe Modeling
The effects of catastrophes on people,
economies, and the insurance industry 
can be severe. Our catastrophe models  
use sophisticated simulation methods 
that capture how natural and man-made 
catastrophes behave and affect buildings,
infrastructure, and populations.

Customers use our models in pricing, risk 
selection and underwriting, loss mitigation, 
reinsurance decision making, and portfolio
management. Model output provides infor-
mation about the potential for large losses
before they occur so customers can prepare
for the financial consequences. Today, we
offer models for natural catastrophe risk and 
terrorism in more than 100 countries around
the world, covering more than 85 percent  
of global catastrophe losses. We’re also the
modeling agent for more than 75 percent  
of 2017 catastrophe bond issuance.

In 2017, AIR Worldwide released new
enhancements to Touchstone®, a complete 
catastrophe modeling and risk analysis plat-
form with advanced analytics that helps  
manage risk for primary personal and  
commercial lines insurers, the excess and 
surplus market, reinsurers, reinsurance and 
insurance brokers, and governmental and 
nongovernmental organizations. A signifi-
cantly enhanced geospatial module offers 
robust GIS functionality and enables users
to better visualize and understand their 
risk. We also enhanced CATRADER®, the 
industry standard for analyzing reinsurance

contracts, industry loss warranties, and 
insuance-linked securities.

AIR launched several new catastrophe mod-
els this year. We introduced a new inland
flood model for Japan along with enhance-
ments to our Japan typhoon model, helping
the industry manage this complex risk by
better understanding the severity, frequency, 
and loss potential of extreme flood events 
caused by precipitation and storm surge. 
With hail a significant peril in Canada, we
released a crop hail model there to give 
stakeholders across the crop insurance 
value chain a view of crop hail risk. We also 
released the industry’s first comprehensive 
severe thunderstorm model for Australia,
which captures the three perils of hail, 
tornado, and straight-line wind.

We released a significantly updated earth-
quake model for the United States, which 
now includes support for tsunami and land-
slide, and a module to capture the effects  
of human activity on earthquake occurrence. 
The earthquake model for Colombia was 
approved by the country’s insurance regulator 
for use by domestic insurance companies  
in managing earthquake risk.

Also in 2017, the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) selected AIR’s 
innovative U.S. flood and storm surge models 
to better understand the National Flood
Insurance Program’s (NFIP) exposure to 
flood loss and improve resilience. The model 
will help the NFIP assess potential payouts
to property owners and the effects of major
flooding events in real time.

Extreme Event Modeling Focus: Be the leading  
provider of solutions to help global insurers, reinsurers, 
intermediaries, corporations, and the public sector  
manage their extreme event risk

CYBER RISK
AIR launched ARC (Analytics 
of Risk from Cyber), a cyber 
risk modeling application for 
the insurance and reinsur-
ance markets. ARC evaluates 
commercial policies, mea-
sures and monitors cyber 
risk within a portfolio, and 
estimates potential insured 
cyber losses.
  
The ability for underwriters 
and risk managers to model 
and test different scenarios  
is invaluable when estimat-
ing the financial impact of a 
defined event on a company  
or portfolio.
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Verisk business Wood Mackenzie is a global
leader in data analytics and commercial intel-
ligence for the energy, chemicals, metals and 
mining, and renewables industries. 

Strengthening Our Deep Domain Expertise
Wood Mackenzie continued to invest in 
deep domain expertise, one of our strongest 
competitive advantages. As part of a long-
term commitment to the quality of data and
insights—critical to our customer relation-
ships and brand—we strengthened the busi-
ness by organizing parts of the company to
focus on specific growth markets. 

Over the past several years, we’ve invested 
in subsurface, chemicals, and power and
renewables—markets offering high potential
growth rates for our business. In 2017, we 
created dedicated internal teams to focus
attention, resources, and budgets to deliver 
optimal returns.  

In the subsurface market, we’re driving better
valuations and benchmarking through trusted
integrated subsurface data, insights, and 
investigative solutions. We’re evolving our 
existing offerings to stay in tune with cus-
tomer needs, adding both new content and 
solutions for our petrotechnical customers in 
particular. In the chemicals market, we com-
plemented our existing coverage by extending 
our expertise in high-value petrochemical 
markets. In the power and renewables market, 
we built upon Greentech Media’s (GTM) solar,
smart grid, and storage expertise with the
2017 Verisk acquisition of MAKE, a leading
research business in wind power. Both GTM 
and MAKE are part of Wood MacKenzie.
Combined with our regional power market 
modeling, we deepened regional coverage 
where it makes commercial sense.

Growing Our Markets and Channels
Accompanying the focus on deepening our 
expertise, we launched a data strategy and
digital channel refresh, expanding business
into new markets. Our data strategy is driven 
by customer demand for a cloud-based, 
enterprisewide repository for all Wood 
Mackenzie information sources. We’ve
leveraged expertise from the broader Verisk 
enterprise, which has enabled advanced
analytic techniques to transform how we 
approach data management in our energy 
and metals units. 

Wood Mackenzie’s commitment to harness-
ing technology to grow the business resulted
in the successful launch of the new website, 
woodmac.com—offering a new visual identity, 
an enhanced approach to the user experi-
ence, and sharpened focus on funneling
different types of business through the online 
“shop window.” The new site has seen a 
considerable increase in traffic, driven by 
activities to support our brand, customer
acquisition, and our redesigned e-commerce 
business.

These 2017 activities—launching the data 
strategy, expanding our content, and apply-
ing new analytic capabilities—will serve us 
well as we commercialize our solutions 
going forward.

ENERGY Wood Mackenzie Focus: Be the 
world’s most trusted partner for 
natural resources intelligence,  
powering the best decisions and 
leading our industry

INDUSTRY-  
LEADING TEAM
The combined resources  
of GTM, MAKE, and Wood 
Mackenzie have created an 
industry-leading power and 
renewables team with deep 
expertise, and we’ve begun  
marketing enhanced offer-
ings to each other’s client 
base as well as the wider 
market. We maintained  
integration with our existing 
core research and consult-
ing business and sustained 
close technical and com-
mercial relationships.

CORE RESEARCH 
DOMAINS
Wood Mackenzie has also 
been strengthening our 
expertise in our own core 
research domains. Driven 
by our customers, we lever-
aged existing work in many 
ways. Examples include the 
move to integrated demand 
modeling alongside our new 
supply modeling capability 
and the connection of supply 
chain analysis to upstream 
valuations using increased 
real-time data. These offer-
ings appeal to our core 
users and new groups 
within existing users and 
open up new customer 
segments.
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FINANCIAL  
SERVICES

Argus Information and Advisory Services, 
a Verisk business, provides insightful infor-rr
mation on benchmarking, scoring, analytics, 
and customized services for financial institu-
tions and firms in the payments industry. 
These solutions help them understand, 
analyze, and address important challenges,
such as gains or losses in market and wallet 
share, credit default, fraud, emerging pay-
ment technologies, and the impact of regula-
tory change. We also provide tailored data
management solutions to customers world-
wide, including business intelligence plat-
forms, customer profitability views, mobile 
data solutions, enterprise database services,
and algorithms for fraud risk scoring.

Actionable Insights  
into Consumer Behaviors
Argus offerings give customers actionable 
insights into consumer behaviors, attitudes, 
and preferences. Our portfolio management
benchmarking studies provide an external 
perspective for customers by compiling
and reporting product, performance, and
profitability information aggregated from 
an extensive mix of market participants.
Depersonalized but joined by proprietary 
technology, our studies help banks under-rr
stand their customers’ unique needs and 
the current competitive trends (such as 
growth trends and emerging technologies)
of the credit card, personal loan, and retail 
banking industries.

We added solutions for consumer spending 
analysis and insights across retail, hospitality, 
property, and government sectors. These
data sets give customers deeper insights 
into consumer behavior, helping to improve 
sales and understand and measure consumer
response. Other data on macroeconomic
factors, online spending, and infrastructure 
changes provides a wider context for deci-
sion making and strategies.

We introduced state-of-the-art risk man-
agement workflow solutions for banks and
creditors and added unique data assets in 
areas including consumer and commercial 
bankruptcies, consumer behavior, and legal 
and technical terms associated with debtor 
settlements. These data sets can improve
matters associated with regulation, bank-
ruptcy, charge-off, and debt collection and 
assist creditors throughout the account
management life cycle.  

Also in 2017, the acquisition of Fintellix 
expanded our offerings for financial institu-
tions with data management platforms and
regulatory reporting solutions. These areas
help our customers leverage their current 
investments in core operating systems and 
infrastructure in an agile and scaled manner.

Retail Analytics
In 2017, Verisk Retail customers continued
to leverage Aspect EliteLP™ for exception 
reporting and analytics at point of sale. This
Speed and Focus solution for retailers uses 
powerful data mining techniques to quickly 
analyze vast amounts of historical trans-
action data created at point of sale and 
focuses on exceptions to normal point-of-
sale activities—exposing possible employee
theft, fraud, or training and operational 
deficiencies. Other functionality includes 
third-party system integration, credit card
encryption, and support for multiple and
unique transaction types.

Argus Focus: Help our core clients, their  
stakeholders, and the ecosystem in which  
they operate address their most complex  
and relevant challenges with information,  
analytics, and data management solutions

PROPRIETARY 
DATA ASSETS
In 2017, we acquired sev-
eral companies that became  
part of the Argus family, 
including G2 Web Services, 
LCI, Fintellix, and Marketview 
(January 2018 close), and 
grew our markets in 
Australia, New Zealand, 
India, and the MENA re    gion 
(Middle East and North 
Africa). Through these  
integrations, we expanded 
our proprietary assets to 
include an extensive fraud 
and compliance database,  
high-quality time-series data 
on consumer bankruptcy, 
and consumer spending 
data sets.

MERCHANT RISK
We also expanded into the 
areas of merchant and  
consumer fraud and reputa-
tional risk detection. These 
additional merchant risk  
intelligence solutions can 
help acquirers, commercial  
banks, and other payment 
system providers identify,  
mitigate, and monitor pay-
ment risks in their merchant 
and business customer 
portfolios.
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Intelligent Compliance
Verisk 3E helps companies comply with regulatory require-
ments throughout the product life cycle and supply chain. 
This year, we expanded our cloud-based regulatory offering, 
making our product safety, dangerous goods, and scientific
content accessible through the cloud for seamless integra-
tion with the SAP® Environment, Health, and Safety (EHS) 
system. Cloud delivery can streamline compliance processes
and mitigate the risk of noncompliance. We also expanded
our database of Safety Data Sheet (SDS) content, providing
access to more than 7 million SDSs. In addition, we released
Extended Safety Data Sheet and Exposure Scenario docu-
ments and templates in compliance with the EU’s Registration, 
Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals 
(REACH) regulation. 

We launched Toxics Release Inventory and National Pollutant 
Release Inventory regulatory reporting services to help manu-
facturing and industrial customers more efficiently fulfill their 
mandatory annual reporting responsibilities, improve chemical 
safety, and protect the environment.

Verisk 3E won industry awards for product enhancements to 
help companies around the globe improve workplace safety, 
increase product stewardship, strengthen regulatory compli-
ance, and augment operational efficiency.

Supply Chain Risk
Verisk Maplecroft, a leading provider of global risk analytics, 
research, and advisory, brings comprehensive data and
visualizations to Verisk’s risk management and supply 
chain portfolio.

Verisk Maplecroft advanced its research into modern slavery
with a study that provides a granular perspective on the UK’s
regional slavery risks. Combining data on trafficking victims, 
education, ethnicity, and country of birth, the study identified
local risks to help determine where potential victims of 
exploitation were most vulnerable.

We developed the Corporate Exposure Tool, which com-
bines global data on more than 100 ESG (environmental, 
social, and governance) and political risks with commercial 
data on nearly 3,000 oil and gas companies and more than 
10,000 onshore and offshore fields. The tool calculates risk 

SPECIALIZED 
MARKETS

scores based on key metrics, including reserves and capital
expenditure. It enables institutional investors to create inno-
vative strategies based on company exposure to issues such 
as climate change and human rights and gives companies
unique data sets to evaluate their own risk profile.

We also produced Human Rights Outlook 2017 to assess7
the top ten human rights issues affecting business, including 
modern slavery and corrupt recruitment. A key finding was
that human rights risks are surfacing closer to home for
Western companies. The report raises awareness of under-rr
reported issues and drives greater business responsibility.

Our acquisition of PowerAdvocate expanded our offerings
for market, cost intelligence, and supply chain solutions to
the global energy sector. The company’s proprietary spend
and cost models encompass $2.7 trillion of spending data,
providing insight on cost-savings opportunities and efficient 
deployment of capital. Our customers can realize additional 
value by mitigating risk and optimizing operational costs
across their supply chains.

Science and Industry 
Verisk’s Atmospheric and Environmental Research (AER)
business enhances understanding of the environment and
improves decision making in response to weather and 
climate risk.

AER released groundbreaking seasonal forecasting research—
which received recognition from the scientific community and 
government—on the use of Arctic variability and its effects 
on the polar vortex, critical for anticipating winter weather 
across the Northern Hemisphere. We predicted volatile but
overall cold temperatures this winter in the eastern United
States, in contrast to forecasts of a mild winter. 

AER extended FloodScan—its satellite-based flood detection 
and mapping system—to cover North America. FloodScan 
near-real-time daily flood maps provide immediate information
to decision makers, who can leverage its database of past
flooding for analysis. We produced one of the first maps to 
estimate the full extent of flooding from Hurricane Harvey 
and distributed it to government, commercial, and emer-rr
gency assistance organizations through our web interface.

SourSourSouSoururcce:ce:e:e:ce:: NNANANASANASANANASANASANASANASAASAN EarEarEEarEEEEEEE th Oth Oth OObserbserbsebse vatoatoatotoooatooryryryryryyyryryryryy
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In 2017, Verisk customers included all the 
top 100 U.S. property/casualty insurers for
the lines of services we offer, seven of the top 
ten global chemical manufacturers, nine of 
the top ten global energy providers, and all 
of the top 30 credit card issuers in North
America, the United Kingdom, and Australia.

As part of our strategy for growth, we contin-
ued our commitment to expand internationally
through organic product development and 
extending our U.S. expertise globally, acqui-
sitions, strategic collaborations, and other 
agreements in multiple vertical markets.

International Acquisitions
Verisk acquired two UK-based companies, 
Emergent Network Intelligence (ENI) and 
Rebmark Legal Solutions, to broaden our 
claims offerings with UK and European 
Union insurers. ENI extends our capabilities 
in fraud detection with technologically
advanced tools that help insurers improve 
vehicle claims workflow and reduce expo-
sure to fraud. Rebmark brings Verisk’s UK 
customers injury claims solutions that cap-
ture data, improve accuracy, and eliminate 
inefficiencies for those working with large
and complex injury claims.

Verisk acquired UK-based Healix Risk Rating, 
which became part of ISO. The acquisition 
adds new capabilities in automated medical
risk assessment of preexisting conditions—
a typically excluded exposure—for travel and 
accident, pet, and income protection insur-rr
ance segments.

Verisk also acquired UK-based Arium, a
company specializing in liability risk modeling
and decision support, which became part of 
AIR. This acquisition enables AIR to provide
insurers and reinsurers with additional mod-
eling solutions and analytics for the casualty 
market, helping them manage property/
casualty risk across their portfolios.

GLOBAL  
EXPANSION

We acquired Denmark-based MAKE, a 
research and advisory business specializing
in wind and solar power intelligence, and it 
became part of Wood Mackenzie. Adding 
MAKE’s capabilities positions us as a leading 
market analysis and advisory firm on renew-
ables and the global electricity industry. 

Global Specialty Lines Loss Aggregation
PCS® investigates and collects data on
disasters in the United States, Puerto Rico, 
the U.S. Virgin Islands, Canada, and Turkey. 
We provide analytics that define the extent
and type of insured loss, establish event 
dates, and determine the geographic areas 
affected. PCS estimates are widely accepted
as triggers in many traded financial market 
instruments, catastrophe bonds, catastrophe 
swaps, industry loss warranties (ILWs), and 
other catastrophe derivative instruments
and are used to help make smarter risk and
capital management decisions.

PCS launched PCS Global Cyber™ to 
provide independent, third-party industry
loss estimates for major cyber risk loss 
events of at least $20 million worldwide. 
The cyber (re)insurance sector can use the
PCS Global Cyber Index to help support the 
public good by ensuring that companies can
gain adequate protection for significant risks 
that seem to be growing every day. Further,
(re)insurers can work with the index to man-
age their risk and capital more effectively, 
ultimately attaining greater profitability and
shareholder value creation.

Other Solutions
Verisk released Underwriters Advantage™,
providing property information, risk data, and
analytics for UK residential and commercial 
underwriters and brokers, and extended it to 
Hong Kong and Singapore. This first-to-market
solution with aerial imagery, construction and
occupancy data, flood zones, terrorism risk, 
and more provides a consistent method of 
scoring for risk and rebuild cost.   

GLOBAL PRESENCE
We lease offices in 24 states 
in the United States and main- 
tain offices to support our 
international operations in 
Argentina, Australia, Austria, 
Bahrain, Brazil, Canada, 
China, Denmark, Germany, 
India, Indonesia, Ireland, 
Israel, Japan, Kazakhstan, 
Malaysia, Mexico, Nepal,  
New Zealand, Nigeria,  
Peru, Russia, Singapore, 
South Africa, South Korea, 
Spain, Thailand, the United 
Arab Emirates, and the 
United Kingdom.

SEQUEL 
ACQUISITION
Verisk’s acquisition of 
Sequel strengthens our posi-
tion in the London Market 
and provides global growth 
opportunities in the complex 
commercial and specialty 
insurance industry, enabling 
integrated data analytics 
through a specialized end-
to-end workflow solution. 
With a customer base that 
includes some of the world’s 
largest specialty insurers, 
this acquisition allows Verisk 
to expand our footprint in 
the United Kingdom.  
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Visit www.verisk.com/csr and download the  
2017 Verisk Corporate Social Responsibility Report  
to learn more.

CORPORATE  
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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Here are highlights of what we accomplished
• We provided our first-ever response to the Carbon Disclosure Project, a 

worldwide engagement effort to collect and analyze emissions data as the 
basis for strategic planning by policymakers. Results indicated that we
decreased Scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions from worldwide operations 
by 4.5 percent compared against our 2015 baseline. We engaged an
independent accounting firm to provide external assurance of the 2016 
emissions data.

• We purchased renewable energy certificates and carbon offsets to help 
address our projected global carbon emissions for 2017 and 2018. Our 
portfolio of renewable energy certificates includes projects in the United 
States, Canada, and countries in Europe and Asia. The carbon offsets 
support efforts to reduce emissions at landfills in New York, Texas, 
and Utah.

• We committed to support the work of the International Rescue Committee
(IRC)—a global first responder helping victims of conflict, oppression, famine,
and natural catastrophes. We’ll help the IRC prepare its annual watch list by 
providing access to Verisk Maplecroft’s Global Risk Analytics and Country 
Monitoring Service.

• We contracted with an independent service that uses publicly available 
government, judicial, and news sources, including sanctions lists, to assess 
third parties for potential violations across a range of exposures, such as 
bribery and corruption, human rights, and modern slavery. We also adopted 
a Supplier Code of Conduct, setting forth behavioral expectations governing 
a supplier’s relationship with Verisk. The provisions in the Code address
important aspects of business integrity and compliance, ranging from the
protection of human rights to safeguarding personal information.

During 2017, we advanced 
our commitment to corpo-
rate social responsibility 
on multiple fronts, taking 
important steps to address 
our environmental, social,  
and governance (ESG) 
obligations. 
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Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, as used in this annual report on Form 10-K, references to
“we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company” refer to Verisk Analytics, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

In this annual report on Form 10-K, all dollar amounts are expressed in millions, unless indicated otherwise.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Verisk Analytics, Inc., or Verisk, has made statements under the captions “Business,” “Risk Factors,”
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and in other
sections of this annual report on Form 10-K that are forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify
these statements by forward-looking words such as “may,” “might,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,”
“anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” or “continue,” the negative of these terms and
other comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements, which are subject to risks, uncertainties and
assumptions about us, may include projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth
strategies and anticipated trends in our business. These statements are only predictions based on our current
expectations and projections about future events. There are important factors that could cause our actual results,
level of activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from the results, level of activity, performance
or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, including those factors discussed under
the caption entitled “Risk Factors.” You should specifically consider the numerous risks outlined under “Risk
Factors.”

Although we believe the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we
cannot guarantee future results, level of activity, performance or achievements. Moreover, neither we nor any
other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of any of these forward-looking
statements. We are under no duty to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of this annual
report on Form 10-K to conform our prior statements to actual results or revised expectations.

PART I

Item 1. Business

Our Company

Verisk is a leading data analytics provider serving customers in insurance, energy and specialized
markets, and financial services. Using advanced technologies to collect and analyze billions of records, we draw
on unique data assets and deep domain expertise to provide innovations that may be integrated into customer
workflows. We offer predictive analytics and decision support solutions to customers in rating, underwriting,
claims, catastrophe and weather risk, natural resources intelligence, economic forecasting, and many other fields.
In the United States, or U.S., and around the world, we help customers protect people, property, and financial
assets.

Our customers use our solutions to make better decisions about risk and opportunities with greater
efficiency and discipline. We refer to these products and services as solutions due to the integration among our
services and the flexibility that enables our customers to purchase components or a comprehensive package.
These solutions take various forms, including data, expert insight, statistical models and tailored analytics all
designed to allow our customers to make more logical decisions. We believe our solutions for analyzing risk
have a positive impact on our customers’ revenues and help them better manage their costs. In 2017, our
customers included all of the top 100 property and casualty, or P&C, insurance providers in the U.S. for the lines
of P&C services we offer, and all of the top 30 credit card issuers in North America, the United Kingdom and
Australia, as well as 9 of the top 10 global energy providers around the world. We also work with a wide range of
companies, governments and institutions across the energy, and metals and mining value chains. We believe that
our commitment to our customers and the embedded nature of our solutions serve to strengthen and extend our
relationships.
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We believe that Verisk is uniquely positioned because of the set of distinctives or competitive advantages
we cultivate and continue to expand. Our existing businesses, in addition to new product innovations, integrate
the following four singular qualities into the foundation of our strategy.

Our Distinctives

• Unique Data Assets — Data is at the core of what we do. We use our proprietary data assets to develop
predictive analytics and transformative models for our customers.

• Deep Domain Expertise — We have specialized and in-depth knowledge in a number of defined
vertical markets, including insurance, energy, financial services, and risk management. We understand
that different verticals require different approaches, and our deep domain expertise adds value to our
analytics in the markets we serve.

• Steady Stream of First-to-Market Innovations — We move quickly to be the first to market with new
solutions. Typically, the marketplace assumes that those who are first to market are superior to the
competition and better positioned to succeed.

• Deep Integration into Customer Workflows — By embedding our solutions into customer workflows,
we help our customers better manage risk and optimize their bottom line. We achieve this goal by
remaining closely connected to our customers at all times and serving their distinct needs.

We offer our solutions and services primarily through annual subscriptions or long-term agreements,
which are typically pre-paid and represented over 80% of our revenues in 2017. For the year ended December 31,
2017, we had revenues of $2,145.2 million and net income of $555.1 million. For the five year period ended
December 31, 2017, our revenues and net income grew at a compound annual growth rate, or CAGR, of 12.8%
and 12.4%, respectively.

Our History

We trace our history to 1971, when Insurance Services Office, Inc., or ISO, started operations as a
not-for-profit advisory and rating organization providing services to the U.S. P&C insurance industry. ISO was
formed as an association of insurance companies to gather statistical data and other information from insurers
and report to regulators, as required by law. ISO’s original functions also included developing programs to help
insurers define and manage insurance products and providing information to help insurers determine their own
independent premium rates. Insurers used and continue to use our offerings primarily in their product
development, underwriting and rating functions.

On May 23, 2008, in contemplation of our initial public offering, or IPO, ISO formed Verisk Analytics,
Inc., or Verisk, a Delaware corporation, to be the holding company for our business. Verisk was initially formed
as a wholly-owned subsidiary of ISO. On October 6, 2009, in connection with our IPO, the Company effected a
reorganization whereby ISO became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Verisk. Verisk common stock began trading
on the NASDAQ Global Select Market on October 7, 2009, under the ticker symbol “VRSK.”

Over the past two decades, we have transformed our business beyond its original functions by deepening
and broadening our data assets, developing a set of integrated risk management solutions and services and
addressing new markets. Our expansion into analytics began when we acquired the American Insurance Services
Group, or AISG, and certain operations and assets of the National Insurance Crime Bureau in 1997 and 1998,
respectively. Those organizations brought to the company large databases of insurance claims, as well as
expertise in detecting and preventing claims fraud. To further expand our business, in 2002, we acquired AIR
Worldwide, or AIR, the technological leader in catastrophe modeling. In 2006, to bolster our position in the
insurance claims field we acquired Xactware, a leading supplier of estimation software for professionals involved
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in building repair and reconstruction. In 2012, we acquired Argus Information & Advisory Services, LLC, or
Argus, to expand our global presence providing information, competitive benchmarking, analytics, and
customized services to financial institutions in the payments space. In 2015, we acquired Wood Mackenzie
Limited, or Wood Mackenzie, to advance our strategy to expand internationally and position us in the global
energy market. In 2017, we acquired a group of similar but unrelated companies for aerial image capture
purposes, or Aerial Imagery acquisitions, in our insurance vertical. Additionally, in 2017, we acquired G2 Web
Services, LLC, or G2; Sequel Business Solutions Ltd., or Sequel; Lundquist Consulting, Inc., or LCI; and
PowerAdvocate, Inc., or PowerAdvocate, to further strengthen our position in the insurance, financial services
and energy verticals. The Aerial Imagery acquisitions provide multi-spectral aerial photographic services with
expertise in offering digital photogrammetric and remote sensing data for mapping and surveying applications.
G2 provides merchant risk intelligence solutions for acquirers, commercial banks, and other payment system
providers. Sequel is a leading insurance and reinsurance software specialist based in London. LCI offers risk
insight, prediction, and management solutions for banks and creditors. PowerAdvocate is a leading data analytics
provider with a one-of-a-kind spend and cost data that are curated from millions of transactions across thousands
of services, materials, and equipment categories in the energy industry.

Those acquisitions have added scale, geographic reach, highly skilled workforces, and a wide array of
new capabilities to support our customers. They have helped to make us a leading provider of information and
decision analytics for customers involved in the business of risk in the U.S. and selectively around the world.

Segments

We organize our business in two segments: Decision Analytics and Risk Assessment. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Part II of this
annual report for additional information regarding our segments. See Note 17 of our consolidated financial
statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K for further information.

Decision Analytics Segment

In the Decision Analytics segment, we develop predictive models to forecast scenarios and produce both
standard and customized analytics that help our customers better manage their businesses, including predicting
loss, selecting and pricing risk, detecting fraud before and after a loss event, and quantifying losses. Our
businesses in this segment are categorized by the primary vertical end market for their services.

Our solutions are built on unique data sets that are dynamic and updated based on new data and events.
Our analytic methods and proprietary data sets combined with our deep industry expertise, provide us with a
significant competitive advantage.

Insurance

Our insurance solutions provide our customers analytics in the areas of fraud detection, catastrophe
modeling, loss estimation, and underwriting, including emerging areas of interest within these categories.

We are a leading provider of fraud-detection tools for the P&C insurance industry. Our anti-fraud
solutions improve our customers’ profitability by both predicting the likelihood that fraud is occurring and
detecting suspicious activity after it has occurred. When a claim is submitted, our system searches our database
and returns information about other claims filed by the same individuals or businesses (either as claimants or
insurers), that helps our customers determine if fraud has occurred. The system searches for matches in
identifying informational fields, such as name, address, Social Security number, vehicle identification number,
driver’s license number, tax identification number, or other parties to the loss. Our system also includes advanced
name and address searching to perform intelligent searches and improve the overall quality of the matches.
Information from match reports speeds payment of meritorious claims while providing a defense against fraud
and can lead to denial of a claim, negotiation of a reduced award, or further investigation by the insurer or law
enforcement.
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We have a comprehensive system used by claims adjusters and investigation professionals to process
claims and fight fraud. Claims databases are one of the key tools in the fight against insurance fraud. The benefits
of a single all-claims database include improved efficiency in reporting data and searching for information,
enhanced capabilities for detecting suspicious claims and superior information for investigating fraudulent
claims, suspicious individuals, and possible fraud rings. Our database contains information for more than
1.2 billion claims and is the world’s largest database of P&C claims information used for claims and
investigations. Insurers and other participants submit new claims more than 200,000 a day on average across all
categories of the U.S. P&C insurance industry.

We also provide an expert scoring system that helps distinguish between suspicious and meritorious
claims, and products that use link analysis technology to help visualize and fight insurance fraud.

We are also a leader in and pioneered the field of probabilistic catastrophe modeling used by insurers,
reinsurers, financial institutions, and government to manage their risk from extreme events. Our models, which
form the basis of our solutions, enable companies to identify, quantify and plan for the financial consequences of
catastrophes. We have developed models for hurricanes, earthquakes, winter storms, tornadoes, hailstorms, and
floods in more than 100 countries, as well as pandemics worldwide. We have developed a probabilistic terrorism
model capable of quantifying the risk in the U.S. from this evolving threat, which supports pricing and
underwriting decisions down to the level of an individual policy, as well as models for estimating losses to crop
insurance programs in the U.S., Canada and China. Our newest models offer risk management solutions for the
cyber and casualty lines of business.

We also provide data, analytics and networking products for professionals involved in estimating all
phases of building repair and reconstruction. We provide solutions for every phase of a building’s life, including:

• quantifying the ultimate cost of repair or reconstruction of damaged or destroyed buildings,

• aiding in the settlement of insurance claims, and

• tracking the process of repair or reconstruction and facilitating communication among insurers,
adjusters, contractors, and policyholders.

To help our customers estimate repair costs, we provide a solution that assists contractors and insurance
adjusters in estimating repairs using a patented plan-sketching program. The program allows our customers to
sketch floor plans, roof plans and wall-framing plans and automatically calculates material and labor quantities
for the construction of walls, floors, footings, and roofs.

We also offer our customers access to wholesale and retail price lists, which include structural repair and
restoration pricing for 468 separate economic areas in North America. We revise this information monthly, and
in the aftermath of a major disaster, we can update the price lists as often as weekly to reflect rapid price
changes. Our structural repair and cleaning database contains approximately 21,000 unit-cost line items. For each
line item such as smoke cleaning, water extraction and hazardous cleanup, we report time and material pricing,
including labor, labor productivity rates (for new construction and restoration), labor burden and overhead,
material costs, and equipment costs. We improve our reported pricing data by several methods including direct
market surveys and an analysis of the actual claims experiences of our customers. We estimate that more than
80% of insurance repair contractors and service providers in the U.S. and Canada with computerized estimating
systems use our building and repair pricing data. Use of such a large percentage of the industry’s claims data
leads to accurate reporting of pricing information, which we believe is unmatched in the industry.

Our estimates allow our customers to set loss reserves, deploy field adjusters and verify internal company
estimates. Our estimates also keep insurers, their customers, regulators, and other interested parties informed
about the total costs of disasters. We also provide our customers access to daily reports on severe weather and
catastrophes and we maintain a database of information on catastrophe losses in the U.S. dating back to 1950.
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In addition, we provide an efficient multitier, multispectral terrestrial imagery and data acquisition,
processing, analytics, and distribution system. Using the latest remote sensing and machine learning
technologies, we gather, store, process, and deliver geographic and spatially referenced information that supports
uses in many markets, including insurance, commercial property, energy, banking, architecture, engineering,
emergency response, and urban planning. Mapping professionals and firms leverage our data to accurately
understand growth and change, determine damage, discover hazards, assess risk, and perform valuations.

We are also a leading provider of solutions for the personal underwriting markets, including homeowners
and auto lines. We build and maintain widely used, industry-standard tools that assist insurers in underwriting
and rating, that is, measuring and selecting risks and pricing coverage appropriately to ensure fairness to the
consumer and a reasonable return for the insurer. Our solutions apply advanced predictive analytics to our deep
reservoir of data and information to quickly and precisely gauge the degree and cost of risk.

Our solutions span a wide range of P&C insurance, encompassing personal and commercial lines of
coverage that protect private residences, private and commercial vehicles, and businesses.

We continually pursue new solutions that help our customers keep abreast of changing markets and
technology. For example, we provide tools and platforms to help insurers, their customers, and providers of
products and services to leverage the growing Internet of Things. This technology connects devices, vehicles, and
homes to the Internet and generates valuable data to underwrite, rate, and manage risk while enriching customer
relationships. By ingesting, storing, and normalizing this data, Verisk makes it accessible for users to extract
business insights at a significantly lower cost and logistical burden than they could achieve on their own.

Energy and Specialized Markets

We are a leading provider of data analytics for the global energy, chemicals, and metals and mining
industries. We provide research and consulting services focusing on exploration strategies and screening, asset
development and acquisition, commodity markets, and corporate analysis. We offer consultancy in the areas of
business environment, business improvement, business strategies, commercial advisory, and transaction support.
We deliver analysis and advice on assets, companies, governments, and markets. We provide comprehensive and
integrated coverage and analysis of relevant commodities across the interconnected global energy sectors. We
continuously gather and manage proprietary information, insight, and analysis on thousands of oil and gas fields,
mines, refineries and other assets, as well as detailed assessments of the market fundamentals across each value
chain. Our experts analyze the data and work directly with customers to address their business challenges. Our
growing customer base includes international and national energy companies, as well as chemicals, and metals
and mining companies, financial institutions, and governments. We work with a range of diverse teams, from
strategy and policy makers, business developers, and market analysts to corporate finance, risk teams and
investors.

We help businesses and governments better anticipate and manage climate and weather-related risks. We
prepare certain agencies and companies to anticipate, manage, react to, and profit from climate and weather-
related risk. We serve our customers by providing state-of-the-art research, development and analysis delivered
in reports, databases, and software solutions. We are dedicated to the advancement of scientific understanding of
the atmospheric, climate and weather, ocean, and planetary sciences. Through research conducted by our
in-house scientific staff, and often in collaboration with world-renowned scientists at academic and other
research institutions, we have developed analytical tools to help measure and observe environmental properties
and translate those measurements into actionable information.

We also offer a comprehensive suite of data and information services that enable improved compliance
with global Environmental Health and Safety, or EH&S, requirements related to the safe manufacturing,
distribution, transportation, usage, and disposal of chemicals and products. From the supply chain or solutions
life cycle, we deliver a program specific to the EH&S compliance information and management needs of our
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customers. Our full solutions life cycle and cross-supply chain approach provides a single, integrated solution for
managing customers’ EH&S capabilities, which results in improved processes and reduced cost, risk, and
liability.

Financial Services

We maintain the largest bank account consortia to provide competitive benchmarking, decisioning
algorithms, business intelligence, and customized analytic services to financial institutions, payment networks
and processors, alternative lenders, regulators and merchants — enabling better strategy, marketing, and risk
decisions. Our teams are located across U.S., U.K., Canada, Australia, New Zealand, the United Arab Emirates,
and India, delivering unique products and services to an expanding customer base. Complimenting this, we
leverage our partnerships with processors and credit bureaus, to not only augment the richness of our data, but
also to provide expanded solutions across the broad span of consumer banking and retail products. Meanwhile,
we offer services and a suite of solutions to satisfy growing customer needs for better forecasting and expense
tools, and regulatory-focused solutions. In addition, we provide solutions in the media effectiveness space given
the unique nature and strength of our partnerships, the comprehensiveness of our data and the full wallet spend
view of a consumer.

Our professionals have substantive industry knowledge about providing solutions to the financial services
sector. We are known for our unique ability to blend the highly technical, data-centered aspects of our projects
with expert communication and business knowledge. Our solutions enhance our customers’ ability to manage
their businesses’ profitably and position them better to handle present day challenges (competitive, regulatory,
and economic). Specifically, we use comprehensive transaction, risk, behavioral, and bureau-sourced account
data to assist customers in making better business decisions through analysis and analytical solutions. We
maintain a comprehensive and granular direct observation financial services industry database for credit card,
debit card, and deposit transactions.

Risk Assessment Segment

Our Risk Assessment segment serves our P&C insurance customers and focuses on the prediction of loss,
the selection and pricing of risk, and compliance with their reporting requirements in each U.S. state in which
they operate. Our customers include most of the P&C insurance providers in the U.S. In recent years, we have
expanded our offerings to also serve certain non-U.S. markets.

Industry-Standard Insurance Programs

We are the recognized leader in the U.S. for industry-standard insurance programs that help P&C insurers
define coverages and issue policies. We provide policy language, prospective loss costs, policy writing rules, and
a variety of other solutions for 29 lines of insurance. Our policy language, prospective loss cost information and
policy writing rules can serve as integrated turnkey insurance programs for our customers. Insurance companies
need to ensure that their policy language, rules, and rates comply with all applicable legal and regulatory
requirements. Insurers must also make sure their policies remain competitive by promptly changing coverages in
response to changes in statutes or case law. To meet their needs, we process approximately 2,400 regulatory
filings and interface with state regulators in all 50 states plus the District of Columbia, Guam, Puerto Rico, and
the Virgin Islands each year to ensure smooth implementation of our rules and forms. When insurers choose to
develop their own alternative programs, our industry-standard insurance programs also help regulators ensure
that such insurers’ policies meet basic coverage requirements.

Standardized coverage language, which has been tested in litigation and tailored to reflect judicial
interpretation, helps ensure consistent treatment of claimants. As a result, our industry-standard language also
simplifies claim settlements and can reduce the occurrence of costly litigation, because our language causes the
meaning of coverage terminology to become established and known. Our policy language includes standard
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coverage language, endorsements and policy writing support language that assist our customers in understanding
the risks they assume and the coverages they offer. With these policy programs, insurers also benefit from
economies of scale. We have more than 120 specialized lawyers and insurance experts reviewing changes in
each state’s insurance rules and regulations, including an average of more than 13,500 legislative bills, 9,000
regulatory actions and 2,000 court cases per year, to make any required changes to our policy language and rating
information.

To cover the wide variety of risks in the marketplace, we offer a broad range of policy programs. For
example, in the homeowners line of insurance, we maintain policy language and rules for 6 basic coverages, 292
national endorsements, and 633 state-specific endorsements.

The P&C insurance industry is heavily regulated in the U.S. P&C insurers are required to collect
statistical data about their premiums and losses and to report that data to regulators in every state in which they
operate. Our statistical agent services have enabled P&C insurers to meet those regulatory requirements for more
than 45 years. We aggregate the data, and as a licensed or appointed “statistical agent” in all 50 states, Puerto
Rico, and the District of Columbia, we report those statistics to insurance regulators. We are able to capture
significant economies of scale given the level of penetration of this service within the U.S. P&C insurance
industry.

To provide our customers and the regulators the information they require, we maintain one of the largest
private databases in the world. Over the past four decades, we have developed core expertise in acquiring,
processing, managing, and operating large and comprehensive databases that are the foundation of our Risk
Assessment segment. We use our proprietary technology to assemble, organize and update vast amounts of
detailed information submitted by our customers. We supplement this data with publicly available information.

Each year, P&C insurers send us approximately 3.8 billion detailed individual records of insurance
transactions, such as insurance premiums collected or losses incurred. We maintain a database of more than
21.0 billion statistical records, including approximately 8.6 billion commercial lines records and approximately
12.4 billion personal lines records. We collect unit transaction detail of each premium and loss record, which
enhances the validity, reliability and accuracy of our data sets and our actuarial analyses. Our proprietary quality
process includes more than 2,800 separate checks to ensure that the data meets our high standards of quality.

We provide actuarial services to help our customers analyze and price their risks. Using our large
database of premium and loss data, our actuaries are able to perform sophisticated analyses using our predictive
models and analytic methods to help our P&C insurance customers with pricing, loss reserving, and marketing.
We distribute a number of actuarial solutions and offer flexible services to meet our customers’ needs. In
addition, our actuarial consultants provide customized services for our customers that include assisting them with
the development of independent insurance programs, analysis of their own underwriting experience, development
of classification systems and rating plans, and a wide variety of other business decisions. We also supply
information to various customers in other markets including reinsurance and government agencies.

We project customers’ future losses and loss expenses using a broad set of data. Those projections tend to
be more reliable than if our customers used their own data exclusively. We make a number of actuarial
adjustments before the data is used to estimate future costs. Our customers can use our estimates of future costs
in making independent decisions about the prices charged for their policies. For most P&C insurers, in most lines
of business, we believe that our estimates of future costs are an essential input to rating decisions. Our actuarial
products and services are also used to create the analytics underlying our industry-standard insurance programs
described above.

By building on our insurance industry expertise and recent acquisitions, we have expanded our solution
set to serve customers in certain non-U.S. markets.
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Property-Specific Rating and Underwriting Information

We gather information on properties, businesses, and communities so that insurers can evaluate, price,
and efficiently process commercial insurance applications, including property, auto, general liability, business
owner’s policy, and workers compensation. Our property-specific rating and underwriting data and analytics
allow our customers to understand, quantify, mitigate, and avoid potential losses, while matching price to
exposure. Our ProMetrix® platform contains information on 6 million commercial buildings, 26 million
businesses, and virtually all communities in the U.S. We have a staff of approximately 600 field representatives
strategically located around the U.S. who observe and report on conditions at commercial and residential
properties, evaluate community fire-protection capabilities and assess the effectiveness of municipal building-
code enforcement. Each year, our field staff visits approximately 285,000 commercial properties to collect
information on new buildings and verify building attributes.

We also provide proprietary analytic measures for individual communities to mitigate losses from
important perils. Nearly every property insurer in the U.S. uses our evaluations of community firefighting
capabilities to help determine premiums for fire insurance throughout the country. We provide field-verified and
validated data on the fire protection services for approximately 46,000 fire response jurisdictions. We also offer
services to evaluate the effectiveness of community enforcement of building codes and the efforts of
communities to mitigate damage from flooding. Further, we provide information on the insurance rating
territories, premium taxes, crime risk, and hazards of windstorm, earthquake, wildfire, and other perils. To
supplement our data on specific commercial properties and individual communities, we have assembled, from a
variety of internal and select third-party sources, information on hazards related to geographic locations
representing every postal address in the U.S. Insurers use this information for policy quoting and analyzing risk
concentration in geographical areas. We also make our data and analytics available to commercial real estate
lenders to allow them to better understand risks associated with properties they lend against.

We have begun to expand our footprint of data and solutions to include both U.S. and international
markets.

Our Growth Strategy

Over the past five years, we have grown our revenues at a CAGR of 12.8% through the successful
execution of our business plan. Those results reflect strong organic revenue growth, new product development,
and acquisitions. We have made, and continue to make, investments in people, data sets, analytic solutions,
technology, and complementary businesses. The key components of our strategy include the following:

Increase Solution Penetration with Customers. We expect to expand the application of our solutions in
customers’ internal processes. Building on our deep knowledge of, and embedded position in, various
industries, we expect to sell more solutions to existing customers tailored to individual market segments.
By increasing the breadth and relevance of our offerings, we believe that we can strengthen our
relationships with customers and increase our value to their decision making in critical ways. We have
opportunities to expand solution penetration to our insurance, energy and financial services customers.

Develop New, Proprietary Data Sets and Predictive Analytics. We work with our customers to
understand their evolving needs. We plan to create new solutions by enriching our mix of proprietary data
sets, analytic solutions and effective decision support across the markets we serve. We constantly seek to
add new data sets that can further leverage our analytic methods, technology platforms and intellectual
capital.

Leverage Our Intellectual Capital to Expand into Adjacent Markets and New Customer Sectors. Our
organization is built on more than four decades of intellectual property in risk management. We believe
we can continue to expand the use of our intellectual capital profitably and apply our analytic methods in
new markets where significant opportunities for long-term growth exist. We also continue to pursue
growth through targeted international expansion. We have already demonstrated the effectiveness of this
strategy with our expansion into non insurance financial services.
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Pursue Strategic Acquisitions that Complement Our Leadership Positions. We will continue to
expand our data and analytics capabilities across industries. While we expect this will occur primarily
through organic growth, we have acquired and will continue to acquire assets and businesses that
strengthen our value proposition to customers. We have developed an internal capability to source,
evaluate, and integrate acquisitions that have created value for shareholders.

Our Customers

Decision Analytics Customers

In the Decision Analytics segment, we provide our P&C insurance solutions to the majority of the P&C
insurers in the U.S. Specifically, our claims database serves thousands of customers, representing more than
90.0% of the P&C insurance industry by premium volume, more than 25 state workers’ compensation insurance
funds, more than 500 self-insurers, approximately 400 third-party administrators, several state fraud bureaus, and
many law-enforcement agencies involved in the investigation and prosecution of insurance fraud. We estimate
that more than 80% of insurance repair contractors and service providers in the U.S. and Canada with
computerized estimating systems use our building and repair pricing data. Our customers included all of the top
30 credit card issuers in North America, the United Kingdom, and Australia, as well as 9 of the top 10 global
energy providers around the world. We also work with a wide range of companies, governments and institutions
across the energy, and metals and mining value chains.

Risk Assessment Customers

The customers in our Risk Assessment segment for the lines of P&C services we offer include the top 100
P&C insurance providers in the U.S., as well as insurers in international markets. A substantial majority of P&C
insurance providers in the U.S. use our statistical agent services to report to regulators, and the majority of insurers
and reinsurers in the U.S. use our actuarial services and industry-standard insurance programs. In addition, certain
agencies of the federal government as well as county and state governmental agencies and organizations use our
solutions to help satisfy government needs for risk assessment and emergency response information.

Our Competitors

We believe that no single competitor currently offers the same scope of services and market coverage we
provide. The breadth of markets we serve exposes us to a broad range of competitors as described below.
Businesses that we acquire may introduce us to additional competitors.

Decision Analytics Competitors

In the P&C insurance claims market and catastrophe modeling market, certain products are offered by a
number of companies, including Risk Management Solutions (catastrophe modeling), CoreLogic (property
replacement value), LexisNexis® Risk Solutions (loss histories and motor vehicle records for personal lines
underwriting), Solera Holdings, Inc. (personal automobile underwriting), and Symbility. We believe that our
P&C insurance industry expertise, and our ability to offer multiple applications, services and integrated solutions
to individual customers are competitive strengths. In the energy and specialized markets, certain products are
offered by a number of companies, including IHS Markit (natural resources), Rystad Energy (upstream), Global
Data PLC (upstream), PIRA Energy Group (oil and gas markets), and CRU Group (metals). We believe that our
global integrated value chain knowledge and insight, bottom-up proprietary data, and long-term trusted
relationships enhance our competitive position in relationship to those companies.

Risk Assessment Competitors

Our Risk Assessment segment operates primarily in the U.S. P&C insurance industry, where we enjoy a
leading market presence. We have a number of competitors in specific lines or services.

We encounter competition from a number of sources, including insurers that develop internal technology
and actuarial methods for proprietary insurance programs. Competitors also include other statistical agents, such
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as the National Independent Statistical Service, the Independent Statistical Service, Inc., and other advisory
organizations, that provide underwriting rules, prospective loss costs, and coverage language, including the
American Association of Insurance Services, Inc. and Mutual Services Organization. However, we believe that
none of our competitors have the breadth or depth of data we have.

Competitors for our property-specific rating and underwriting information are primarily limited to a
number of regional providers of commercial property inspections and surveys, including Overland Solutions, Inc.
and Regional Reporting, Inc. We also compete with a variety of organizations that offer consulting
services, primarily specialty technology and consulting firms. In addition, a customer may use its own internal
resources rather than engage an outside firm for these services. Our competitors also include information
technology product and services vendors; management and strategy consulting firms, such as Deloitte Consulting
LLP; and smaller specialized information technology and analytical services firms, including Pinnacle
Consulting and EMB, a unit of Willis Towers Watson.

Development of New Solutions

We take a market-focused team approach to developing our solutions. Our operating units are responsible
for developing, reviewing, and enhancing our various products and services. Our data management and
production team designs and manages our processes and systems for market data procurement, proprietary data
production, and quality control. Our Joint Development Environment, or JDE, and Enterprise Data Management,
or EDM, teams support our efforts to create new information and products from available data and explore new
methods of collecting data. EDM is focused on understanding and documenting business unit and corporate data
assets and data issues, sharing and combining data assets across the enterprise, creating an enterprise data
strategy, facilitating research and product development, and promoting cross-enterprise communication. Our
Verisk Innovative Analytics, or VIA, team is a corporate center of excellence for analytical methods in applying
modeling techniques to predict risk outcomes.

Our software development teams build the technology used in many of our solutions. As part of our
product development process, we continually solicit feedback from our customers on the value of our products
and services and the market’s needs. We have established an extensive system of customer advisory panels that
meet regularly throughout the year to help us respond effectively to the needs of our markets. In addition, we use
frequent sales calls, executive visits, user group meetings, and other industry forums to gather information to
align our product development efforts with the needs of the market. We also use a variety of market research
techniques to enhance our understanding of our customers and the markets in which they operate.

We add to our offerings through an active acquisition program. Since 2013, we have acquired 22
businesses, which have allowed us to enter new markets, offer new solutions and enhance the value of existing
services with additional proprietary sources of data.

When we find it advantageous, we augment our proprietary data sources and systems by forming
alliances with other leading information providers and technology companies and integrating their product
offerings into our offerings. This approach gives our customers the opportunity to obtain the information they
need from a single source and more easily integrate the information into their workflows.

Sales, Marketing, and Customer Support

We sell our solutions and services primarily through direct interaction with our customers. We employ a
three-tier sales structure that includes salespeople, technical consultants, and sales support. As of December 31,
2017, we had a sales force of 312 people in our continuing operations. Within the company, several areas have
sales teams that specialize in specific products and services. Those specialized sales teams sell specific, highly
technical solution sets to targeted markets in coordination with account management.
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To provide account management to our largest customers in the insurance, energy and financial markets,
we segment our customers into three groups. Tier One or “Global/National” Accounts, comprise of our largest
customers. Tier Two, or “Strategic” Accounts, represent both large and middle market customer groups. Tier
Three is composed of small and specialized companies that may represent one line of business, may be regionally
focused, or are recent new entrants into the marketplace. In Tier One and Tier Two segments, we have sales
teams organized by the following specialties: Personal or Commercial Lines Underwriting & Pricing, Claims,
Catastrophe Risk, and Energy. In the Tier Three segment, we assign a sales generalist with overall account
management responsibility. Our tiered approach has proven to be a successful sales model and approach to
building customer relationships. Our senior executives regularly engage with the senior management of our
customers to ensure customer satisfaction and strategic alignment and to support mutual innovation partnership
opportunities.

Sales people participate in both sales and customer-service activities. They provide direct support,
interacting frequently with assigned customers to assure a satisfactory experience using our services. Salespeople
primarily seek out new sales opportunities and work with the various sales teams to coordinate sales activities and
ensure our solutions fit the customer’s needs. We believe our salespeople’s product knowledge, skills to develop
relationships of trust, and local presence differentiate us from our competition. Technical consultants are subject
matter experts and work with salespeople on specific opportunities for their assigned products and segments. Both
salespeople and technical consultants have responsibility for identifying new sales opportunities. A team approach
and a common customer relationship management system allow for effective coordination among the groups.

Sources of Our Data

The data we use to perform our analytics and power our solutions is sourced through seven different kinds
of data arrangements. First, we gather data from our customers within agreements that also permit our customers to
use the solutions created from their data. Those agreements remain in effect unless the data contributor chooses to
opt out. It is very rare that contributors elect not to continue providing us data. Second, we have agreements with
data contributors in which we specify the particular uses of their data and provide their required levels of privacy,
protection of data, and where necessary, de-identification of data. The agreements represent no cost to us, generally
feature a specified period of time for the data contributions, and require renewal. Third, we “mine” data found
inside the transactions supported by our solutions; as an example, we use the claims settlement data generated inside
our repair cost estimating solution to improve the cost factors used in our models. Again, those arrangements
represent no cost to us, and we obtain the consent of our customers to make use of their data in this way. Fourth, we
source data generally at no cost from public sources, including federal, state, and local governments. Fifth, we
gather data about the physical characteristics of commercial properties through the direct observation of our field
staff members, who also perform property surveys at the request of, and facilitated by, property insurers. Sixth, we
independently collect data on geographic and spatially referenced information relating to residential and commercial
structures by using the latest remote sensing and machine learning technologies. Lastly, we purchase data from data
aggregators under contracts that reflect prevailing market pricing for the data elements purchased, including county
tax assessor records, descriptions of hazards such as flood plains and professional licenses. We are the owners of the
derivative solutions we create using the data we collect.

Information Technology

Technology

Our information technology systems and the more recent adoption of cloud computing are fundamental to
our success. They are used for the storage, processing, access, and delivery of the data that forms the foundation
of our business and the development and delivery of the solutions we provide to our customers. Much of the
technology we use and provide to our customers is developed, maintained, and supported by approximately
20.0% of our employee population. We generally own, or have secured ongoing rights to use for the purposes of
our business, all the customer-facing applications that are material to our operations. We support and implement
a mix of technologies and focus on implementing the most efficient technology for any given business
requirement or task.
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Data Centers

We have two primary data centers in Somerset, New Jersey and Lehi, Utah, creating redundancy and back
up capabilities. In addition, we have data centers located in other states dedicated to certain business units.

Disaster Recovery

We are committed to a framework for business continuity management and carry out annual reviews of
the state of preparedness of each business unit. All of our critical databases, systems and contracted customer
services are also regularly recovered. We also have documented disaster recovery plans in place for each of our
major data centers and each of our solutions. The data center in Somerset, New Jersey is the recovery site for the
Lehi, Utah data center and vice versa.

Security

We have adopted a wide range of measures to ensure the security of our IT infrastructure and data. Security
measures generally cover the following key areas: physical security, logical security of the perimeter, network
security such as firewalls, logical access to the operating systems, deployment of virus detection software, and
appropriate policies and procedures relating to removable media such as laptops. All laptops are encrypted, and
media leaving our premises and sent to third-party storage facilities are also encrypted. Our commitment to security
has earned CyberTrust Security Certification (an industry leader in information security certification) since 2002.

Intellectual Property

We own a significant number of intellectual property rights, including copyrights, trademarks, trade
secrets, and patents. Specifically, our policy language, insurance manuals, software, and databases are protected
by both registered and common law copyrights and the licensing of those materials to our customers for their use
represents a large portion of our revenue. We also own in excess of 500 trademarks in the U.S. and foreign
countries, including the names of our products and services and our logos and tag lines, many of which are
registered. We believe many of our trademarks, trade names, service marks, and logos to be of material
importance to our business, as they assist our customers in identifying our products and services and the quality
that stands behind them. We consider our intellectual property to be proprietary, and we rely on a combination of
statutory (for example, copyright, trademark, trade secret, and patent) and contractual safeguards in a
comprehensive intellectual property enforcement program to protect it wherever it is used.

We also own several patents and have several pending patent applications in the U.S. that complement
our products. The patents and patent applications include claims, that pertain to technology, including a patent
for our Liability Navigator™ product. We believe the protection of our proprietary technology is important to our
success and we will continue to seek to protect those intellectual property assets for which we have expended
substantial research and development capital and that are material to our business.

To maintain control of our intellectual property, we enter into license agreements with our customers,
granting each customer a license to use our products and services, including our software and databases. This
helps maintain the integrity of our proprietary intellectual property and to protect the embedded information and
technology contained in our solutions. As a general practice, employees, contractors and other parties with access
to our proprietary information sign agreements that prohibit the unauthorized use or disclosure of our proprietary
rights, information and technology.

Employees

As of December 31, 2017, we employed 7,079 full-time and 225 part-time employees in our continuing
operations. None of our employees are represented by unions. We consider our relationship with our employees
to be good and have not experienced interruptions of operations due to labor disagreements.
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Our employees include more than 200 actuarial professionals, including 40 Fellows and 38 Associates of
the Casualty Actuarial Society as well as 145 Chartered Property Casualty Underwriters, 14 Certified and 19
Associate Insurance Data Managers, and more than 1,000 professionals with advanced degrees, including PhDs
in mathematics and statistical modeling who review both the data and the models.

Regulation

Because our business involves the distribution of certain personal, public, and non-public data to
businesses and governmental entities that make eligibility, service, and marketing decisions based on such data,
certain of our solutions and services are subject to regulation under federal, state, and local laws in the U.S., and
to a lesser extent, in foreign countries. Examples of such regulation include the Fair Credit Reporting Act, which
regulates the use of consumer credit report information; the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which regulates the use of
non public personal financial information held by financial institutions and applies indirectly to companies that
provide services to financial institutions; the Drivers Privacy Protection Act, which prohibits the public
disclosure, use or resale by any state’s department of motor vehicles of personal information about an individual
that was obtained by the department in connection with a motor vehicle record, except for a “permissible
purpose”, and various other federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

Those laws generally restrict the use and disclosure of personal information and provide consumers
certain rights to know the manner in which their personal information is being used, to challenge the accuracy of
such information and/or to prevent the use and disclosure of such information. In certain instances, the laws also
impose requirements for safeguarding personal information through the issuance of data security standards or
guidelines. Certain state laws impose similar privacy obligations as well as obligations to provide notification of
security breaches in certain circumstances.

We are also licensed as a rating, rate service, advisory, or statistical organization under state insurance codes in
all 50 states, Puerto Rico, Guam, the U.S. Virgin Islands, and the District of Columbia. As such an advisory
organization, we provide statistical, actuarial, policy language development, and related products and services to P&C
insurers, including advisory prospective loss costs, other prospective cost information, manual rules, and policy
language. We also serve as an officially designated statistical agent of state insurance regulators to collect policy
writing and loss statistics of individual insurers and compile that information into reports used by the regulators.

Many of our products, services and operations as well as insurers’ use of our services are subject to state
rather than federal regulation by virtue of the McCarran-Ferguson Act. As a result, many of our operations and
products are subject to review and/or approval by state regulators. Furthermore, our operations involving licensed
advisory organization activities are subject to periodic examinations conducted by state regulators, and our
operations and products are subject to state antitrust and trade practice statutes within or outside state insurance
codes, which are typically enforced by state attorneys general and/or insurance regulators.

Available Information

We maintain an Investor Relations website on the Internet at investor.verisk.com. We make available free
of charge on or through this website, our annual, quarterly, and current reports and any amendments to those
reports as soon as reasonably practicable following the time they are electronically filed with or furnished to the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. For access to the filings, click the “SEC Filings” link on the
“Financial Information” tab on our Investor Relations homepage. The contents of our website are not
incorporated into this filing. Verisk trades on the NASDAQ Global Market in the Nasdaq Global Select Market
segment under the ticker symbol “VRSK.” Our stock was first publicly traded on October 7, 2009.

The public may read and copy any materials filed by Verisk with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet
site (www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding
issuers that file electronically with the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risks and all of the other information set forth in this annual
report on Form 10-K before deciding to invest in any of our securities. If any of the following risks actually
occurs, our business, financial condition or results of operations would likely suffer. In such case, the trading
price of our securities, including our common stock, could decline due to any of these risks, and you may lose all
or part of your investment.

We could lose our access to data from external sources, which could prevent us from providing our
solutions.

We depend upon data from external sources, including data received from customers and various
government, and public record services, for information used in our databases. In general, we do not own the
information in these databases, and the participating organizations could discontinue contributing information to
the databases. Our data sources could withdraw or increase the price for their data for a variety of reasons, and
we could also become subject to legislative, judicial, or contractual restrictions on the use of such data, in
particular if such data is not collected by the third parties in a way that allows us to legally use and/or process the
data. In addition, some of our customers are significant stockholders of our company. Specifically, a portion of
common stock is owned by insurers who are also our customers. If our customers’ percentage of ownership of
our common stock decreases in the future, there can be no assurance that our customers will continue to provide
data to the same extent or on the same terms. If a substantial number of data sources, or certain key sources, were
to withdraw or be unable to provide their data, or if we were to lose access to data due to government regulation
or if the collection of data became uneconomical, our ability to provide solutions to our customers could be
impacted, which could materially adversely affect our business, reputation, financial condition, operating results,
and cash flows.

Agreements with our data suppliers are short-term agreements. Some suppliers are also competitors,
which may make us vulnerable to unpredictable price increases and may cause some suppliers not to renew
certain agreements. Our competitors could also enter into exclusive contracts with our data sources. If our
competitors enter into such exclusive contracts, we may be precluded from receiving certain data from these
suppliers or restricted in our use of such data, which would give our competitors an advantage. Such a
termination or exclusive contracts could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, and
operating results if we were unable to arrange for substitute data sources.

Fraudulent or unpermitted data access and other security or privacy breaches may negatively impact our
business and harm our reputation.

Security breaches in our facilities, computer networks, and databases may cause harm to our business and
reputation and result in a loss of customers. Our systems may be vulnerable to physical break-ins, computer
viruses, attacks by hackers and similar disruptive problems. As cyber threats continue to evolve, we may be
required to expend significant additional resources to continue to modify or enhance our protective measures or
to investigate and remediate any information security vulnerabilities or incidents. Despite efforts to ensure the
integrity of our systems and implement controls, processes, policies and other protective measures, we may not
be able to anticipate all security breaches, nor may we be able to implement guaranteed preventive measures
against such security breaches. Cyber threats are rapidly evolving and we may not be able to anticipate or prevent
all such attacks and could be held liable for any security breach or loss.

Third-party contractors also may experience security breaches involving the storage and transmission of
proprietary information. If users gain improper access to our databases, they may be able to steal, publish, delete
or modify confidential third-party information that is stored or transmitted on our networks. Our business relies
on the secure processing, transmission, storage and retrieval of confidential, proprietary and other information in
our computer and data management systems and networks, and in the computer and data management systems
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and networks of third parties. In addition, to access our network, products and services, our customers and other
third parties may use personal mobile devices or computing devices that are outside of our network environment
and are subject to their own cybersecurity risks.

In addition, customers’, employees’ or other’s misuse of and/or gaining unpermitted access to or failure
to properly secure our information or services could cause harm to our business and reputation and result in loss
of customers. Any such misappropriation and/or misuse of or failure to properly secure our information could
result in us, among other things, being in breach of certain data protection and related legislation.

A security or privacy breach may affect us in the following ways:

• deterring customers from using our solutions;

• deterring data suppliers from supplying data to us;

• harming our reputation;

• exposing us to liability;

• increasing operating expenses to correct problems caused by the breach;

• affecting our ability to meet customers’ expectations; and/or

• causing inquiry from governmental authorities.

Incidents in which consumer data has been fraudulently or improperly acquired or viewed, or any other
security or privacy breaches, may occur and could go undetected. The number of potentially affected consumers
identified by any future incidents is obviously unknown. Any such incident could materially adversely affect our
business, reputation, financial condition, operating results and cash flows.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenues from U.S. P&C primary insurers. If there is a downturn in
the U.S. insurance industry or that industry does not continue to accept our solutions, our revenues will
decline.

Revenues derived from solutions we provide to U.S. P&C primary insurers account for a substantial
portion of our total revenues. During the year ended December 31, 2017, approximately 48.9% of our revenue
was derived from solutions provided to U.S. P&C primary insurers. Also, invoices for certain of our solutions are
linked in part to premiums in the U.S. P&C insurance market, which may rise or fall in any given year due to loss
experience and capital capacity and other factors in the insurance industry that are beyond our control. In
addition, our revenues will decline if the insurance industry does not continue to accept our solutions.

Factors that might affect the acceptance of these solutions by P&C primary insurers include the
following:

• changes in the business analytics industry,

• changes in technology,

• our inability to obtain or use state fee schedule or claims data in our insurance solutions,

• saturation of market demand,

• loss of key customers,

• industry consolidation, and

• failure to execute our customer-focused selling approach.

A downturn in the insurance industry, pricing pressure or lower acceptance of our solutions by the
insurance industry could result in a decline in revenues from that industry and have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Acquisitions could result in operating difficulties, dilution and other harmful consequences, and we may
not be successful in achieving growth through acquisitions.

Our long-term business strategy includes growth through acquisitions. Future acquisitions may not be
completed on acceptable terms and acquired assets, data or businesses may not be successfully integrated into
our operations, and we may ultimately divest unsuccessful investments. Any acquisitions or investments will be
accompanied by the risks commonly encountered in the acquisitions of businesses. Such risks include, among
other things:

• failing to implement or remediate controls, procedures and policies appropriate for a larger public
company at acquired companies that prior to the acquisition lacked such controls, procedures and
policies,

• paying more than fair market value for an acquired company or assets,

• failing to integrate the operations and personnel of the acquired businesses in an efficient, timely
manner,

• assuming potential liabilities of an acquired company,

• managing the potential disruption to our ongoing business,

• distracting management focus from our core businesses,

• failing to retain management at the acquired company,

• difficulty in acquiring suitable businesses, including challenges in predicting the value an acquisition
will ultimately contribute to our business,

• possibility of overpaying for acquisitions, particularly those with significant intangible assets that
derive value using novel tools and/or are involved in niche markets,

• impairing relationships with employees, customers, and strategic partners,

• incurring expenses associated with the amortization of intangible assets particularly for intellectual
property and other intangible assets,

• incurring expenses associated with an impairment of all or a portion of goodwill and other intangible
assets due to changes in market conditions, weak economies in certain competitive markets, or the
failure of certain acquisitions to realize expected benefits, and

• diluting the share value and voting power of existing stockholders.

The anticipated benefits of many of our acquisitions may not materialize. Future acquisitions or
dispositions could result in the incurrence of debt, contingent liabilities or amortization expenses, or write-offs of
goodwill and other intangible assets, any of which could harm our financial condition.

We typically fund our acquisitions through our debt facilities. Although we have capacity under
committed facilities, those may not be sufficient. Therefore, future acquisitions may require us to obtain
additional financing through debt or equity, which may not be available on favorable terms or at all and could
result in dilution.

In addition, to the extent we cannot identify or consummate, on terms acceptable to us, acquisitions that
are complementary or otherwise attractive to our business, we may experience difficulty in achieving future
growth.

There may be consolidation in our end customer market, which could reduce the use of our services.

Mergers or consolidations among our customers could reduce the number of our customers and potential
customers. This could adversely affect our revenues even if these events do not reduce the aggregate number of
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customers or the activities of the consolidated entities. If our customers merge with or are acquired by other
entities that are not our customers, or that use fewer of our services, they may discontinue or reduce their use of
our services. The adverse effects of consolidation will be greater in sectors that we are particularly dependent
upon, for example, in the P&C insurance sector. Any of these developments could materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition, operating results, and cash flows.

If we are unable to develop successful new solutions or if we experience defects, failures and delays
associated with the introduction of new solutions, our business could suffer serious harm.

Our growth and success depends upon our ability to develop and sell new solutions. If we are unable to
develop new solutions, or if we are not successful in introducing and/or obtaining regulatory approval or
acceptance for new solutions, or products we develop face sufficient pricing pressure to make them unattractive
to pursue, we may not be able to grow our business, or growth may occur more slowly than we anticipate. In
addition, significant undetected errors or delays in new solutions may affect market acceptance of our solutions
and could harm our business, financial condition or results of operations. In the past, we have experienced delays
while developing and introducing new solutions, primarily due to difficulties in developing models, acquiring
data and adapting to particular operating environments. Errors or defects in our solutions that are significant, or
are perceived to be significant, could result in rejection of our solutions, damage to our reputation, loss of
revenues, diversion of development resources, an increase in product liability claims, and increases in service and
support costs and warranty claims.

We will continue to rely upon proprietary technology rights, and if we are unable to protect them, our
business could be harmed.

Our success depends, in part, upon our intellectual property rights. To date, we have relied primarily on a
combination of copyright, patent, trade secret, and trademark laws and nondisclosure and other contractual
restrictions on copying and distribution to protect our proprietary technology. This protection of our proprietary
technology is limited, and our proprietary technology could be used by others without our consent. In addition,
patents may not be issued with respect to our pending or future patent applications, and our patents may not be
upheld as valid or may not prevent the development of competitive products. Businesses we acquire also often
involve intellectual property portfolios, which increase the challenges we face in protecting our strategic
advantage. Any disclosure, loss, invalidity of, or failure to protect our intellectual property could negatively
impact our competitive position, and ultimately, our business. Our protection of our intellectual property rights in
the U.S. or abroad may not be adequate and others, including our competitors, may use our proprietary
technology without our consent. Furthermore, litigation may be necessary to enforce our intellectual property
rights, to protect our trade secrets, or to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. Such
litigation could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and could harm our business, financial
condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

We could face claims for intellectual property infringement, which if successful could restrict us from using
and providing our technologies and solutions to our customers.

There has been substantial litigation and other proceedings, particularly in the U.S., regarding patent and
other intellectual property rights in the information technology industry. There is a risk that we are infringing, or
may in the future infringe, the intellectual property rights of third parties. We monitor third-party patents and
patent applications that may be relevant to our technologies and solutions and we carry out freedom to operate
analysis where we deem appropriate. However, such monitoring and analysis has not been, and is unlikely in the
future to be, comprehensive, and it may not be possible to detect all potentially relevant patents and patent
applications. Since the patent application process can take several years to complete, there may be currently
pending applications, unknown to us, that may later result in issued patents that cover our products and
technologies. As a result, we may infringe existing and future third-party patents of which we are not aware. As
we expand our operations there is a higher risk that such activity could infringe the intellectual property rights of
third parties.
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Third-party intellectual property infringement claims and any resultant litigation against us or our
technology partners or providers, could subject us to liability for damages, restrict us from using and providing
our technologies and solutions or operating our business generally, or require changes to be made to our
technologies and solutions. Even if we prevail, litigation is time consuming and expensive to defend and would
result in the diversion of management’s time and attention.

If a successful claim of infringement is brought against us and we fail to develop non-infringing
technologies and solutions or to obtain licenses on a timely and cost effective basis, this could materially
adversely affect our business, reputation, financial condition, operating results, and cash flows.

Regulatory developments could negatively impact our business.

Because personal, public and non-public information is stored in some of our databases, we are
vulnerable to government regulation and adverse publicity concerning the use of our data. We provide many
types of data and services that already are subject to regulation under the Fair Credit Reporting Act, Gramm-
Leach-Bliley Act, Driver’s Privacy Protection Act, the European Union’s Data Protection Directive and its
successor the General Data Protection Regulation, the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act and to a lesser extent, various other federal, state, and local laws and regulations. These laws and regulations
are designed to protect the privacy of the public and to prevent the misuse of personal information in the
marketplace. However, many consumer advocates, privacy advocates, and government regulators believe that the
existing laws and regulations do not adequately protect privacy. They have become increasingly concerned with
the use of personal information, particularly social security numbers, department of motor vehicle data and dates
of birth. As a result, they are lobbying for further restrictions on the dissemination or commercial use of personal
information to the public and private sectors. Similar initiatives are under way in other countries in which we do
business or from which we source data. In addition, on October 6, 2015 the Court of Justice of the European
Union, or E.U., invalidated the Safe Harbor provisions used by the Company and numerous other U.S. businesses
to comply with E.U.’s Data Protection Directive 95/46/EC. The Company has implemented various measures to
comply with the Data Protection Directive and the forthcoming General Data Protection Regulation, however,
there can be no assurances that such methods will not be invalidated as well. If the Company is unable to comply
with the transfer mechanisms adopted pursuant to the Data Protection Directive and the forthcoming General
Data Protection Regulation, it will impede the ability to conduct business between the U.S. and the E.U. which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

The following legal and regulatory developments also could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows:

• amendment, enactment, or interpretation of laws and regulations which restrict the access and use of
personal information and reduce the supply of data available to customers;

• changes in cultural and consumer attitudes to favor further restrictions on information collection and
sharing, which may lead to regulations that prevent full utilization of our solutions;

• failure of our solutions to comply with current laws and regulations; and

• failure of our solutions to adapt to changes in the regulatory environment in an efficient, cost-effective
manner.

We typically face a long selling cycle to secure new contracts that require significant resource
commitments, which result in a long lead time before we receive revenues from new relationships.

We typically face a long selling cycle to secure a new contract and there is generally a long preparation
period in order to commence providing the services. We typically incur significant business development
expenses during the selling cycle and we may not succeed in winning a new customer’s business, in which case
we receive no revenues and may receive no reimbursement for such expenses. Even if we succeed in developing
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a relationship with a potential new customer, we may not be successful in obtaining contractual commitments
after the selling cycle or in maintaining contractual commitments after the implementation cycle, which may
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may lose key business assets, through the loss of data center capacity or the interruption of
telecommunications links, the internet, or power sources, which could significantly impede our ability to do
business.

Our operations depend on our ability, as well as that of third-party service providers to whom we have
outsourced several critical functions, to protect data centers and related technology against damage from
hardware failure, fire, flood, power loss, telecommunications failure, impacts of terrorism, breaches in security
(such as the actions of computer hackers), natural disasters, or other disasters. Certain of our facilities are located
in areas that could be impacted by coastal flooding, earthquakes or other disasters. The online services we
provide are dependent on links to telecommunications providers. In addition, we generate a significant amount of
our revenues through telesales centers and websites that we utilize in the acquisition of new customers,
fulfillment of solutions and services and responding to customer inquiries. We may not have sufficient redundant
operations to cover a loss or failure in all of these areas in a timely manner. Certain of our customer contracts
provide that our online servers may not be unavailable for specified periods of time. Any damage to our data
centers, failure of our telecommunications links or inability to access these telesales centers or websites could
cause interruptions in operations that materially adversely affect our ability to meet customers’ requirements,
resulting in decreased revenue, operating income and earnings per share.

We are subject to competition in many of the markets in which we operate and we may not be able to
compete effectively.

Some markets in which we operate or which we believe may provide growth opportunities for us are
highly competitive, and are expected to remain highly competitive. We compete on the basis of quality, customer
service, product and service selection, and pricing. Our competitive position in various market segments depends
upon the relative strength of competitors in the segment and the resources devoted to competing in that segment.
Due to their size, certain competitors may be able to allocate greater resources to a particular market segment
than we can. As a result, these competitors may be in a better position to anticipate and respond to changing
customer preferences, emerging technologies and market trends. In addition, new competitors and alliances may
emerge to take market share away, and as we enter into new lines of business, due to acquisition or otherwise, we
face competition from new players with different competitive dynamics. We may be unable to maintain our
competitive position in our market segments, especially against larger competitors. We may also invest further to
upgrade our systems in order to compete. If we fail to successfully compete, our business, financial position and
results of operations may be adversely affected.

To the extent the availability of free or relatively inexpensive information increases, the demand for some of
our solutions may decrease.

Public sources of free or relatively inexpensive information have become increasingly available recently,
particularly through the Internet, and this trend is expected to continue. Governmental agencies in particular have
increased the amount of information to which they provide free public access. Public sources of free or relatively
inexpensive information may reduce the demand for our solutions. To the extent that customers choose not to
obtain solutions from us and instead rely on information obtained at little or no cost from these public sources,
our business and results of operations may be adversely affected.

Our financial position may be impacted by audit examinations or changes in tax laws or tax rulings.

Our existing corporate structure and tax positions have been implemented in a manner in which we
believe is compliant with current prevailing tax laws. However, changes in existing tax laws or rulings, including
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Federal, State and International, could have a significant impact on our effective tax rate, cash tax positions and
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Audit examinations with an adverse outcome could have a negative effect in
the jurisdictions in which we operate. Furthermore, the Organization for Economic Co-operation and
Development (OECD) released its Base Erosion and Profit Shifting (BEPS) action plans which may also lead to
future tax reform that could affect our results. In addition, our tax positions are impacted by fluctuations in our
earnings and financial results in the various countries in which we do business.

Our senior leadership team is critical to our continued success and the loss of such personnel could harm
our business.

Our future success substantially depends on the continued service and performance of the members of our
senior leadership team. These personnel possess business and technical capabilities that are difficult to replace.

However, as a general practice we do not enter into employee contracts with the members of our senior
management operating team, except for certain limited situations. If we lose key members of our senior
management operating team, we may not be able to effectively manage our current operations or meet ongoing
and future business challenges, and this may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

We may fail to attract and retain enough qualified employees to support our operations, which could have
an adverse effect on our ability to expand our business and service our customers.

Our business relies on large numbers of skilled employees and our success depends on our ability to
attract, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees. If our attrition rate increases, our operating
efficiency and productivity may decrease. We compete for employees not only with other companies in our
industry, but also with companies in other industries, such as software services, engineering services and
financial services companies, and there is a limited pool of employees who have the skills and training needed to
do our work.

If our business continues to grow, the number of people we will need to hire will increase. We will also
need to increase our hiring if we are not able to maintain our attrition rate through our current recruiting and
retention policies. Increased competition for employees could have an adverse effect on our ability to expand our
business and service our customers, as well as cause us to incur greater personnel expenses and training costs.

We are subject to antitrust, consumer protection and other litigation, and may in the future become further
subject to such litigation; an adverse outcome in such litigation could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, revenues and profitability.

We participate in businesses (particularly insurance-related businesses and services) that are subject to
substantial litigation, including antitrust and consumer protection litigation. In addition, our insurance specialists
are in the business of providing advice on standard contract terms, which if challenged could expose us to
substantial reputational harm and possible liability. We are subject to the provisions of a 1995 settlement
agreement in an antitrust lawsuit brought by various state Attorneys General and private plaintiffs, which
imposes certain constraints with respect to insurer involvement in our governance and business. We currently are
defending against putative class action lawsuits in which it is alleged that certain of our subsidiaries unlawfully
have conspired with insurers with respect to their payment of insurance claims. See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings.”
Our failure to successfully defend or settle such litigation could result in liability that, to the extent not covered
by our insurance, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, revenues and profitability.
Given the nature of our business, we may be subject to similar litigation in the future. Even if the direct financial
impact of such litigation is not material, settlements or judgments arising out of such litigation could include
further restrictions on our ability to conduct business, including potentially the elimination of entire lines of
business, which could increase our cost of doing business and limit our prospects for future growth.
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General economic, political and market forces and dislocations beyond our control could reduce demand
for our solutions and harm our business.

The demand for our solutions may be impacted by domestic and international factors that are beyond our
control, including macroeconomic, political and market conditions, the availability of short-term and long-term
funding and capital, the level and volatility of interest rates, currency exchange rates, and inflation. Any one or
more of these factors may contribute to reduced activity and prices in the securities markets generally and could
result in a reduction in demand for our solutions, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations
and financial condition. A significant additional decline in the value of assets for which risk is transferred in
market transactions could have an adverse impact on the demand for our solutions.

We incurred substantial additional indebtedness in connection with the acquisition of Wood Mackenzie.

In order to finance acquisitions, which are an important part of our long term growth strategy, we may
incur substantial additional indebtedness and such increased leverage could adversely affect our business. In
particular, the increased leverage could increase our vulnerability to sustained, adverse macroeconomic
weakness, limit our ability to obtain further financing and limit our ability to pursue other operational and
strategic opportunities. The increased leverage, potential lack of access to financing and increased expenses
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

General economic uncertainties, including downward trends in the energy industry, could reduce demand
by Wood Mackenzie’s customers for its products and services.

Demand for Wood Mackenzie’s products and services may be negatively influenced by general economic
uncertainties, particularly any downward trends in the energy industry. Many factors could negatively affect the
revenues, profits and discretionary spending of Wood Mackenzie’s customers. Such factors include commodity
prices (in particular, oil and coal), the state of the local economy, interest rates, currency exchange rates, political
uncertainty or restrictions and regulations, the availability of industry resources, and other matters. A downturn
or perceived downturn in the economy, particularly the energy industry, could add pricing pressure, delay
subscription renewals or lead to more challenging or protracted fee negotiations or generally lower acceptance of
our solutions by Wood Mackenzie’s customers, which could cause a decline in our revenues and have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our operations are subject to additional risks inherent in international operations.

Wood Mackenzie is based in the United Kingdom, or U.K., and conducts its principal operations outside
the U.S. As a result, the percentage of our revenues generated outside of the U.S. has increased materially.
Conducting extensive international operations subjects us to risks that are inherent in international operations,
including challenges posed by different pricing environments and different forms of competition; lack of
familiarity and burdens of complying with foreign laws, legal standards, regulatory requirements, tariffs and
other barriers; unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, taxes, trade laws, tariffs, export quotas, custom
duties, or other trade restrictions; differing technology standards; difficulties in collecting accounts receivable;
difficulties in managing and staffing international operations; varying expectations as to employee standards;
potentially adverse tax consequences, including possible restrictions on the repatriation of earnings; and reduced
or varied protection for intellectual property rights in some countries. Moreover, international operations could
be interrupted and negatively affected by economic changes, geopolitical regional conflicts, terrorist activity,
political unrest, civil strife, acts of war, and other economic or political uncertainties. All of these risks could
result in increased costs or decreased revenues, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We are subject to the increased risk of exchange rate fluctuations.

The revenues and costs of Wood Mackenzie are primarily denominated in pound sterling. As a result of
our acquisition of Wood Mackenzie, we face greater exposure to movements in currency exchange rates, which
may cause our revenue and operating results to differ materially from expectations. Our operating results could
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be negatively affected depending on the amount of revenue and expense denominated in foreign currencies. As
exchange rates vary, revenue, cost of revenue, operating expenses, and other operating results, when remeasured
in U.S. dollars, may differ materially from expectations. Although we may apply certain strategies to mitigate
foreign currency risk, these strategies may not eliminate our exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations and
would involve costs and risks of their own, such as ongoing management time and expertise, external costs to
implement the strategies and potential accounting implications.

Economic and political instability and potential unfavorable changes in laws and regulations resulting from
the U.K.’s exit from the E.U. could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

The results of the referendum on June 23, 2016 in the U.K., to exit the E.U., which is commonly referred to
as “Brexit,” and to potentially significantly change the U.K.’s relationship with the E.U. and the laws and
regulations impacting business conducted between the U.K. and E.U. countries could disrupt the overall stability of
the E.U. given the diverse economic and political circumstances of individual E.U. countries and negatively impact
our European operations. An immediate consequence of the Brexit vote was an adverse impact to global markets,
including currency markets which experienced a sharp drop in the value of the British pound. Longer term, Brexit
will require negotiations regarding the future terms of the U.K.’s relationship with the E.U., which could result in
the U.K. losing access to certain aspects of the single E.U. market and the global trade deals negotiated by the E.U.
on behalf of its members. The Brexit vote and the perceptions as to the impact of the withdrawal of the U.K. may
adversely affect business activity, political stability and economic conditions in the U.K., the E.U. and elsewhere,
the impact of which could have an adverse effect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

If there are substantial sales of our common stock, our stock price could decline.

The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of
our common stock in the market, or the perception that these sales could occur. These sales, or the possibility that
these sales may occur, also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and
at a price that we deem attractive. As of December 31, 2017, our ten largest shareholders owned 41.0% of our
common stock, including 4.4% of our common stock owned by our Employee Stock Ownership Plan or ESOP.
Such stockholders are able to sell their common stock in the public market from time to time without registration,
and subject to limitations on the timing, amount and method of those sales imposed by securities laws. If any of
these stockholders were to sell a large number of their common stock, the market price of our common stock
could decline significantly. In addition, the perception in the public markets that sales by them might occur could
also adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Pursuant to our equity incentive plans, options to purchase approximately 8,703,249 shares of common
stock were outstanding as of February 16, 2018. We filed a registration statement under the Securities Act, which
covers the shares available for issuance under our equity incentive plans (including for such outstanding options) as
well as shares held for resale by our existing stockholders that were previously issued under our equity incentive
plans. Such further issuance and resale of our common stock could cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Also, in the future, we may issue our securities in connection with investments and acquisitions. The
amount of our common stock issued in connection with an investment or acquisition could constitute a material
portion of our then outstanding common stock.

Our capital structure, level of indebtedness and the terms of anti-takeover provisions under Delaware law
and in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws could diminish the value of our
common stock and could make a merger, tender offer or proxy contest difficult or could impede an attempt
to replace or remove our directors.

We are a Delaware corporation and the anti-takeover provisions of the Delaware General Corporation
Law may discourage, delay or prevent a change in control by prohibiting us from engaging in a business
combination with an interested stockholder for a period of three years after the person becomes an interested
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stockholder, even if a change of control would be beneficial to our existing stockholders. In addition, our
certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a change in our management or control
over us that stockholders may consider favorable or make it more difficult for stockholders to replace directors
even if stockholders consider it beneficial to do so. Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws:

• authorize the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock that could be issued by our board of directors to
increase the number of outstanding shares to thwart a takeover attempt,

• prohibit cumulative voting in the election of directors, which would otherwise allow holders of less
than a majority of the stock to elect some directors,

• require that vacancies on the board of directors, including newly-created directorships, be filled only by
a majority vote of directors then in office,

• limit who may call special meetings of stockholders,

• prohibit stockholder action by written consent, requiring all stockholder actions to be taken at a
meeting of the stockholders, and

• establish advance notice requirements for nominating candidates for election to the board of directors
or for proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law may inhibit potential acquisition bids
for us. As a public company, we are subject to Section 203, which regulates corporate acquisitions and limits the
ability of a holder of 15.0% or more of our stock from acquiring the rest of our stock. Under Delaware law, a
corporation may opt out of the anti-takeover provisions, but we do not intend to do so.

These provisions may prevent a stockholder from receiving the benefit from any premium over the
market price of our common stock offered by a bidder in a potential takeover. Even in the absence of an attempt
to effect a change in management or a takeover attempt, these provisions may adversely affect the prevailing
market price of our common stock if they are viewed as discouraging takeover attempts in the future.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable.

Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are in Jersey City, New Jersey. As of December 31, 2017, our principal offices consisted
of the following properties:

Location Square Feet Lease Expiration Date

Jersey City, New Jersey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 352,765 December 31, 2033
Lehi, Utah . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200,000 January 31, 2024
Boston, Massachusetts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69,806 November 30, 2020
White Plains, New York . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63,461 September 29, 2021
Houston, Texas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56,584 April 30, 2023

We also lease offices in 24 states in the U.S., and offices outside the U.S. to support our international
operations in Argentina, Australia, Austria, Bahrain, Brazil, Canada, China, Denmark, Germany, India,
Indonesia, Ireland, Israel, Japan, Kazakhstan, Malaysia, Mexico, Nepal, New Zealand, Nigeria, Peru, Russia,
Singapore, South Africa, South Korea, Spain, Thailand, the United Arab Emirates, and the U.K.

We believe that our properties are in good operating condition and adequately serve our current business
operations. We also anticipate that suitable additional or alternative space, including those under lease options,
will be available at commercially reasonable terms for future expansion.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are party to legal proceedings with respect to a variety of matters in the ordinary course of business,
including those matters described below. With respect to the ongoing matters, we are unable, at the present time,
to determine the ultimate resolution of or provide a reasonable estimate of the range of possible loss attributable
to these matters or the impact they may have on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows. This is
primarily because the matters are generally in early stages and discovery has either not commenced or been
completed. Although we believe we have strong defenses and intend to vigorously defend these matters, we
could in the future incur judgments or enter into settlements of claims that could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Intellicorp Records, Inc. Litigation

On September 9, 2015, we were served with a nationwide putative class action complaint filed in the
Court of Common Pleas, Cuyahoga County in Ohio naming our subsidiary Intellicorp Records, Inc., or
Intellicorp, titled Sherri Legrand v. Intellicorp Records, Inc. and The Cato Corporation et al. Defendants removed
the case to the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio on October 8, 2015. Plaintiffs filed
their First Amended Class Action Complaint on November 5, 2015, or Amended Complaint, which like the prior
complaint claims violations of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, or FCRA and alleges two putative class claims
against Intellicorp, namely (i) a section 1681k(a) claim on behalf of all individuals who were the subjects of
consumer reports furnished by Intellicorp, which contained public record information in the “Government
Sanctions” section of the report on or after September 4, 2013 and continuing through the date the class list is
prepared, and (ii) a section 1681e(b) claim on behalf of all individuals who were the subjects of consumer reports
furnished by Intellicorp, which contained public record information in the “Government Sanctions” section of the
report where the address or social security number of the subject of the report do not match the social security
number or address contained in the government database on or after September 4, 2013 and continuing through
the date the class list is prepared. Count I of the Amended Complaint alleges that defendant Cato violated the
FCRA by procuring consumer reports on the plaintiff and other class members without making the stand-alone
disclosure required by FCRA section 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i). Counts II and III allege that Intellicorp violated the
FCRA section 1681e (b) by failing to follow reasonable procedures to assure maximum accuracy of the adverse
information included in its consumer reports and FCRA section 1681k (a) by failing to maintain strict procedures
to assure that the public record information reported, which was likely to have an adverse effect on the consumer
was complete and up to date, respectively. The Amended Complaint alleges that defendants acted willfully and
seeks statutory damages for the classes in an amount not less than one hundred dollars and not more than one
thousand dollars per violation, punitive damages, equitable relief, costs and attorney’s fees.

On April 24, 2017, the parties agreed to resolve the litigation in a Settlement Agreement and Release and
plaintiffs filed their Motion for Preliminary Approval of the settlement on the same day. The settlement provides
for a non-material cash payment by us, as well as certain non-monetary relief. The District Court granted the
Motion for Preliminary Approval on April 25, 2017 and issued its Final Approval Order on October 31, 2017.

Xactware Solutions, Inc. Patent Litigation

On October 8, 2015, we were served with a summons and complaint in an action titled Eagle View
Technologies, Inc. and Pictometry International Group, Inc. v. Xactware Solutions, Inc. and Verisk Analytics,
Inc. filed in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey. The complaint alleges that our Roof
InSight, Property InSight and Aerial Sketch products infringe seven patents owned by Eagle View and
Pictometry namely, Patent Nos. 436, 840, 152, 880, 770, 732 and 454. On November 30, 2015, plaintiffs filed a
First Amended Complaint adding Patent Nos. 376 and 737 to the Patents in Suit. The First Amended Complaint
seeks an entry of judgment by the Court that defendants have and continue to directly infringe and/or indirectly
infringe, by way of inducement the Patents-in-Suit, permanent injunctive relief, damages, costs and attorney’s
fees. On May 17, 2017, the District Court so ordered a Joint Stipulated Order of Partial Dismissal with Prejudice
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dismissing all claims or assertions pertaining to Pictometry Patents Nos. 880 and 732 and certain enumerated
claims or assertions pertaining to Eagle View Patents Nos. 436, 840, 152, 770, 454, 376 and 737, or collectively
the “Patents in Suit”.

At this time, it is not reasonably possible to determine the ultimate resolution of, or estimate the liability
related to this matter.

Insurance Services Office, Inc. Litigation

On August 1, 2014, we were served with an Amended Complaint filed in the United States District Court
for the District of Colorado titled Snyder, et. al. v. ACORD Corp., et al. The action is brought by nineteen
individual plaintiffs, on their own behalf and on behalf of a putative class, against more than 120 defendants,
including us and ISO. Except for us, ISO and the defendant Acord Corporation, which provides standard forms to
assist in insurance transactions, most of the other defendants are property and casualty insurance companies that
plaintiffs claim conspired to underpay property damage claims. Plaintiffs claim that we and ISO, along with all
the other defendants, violated state and federal antitrust and racketeering laws as well as state common law. On
September 8, 2014, the Court entered an Order striking the Amended Complaint and granting leave to the
plaintiffs to file a new complaint. On October 13, 2014, plaintiffs filed their Second Amended Complaint, which
was re-filed by plaintiffs to correct errors as the Third Amended Complaint. The Third Amended Complaint
similarly alleges that the defendants conspired to underpay property damage claims, but does not specifically
allege what role we or ISO played in the alleged conspiracy. It claims that we and ISO, along with all the other
defendants, violated state and federal antitrust and racketeering laws as well as state common law, and seeks all
available relief including injunctive, statutory, actual and punitive damages as well as attorneys’ fees. On
January 15, 2016, the Court granted defendants’ motions to dismiss all claims asserted in the Third Amended
Complaint. Plaintiffs filed a motion for reconsideration of this dismissal on February 16, 2016. The Court
granted defendants’ motion to strike the motion for reconsideration on March 2, 2016 and gave plaintiffs leave to
file another motion for reconsideration in accordance with the rules which plaintiffs filed on March 11, 2016 and,
which was denied by the Court on April 25, 2016. On April 1, 2016, plaintiffs also filed a Notice of Appeal of
the Court’s January 15, 2016 Order, which dismissed all claims in the Third Amended Complaint. Plaintiffs also
filed an appeal of the Court’s denial of the motion for reconsideration, which the Court of Appeals for the 10th
Circuit consolidated with the appeal of the Court’s January 15, 2016 dismissal. Appellants filed their brief in
support of the consolidated appeal on July 21, 2016 and Appellees filed their brief in response on September 21,
2016. On April 6, 2017, the Court of Appeals for the 10th Circuit affirmed the Court’s dismissal of the Third
Amended Complaint. Appellants filed a motion for en banc reconsideration of the 10th Circuit’s affirmance of
the dismissal of the Third Amended Complaint which was denied on May 26, 2017. Appellants filed their
petition for a writ of certiorari in the Supreme Court on August 24, 2017 which was denied on October 30,
2017. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing to the Supreme Court on November 27, 2017 which was denied on
January 8, 2018.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information

Verisk trades under the ticker symbol “VRSK” on the NASDAQ Global Select Market. Our common stock
was first publicly traded on October 7, 2009. As of February 16, 2018, the closing price of our common stock was
$98.79 per share, as reported by the NASDAQ Global Select Market. As of February 16, 2018, there were
approximately 41 stockholders of record. We believe the number of beneficial owners is substantially greater than
the number of record holders, because a large portion of common stock is held in “street name” by brokers.

We have not paid or declared any cash dividends on our common stock during the two most recent fiscal
years and we currently do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock. We have a publicly announced
share repurchase plan and repurchased a total of 53,992,688 shares since our IPO through December 31, 2017.
As of December 31, 2017, we had 379,124,108 shares of treasury stock.

The following table shows the quarterly range of the closing high and low per share trading prices for our
common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Select Market for the years ending December 31:

2017 2016

High Low High Low

Fourth Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $96.45 $83.33 $84.15 $79.36
Third Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $87.32 $79.23 $85.75 $79.43
Second Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $84.37 $76.75 $81.08 $76.00
First Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $85.19 $79.35 $79.92 $65.95

Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total stockholder return on $100 invested in our common stock,
with the cumulative total return (assuming reinvestment of dividends) on $100 invested in the S&P 500 Index and
an aggregate of peer issuers in the information industry. The peer issuers used for this graph are Equifax Inc.,
Factset Research Systems Inc., IHS Markit, MSCI Inc., Moody’s Corporation, S&P Global, and Nielsen Holdings
plc. Each peer issuer was weighted according to its respective market capitalization on December 31, 2012.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

There were no unregistered sales of equity securities by the Company during 2017.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our board of directors has authorized a share repurchase program, or Repurchase Program, since May
2010, of up to $2.8 billion. As of December 31, 2017, $366.2 million remains available for share repurchases.
Under the Repurchase Program, we may repurchase stock in the market or as otherwise determined by us. These
authorizations have no expiration dates and may be suspended or terminated at any time. We had no share
repurchases for the quarter ended December 31, 2017.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected historical financial data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified by
reference to, Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this annual report on
Form 10-K. The consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and
2015 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K. The consolidated
statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the consolidated balance sheet
data as of December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 are derived from consolidated financial statements that are not
included in this annual report on Form 10-K. Results for the year ended December 31, 2017 are not necessarily
indicative of results that may be expected in any other future period.

Between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2017, we acquired 22 businesses (most notably Wood
Mackenzie on May 19, 2015), which may affect the comparability of our consolidated financial statements. Our
consolidated financial statements have been retroactively adjusted in all periods presented to give recognition to
the discontinued operations of our heathcare business and mortgage services business. The following table sets
forth our statement of operations for the years ended December 31:

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

(In millions, except for share and per share data)
Revenues:
Decision Analytics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,374.9 $ 1,270.9 $ 1,072.5 $ 780.5 $ 705.9
Risk Assessment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 770.3 724.3 688.2 650.6 618.3

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,145.2 1,995.2 1,760.7 1,431.1 1,324.2

Expenses:
Cost of revenues (exclusive of items shown
separately below) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 783.8 714.4 612.0 516.0 472.5

Selling, general and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . 322.8 301.6 278.3 187.3 186.8
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets . . . 135.6 119.1 96.6 65.4 49.2
Amortization of intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101.8 92.5 70.4 30.1 36.2

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,344.0 1,227.6 1,057.3 798.8 744.7

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 801.2 767.6 703.4 632.3 579.5

Other income (expense):
Investment income and others, net . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.2 6.1 16.9 0.2 0.3
Gain on derivative instruments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 85.2 — —
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (119.4) (120.0) (121.4) (70.0) (76.1)

Total other expense, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (110.2) (113.9) (19.3) (69.8) (75.8)

Income before income taxes from continuing
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 691.0 653.7 684.1 562.5 503.7

Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (135.9) (202.2) (196.6) (208.5) (184.8)

Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . 555.1 451.5 487.5 354.0 318.9
Income from discontinued operations, net of
tax (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 139.7 20.1 46.0 29.5

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 555.1 $ 591.2 $ 507.6 $ 400.0 $ 348.4

Basic net income per share
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . $ 3.36 $ 2.68 $ 2.95 $ 2.14 $ 1.90
Income from discontinued operations . . . . . . . — 0.83 0.12 0.27 0.17

Basic net income per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.36 $ 3.51 $ 3.07 $ 2.41 $ 2.07

Diluted net income per share
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . $ 3.29 $ 2.64 $ 2.89 $ 2.10 $ 1.85
Income from discontinued operations . . . . . . . — 0.81 0.12 0.27 0.17

Diluted net income per share . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.29 $ 3.45 $ 3.01 $ 2.37 $ 2.02

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 165,168,224 168,248,304 165,090,380 165,823,803 168,031,412

Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 168,688,868 171,171,572 168,451,343 169,132,423 172,276,360
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The financial operating data below sets forth the information we believe is useful for investors in
evaluating our overall financial performance for the years ended December 31:

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

(In millions)
Other data:
EBITDA(2):
Decision Analytics EBITDA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 589.1 $ 835.8 $ 647.7 $489.8 $413.4
Risk Assessment EBITDA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 458.7 415.5 406.5 368.8 346.9

EBITDA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,047.8 $1,251.3 $1,054.2 $858.6 $760.3

The following is a reconciliation of net income to EBITDA:

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 555.1 $ 591.2 $ 507.6 $400.0 $348.4
Depreciation and amortization of fixed and intangible assets
from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 237.4 211.6 167.0 95.5 85.4

Interest expense from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . 119.4 120.0 121.4 70.0 76.1
Provision for income taxes from continuing operations . . . . . 135.9 202.2 196.6 208.5 184.8
Depreciation, amortization, interest and provision for income
taxes from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 126.3 61.6 84.6 65.6

EBITDA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,047.8 $1,251.3 $1,054.2 $858.6 $760.3

The following table sets forth our consolidated balance sheet data as of the years ended December 31:

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

(In millions)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 142.3 $ 135.1 $ 138.3 $ 39.3 $ 165.8
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $6,020.3 $4,631.2 $5,593.7 $2,335.1 $2,492.8
Total debt(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,008.8 $2,387.0 $3,145.7 $1,426.7 $1,264.2
Stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,925.4 $1,332.4 $1,372.0 $ 211.0 $ 547.6

(1) On June 1, 2016 and March 11, 2014, we sold our healthcare business and mortgage services business,
respectively. Results of operations for the healthcare and mortgage services businesses are reported as
discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 and for all prior periods presented. As
necessary, the amounts have been retroactively adjusted in all periods presented to give recognition to the
discontinued operations. See Note 9 of our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report
on Form 10-K.

(2) EBITDA is the financial measure that management uses to evaluate the performance of our segments.
“EBITDA” is defined as net income before interest expense, provision for income taxes, and depreciation
and amortization of fixed and intangible assets. Because EBITDA is calculated from net income, this
presentation includes EBITDA from discontinued operations of our healthcare business and mortgage
services business. In addition, references to EBITDA margin, which is computed as EBITDA divided by
revenues from continuing and discontinued operations. See Note 17 of our consolidated financial statements
included in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Although EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure, EBITDA is frequently used by securities analysts,
lenders and others in their evaluation of companies, EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and
should not be considered in isolation, or as a substitute for an analysis of our results of operations or cash
flow from operating activities reported under GAAP. Management uses EBITDA in conjunction with
traditional GAAP operating performance measures as part of its overall assessment of company
performance. Some of these limitations are:

• EBITDA does not reflect our cash expenditures, or future requirements for capital expenditures or
contractual commitments.

31



• EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs.

• Although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and
amortized often will have to be replaced in the future and EBITDA does not reflect any cash
requirements for such replacements.

• Other companies in our industry may calculate EBITDA differently than we do, limiting its usefulness
as a comparative measure.

(3) Includes capital lease obligations.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our historical financial statements and the
related notes included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K, as well as the discussion under “Selected
Consolidated Financial Data.” This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from those discussed in or implied by any of the forward-
looking statements as a result of various factors, including but not limited to those listed under “Risk Factors”
and “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

We enable our customers to make better decisions about risk, investments, and operations with greater
precision, efficiency, and discipline. We also help customers across the globe protect and grow the value of
people, property and financial assets. We provide value to our customers by supplying proprietary data that,
combined with our analytic methods, creates embedded decision support solutions. We are one of the largest
aggregators and providers of data pertaining to U.S. property and casualty, or P&C, insurance risks. We offer
predictive analytics and decision support solutions to customers in rating, underwriting, claims, catastrophe and
weather risk, global risk analytics, natural resources intelligence, and many other fields. Refer to Item 1.
Business for further discussion.

Our customers use our solutions to make better decisions with greater efficiency and discipline. We refer
to these products and services as “solutions” due to the integration among our products and the flexibility that
enables our customers to purchase components or the comprehensive package of products. These solutions take
various forms, including data, statistical models or tailored analytics, all designed to allow our customers to make
more logical decisions. We believe our solutions for analyzing risk positively impact our customers’ revenues
and help them better manage their costs.

We organize our business in two segments: Decision Analytics and Risk Assessment. Our Decision
Analytics segment provides solutions to our customer in insurance, energy and specialized markets, and financial
services. Our Decision Analytics segment revenues represented approximately 64.1% and 63.7% of our revenues
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Our Risk Assessment segment provides
statistical, actuarial and underwriting data for the U.S. P&C insurance industry. Our Risk Assessment segment
revenues represented 35.9% and 36.3% of our revenues for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

On June 1, 2016, we sold our healthcare business, Verisk Health. Results of operations for the healthcare
business are reported as discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 and for all prior periods
presented. See Note 9 of our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K. As
necessary, the amounts have been retroactively adjusted in all periods presented to give recognition to the
discontinued operations.

Executive Summary

Key Performance Metrics

We believe our business’s ability to grow recurring revenue and generate positive cash flow is the key
indicator of the successful execution of our business strategy. We use year-over-year revenue and EBITDA
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growth as metrics to measure our performance. EBITDA and EBITDA margin are non-GAAP financial measures
(see Note 2 within Item 6. Selected Financial Data section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations). The respective GAAP financial measures are net income and net
income margin.

Revenue growth. We use year-over-year revenue growth as a key performance metric. We assess revenue
growth based on our ability to generate increased revenue through increased sales to existing customers, sales to
new customers, sales of new or expanded solutions to existing and new customers, and strategic acquisitions of
new businesses.

EBITDA growth. We use EBITDA growth as a proxy for the cash generated by the business. EBITDA
growth serves as a measure of our ability to balance the size of revenue growth with cost management and
investing for future growth.

EBITDA margin. We use EBITDA margin as a metric to assess segment performance and scalability of
our business. We assess EBITDA margin based on our ability to increase revenues while controlling expense
growth.

Revenues

We earn revenues through subscriptions, long-term agreements and on a transactional basis, recurring and
non-recurring. Subscriptions for our solutions are generally paid in advance of rendering services either quarterly
or in full upon commencement of the subscription period, which is usually for one year and automatically
renewed each year. As a result, the timing of our cash flows generally precedes our recognition of revenues and
income and our cash flow from operations tends to be higher in the first quarter as we receive subscription
payments. Examples of these arrangements include subscriptions that allow our customers to access our
standardized coverage language, our claims fraud database or our actuarial services throughout the subscription
period. In general, we experience minimal revenue seasonality within the business. Our long-term agreements are
generally for periods of three to five years. We recognize revenue from subscriptions ratably over the term of the
subscription and most long-term agreements are recognized ratably over the term of the agreement.

Certain of our solutions are also paid for by our customers on a transactional basis. For example, we have
solutions that allow our customers to obtain property-specific rating and underwriting information to price a
policy on a commercial building, or compare a P&C insurance, medical or workers’ compensation claim with
information in our databases. We also provide advisory services, which help our customers get more value out of
our analytics and their subscriptions. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, 19.2% and 16.5% of our
revenues were derived from providing transactional recurring and non-recurring solutions, respectively. We earn
these revenues as our solutions are delivered or services performed. In general, they are billed monthly at the end
of each month.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, 75.2% and 78.6% of the revenues in our Decision
Analytics segment were derived from subscriptions and long-term agreements for our solutions, respectively. For
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, 90.8% and 92.0% of the revenues in our Risk Assessment segment
were derived from subscriptions and long-term agreements for our solutions, respectively. Our customers in this
segment include most of the P&C insurance providers in the U.S.

Principal Operating Costs and Expenses

Personnel expenses are a major component of both our cost of revenues and selling, general and
administrative expenses. Personnel expenses, which represented 50.1% and 47.7% of our total expenses for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, include salaries, benefits, incentive compensation, equity
compensation costs, sales commissions, employment taxes, recruiting costs, and outsourced temporary agency
costs.
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We allocate personnel expenses between two categories, cost of revenues and selling, general and
administrative costs, based on the actual costs associated with each employee. We categorize employees who
maintain our solutions as cost of revenues, and all other personnel, including executive managers, sales people,
marketing, business development, finance, legal, human resources, and administrative services, as selling,
general and administrative expenses. A significant portion of our other operating costs, such as facilities and
communications, are either captured within cost of revenues or selling, general and administrative expense based
on the nature of the work being performed.

While we expect to grow our headcount over time to take advantage of our market opportunities, we
believe that the economies of scale in our operating model will allow us to grow our personnel expenses at a
lower rate than revenues. Historically, our EBITDA margin has improved because we have been able to increase
revenues without a proportionate corresponding increase in expenses. However, part of our corporate strategy is
to invest in new solutions, which may offset margin expansion.

Cost of Revenues. Our cost of revenues consists primarily of personnel expenses. Cost of revenues also
includes the expenses associated with the acquisition and verification of data, the maintenance of our existing
solutions and the development and enhancement of our next-generation solutions. Our cost of revenues excludes
depreciation and amortization.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense. Our selling, general and administrative expense also
consists primarily of personnel costs. A portion of the other operating costs such as facilities, insurance and
communications are allocated to selling, general and administrative costs based on the nature of the work being
performed by the employee. Our selling, general and administrative expenses excludes depreciation and
amortization.

Trends Affecting Our Business

We serve customers in three primary vertical markets: P&C insurance, energy, and financial services. The
industry trends in each of those markets can affect our business.

A significant change in P&C insurers’ profitability could affect the demand for our solutions. For
insurers, the keys to profitability include increasing investment income, premium growth and disciplined
underwriting of risks. Investment income remains under pressure as a result of low interest rates. Growth in P&C
insurers’ direct written premiums is cyclical, with total industry premium growth receding from a peak of 14.8%
in 2002 to a trough of negative 3.1% in 2009 and subsequently recovering to 4.4% in 2012, 4.3% in 2013, 4.4%
in 2014, 3.7% in 2015 and 3.7% in 2016. In recent years, we have signed multi-year contracts with certain
customers, and pricing is fixed at the beginning of each multi-year period; pricing for other customers is still
linked to prior years’ premiums.

Based on our experience, insurers more closely scrutinize their spending in periods of more challenging
growth and tend to focus on making an underwriting profit. In addition, 2017 has been a challenging year for
insurers with the catastrophe losses related to the three major hurricanes — Harvey, Irma, and Maria — making
landfall in the U.S. in the third quarter 2017 causing insurance industry’s net income to decline. These events
also illustrate the need for broader coverages, such as flood to meet the changing needs of communities. We
continue to provide the necessary resources to meet insurer needs.

Trends in catastrophe and non-catastrophe weather losses can have an effect on our customers’
profitability, and therefore on their appetite for buying analytics to help them manage their risks. Any increase or
decrease in frequency or severity of weather events over time could lead to an increased or decreased demand for
our catastrophe modeling, catastrophe loss information, and repair cost solutions. Likewise, any structural
changes in the reinsurance and related brokerage industry from the recent influx of alternative capital or newer
technologies could affect demand for our products. We also have a portion of our revenue related to the number
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of claims processed due to losses, which can be impacted by seasonal storm activity. The need by our customers
to fight insurance fraud — both in claims and at policy inception — could lead to increased demand for our
underwriting and claims solutions.

Trends in the energy, chemicals, and metals and mining sectors and activity in financial markets can
influence our revenues. During 2017, oil prices showed a modest improvement and we expect a continued sense
of optimism in the energy markets in 2018. In the upstream sector there are five global trends. First, capital
investments are anticipated to grow moderately in 2018, signaling an end to the period of reductions since 2014.
Second, there is a surge in tight oil production in 2018 driven by a considerable increase from the Permian Basin
in the U.S. (a region benefiting from new fracking production technology). Third, over-supplies in the service
sector provide an opportunity for operators to lock in prices below historical market rates. Fourth, opportunities
from discovered resources and exploration have been increasingly undertaken. Several Middle Eastern countries
expect to award significant contracts to further develop discovered resources. In addition, there will likely be
growing interest in Latin American opportunities. Fifth, many countries are reviewing their existing fiscal
policies to ensure that they are competitive, as well as developing new terms to attract investment in new
opportunities. In terms of the wider energy sector, we foresee the continued growth of the electric vehicle market,
albeit from a low base, which is anticipated to develop into one of the most disruptive forces in the sector. Falling
renewable energy costs around the world will also underpin the ongoing shift towards a low carbon economy.
We will continue to evolve our offerings to meet the needs of our customers in a dynamic market and remain
increasingly well positioned to serve our customers’ information and analytical needs.

Market trends continue to influence our financial services vertical in important ways. As we look forward
towards 2018, increasing trends in delinquency and fraud rates have resulted in an increased demand for robust
risk solutions. In order to better serve our customers, add to our data asset, and expand our expertise, we made a
number of strategic acquisitions in the past year, most importantly (1) G2, which provides merchant risk
intelligence solutions for acquirers, commercial banks and their value chain partners. G2 provides solutions to
manage and monitor merchant and business risk within an increasingly complex payments ecosystem using
advanced artificial intelligence technologies combined with expert analysts. (2) LCI, a company that provides
bankruptcy management solutions to improve customer’s profitability through recovery of bankrupt accounts
while protecting the customer’s brand by conforming to industry compliance. LCI maintains bankruptcy data
(servicing more than 1.3 billion accounts), bankruptcy process automation software, expert services, and research
to automate expensive processes in the bankruptcy lifecycle. (3) Fintellix, a company that provides Risk and
Regulatory Reporting solutions to enterprise banks at a significantly lower cost of compliance, as well as
jumpstarting analytics capabilities in smaller and regional banks. We stand confident of our position with these
acquisitions, with the proprietary data and solutions we offer, to help our customers achieve their business and
regulatory objectives.

Description of Acquisitions

We acquired twenty-one businesses since January 1, 2015. These acquisitions affect the comparability of
our consolidated results of operations between periods. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements
included in this annual report on Form 10-K for further discussions on the below acquisitions.

2017 Acquisitions

On December 29, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of PowerAdvocate, Inc., or PowerAdvocate,
a provider of market, cost intelligence, and supply chain solutions serving the energy sector. Within our Decision
Analytics segment, PowerAdvocate expands our offerings to the energy sector by adding proprietary spend data
and cost models and providing insight into customers’ cost savings opportunities.

On December 22, 2017, we acquired the net assets of Service Software, LLC., or Service Software, a
provider of business management software for the construction industry. Within our Decision Analytics segment,

35



Service Software expands our offerings to the insurance sector by integrating with the existing loss quantification
solutions, which makes it possible for restoration professionals to save time by sharing job information, reducing
duplicate data entry, and increasing productivity.

On November 9, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Rebmark Legal Solutions Ltd., or
Rebmark, a provider of injury claims solutions, within the Decision Analytics segment. Rebmark’s solutions aid
claimant and defendant lawyers, barristers, and claims handlers with the preparation of schedules of loss, which
is useful in complex, high-value injury claims where calculations can be time-consuming and there is greater
potential for error.

On August 31, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Lundquist Consulting, Inc., or LCI, a
provider of risk insight, prediction, and management solutions for banks and creditors. LCI has become part of
the financial services vertical within the Decision Analytics segment. This acquisition brings together our
proprietary data assets and LCI’s proprietary time-series data, including consumer and commercial bankruptcies,
consumer behavior, and legal and technical terms associated with debtor settlements.

On August 23, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Sequel Business Solutions Ltd., or Sequel, a
provider of commercial and specialty insurance and reinsurance software based in the U.K. Sequel has become
part of the insurance vertical within the Decision Analytics segment. The acquisition of Sequel further enhances
our comprehensive offerings to the global complex commercial and specialty insurance industry, enabling
integrated global data analytics through a specialized end-to-end workflow solution.

On August 3, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of G2 Web Services LLC, or G2, a provider of
merchant risk intelligence solutions for acquirers, commercial banks, and other payment system providers. G2
has become part of the financial services vertical within the Decision Analytics segment. The acquisition of G2
positions us to further enhance our offerings to clients and partners, by providing solutions that help fight fraud,
transaction laundering, and reputational risk within the global payments and e-commerce ecosystem.

During the three months ended June 30, 2017, we acquired the net assets of Blue Skies Consulting, LLC,
ControlCam, LLC, Krawietz Aerial Photography, LLC, Richard Crouse & Associates, Inc., Rocky Mountain
Aerial Surveys, Inc., Skyview Aerial Photo, Inc., and Valley Air Photos, LLC , altogether the Aerial Imagery
acquisitions, a group of similar but unrelated companies, which give us broad geographic coverage of the U.S.
for aerial image capture purposes. The Aerial Imagery acquisitions provide multi-spectral aerial photographic
services with expertise in offering digital photogrammetric and remote sensing data for mapping and surveying
applications. Within our Decision Analytics segment, the Aerial Imagery acquisitions enable us to enhance and
maintain its database of images with the required frequency, resolution, and coverage across the U.S. to support
our objective as the leading provider of loss quantification data, analytics, and decision-support solutions to the
insurance industry, and the photogrammetry, surveying, mapping, and other related markets.

On May 19, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of MAKE Consulting A/S, or MAKE, a research
and advisory business specializing in wind power. MAKE has become part of the energy and specialized markets
vertical within the Decision Analytics segment. MAKE enhances our offering to existing customers and forms a
market analysis and advisory consortium on renewables and the transformation of the global electricity industry.
With detailed coverage of power market fundamentals, solar, wind, energy storage, and grid edge technologies,
the energy and specialized markets vertical is positioned to bring customers market analysis and insight on the
evolution of the energy landscape and provide a comprehensive platform for the future.

On March 31, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Fintellix Solutions Private Limited, or
Fintellix, a Bangalore-based data solutions company specializing in the development of data management
platforms and regulatory reporting solutions for financial institutions. Fintellix has become part of the financial
services vertical within the Decision Analytics segment. The acquisition of Fintellix positions us to expand the
data hosting and regulatory platforms and better address the increasingly complex needs of its customers.
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On February 24, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Emergent Network Intelligence Limited,
or ENI, a developer in insurance claims efficiency and fraud detection solutions based in the U.K.. With the
acquisition of ENI within the Decision Analytics segment, our customers in the U.K. can take advantage of
technologically advanced tools that allow them to improve motor vehicle claims workflow and reduce their costs
and exposure to fraud.

On February 16, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Healix International Holdings Limited, or
Healix, a software analytics provider in automated medical risk assessment for the travel insurance industry.
Healix is within our Risk Assessment segment. The acquisition further expands our offerings for the global
insurance industry, providing solutions that are embedded with customer workflows and can help underwrite
medical coverage for travelers with greater speed, accuracy, and efficiency.

On January 21, 2017, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Arium Limited, or Arium. Arium
specializes in liability risk modeling and decision support. Arium has become part of the insurance vertical
within the Decision Analytics segment, and enables us to provide its customers with additional modeling
solutions and analytics for the casualty market.

2016 Acquisitions

On November 23, 2016, we acquired the net assets of IntelliStance, LLC, or MarketStance, a provider of
market intelligence data and analytics to the property/casualty insurance market. MarketStance has become part
of our Risk Assessment segment. MarketStance has built a proprietary analytics model to provide actionable
insights on customer’s profitability that enhances our existing offerings.

On November 11, 2016, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of The GeoInformation Group Limited, or
GeoInformation, a provider of geographic data solutions. GeoInformation offers mapping services and geospatial
data and analytic solutions to companies and public sector organizations. GeoInformation’s resources
complement the risk management and predictive analytics capabilities internationally within the Risk Assessment
segment.

On October 20, 2016, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Analyze Re, Inc., or Analyze Re, a
software analytics provider for the reinsurance and insurance industries. Analyze Re has become part of our
insurance vertical within the Decision Analytics segment and enables us to provide our customers with additional
real-time pricing, exposure management, and enterprise portfolio roll-up capabilities.

On August 19, 2016, we acquired the net assets of data and subscriptions business of Quest Offshore
Resources, Inc, or Quest Offshore, which supplies market intelligence to the offshore oil and gas sector. The data
and subscriptions business has become part of the energy vertical within the Decision Analytics segment and
complements its existing upstream analysis expertise.

On July 26, 2016, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Greentech Media, Inc., or Greentech Media, an
information services provider for the electricity and renewables sector. Greentech Media has become part of the
energy vertical within the Decision Analytics segment and enables us to provide our customers with market
intelligence across several categories, including solar generation, energy storage, and smart grids that react to
changes in supply and demand.

On April 14, 2016, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Risk Intelligence Ireland Limited, or RII, a
provider of fraud detection, compliance, risk control, and process automation services to the Irish insurance
industry. RII enhances the ability of our Risk Assessment segment to serve the international insurance market.

2015 Acquisitions

On November 20, 2015, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of The PCI Group, or PCI. PCI is a
consortium of five specialist companies that offer integrated data and subscriptions research in the chemicals,
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fibers, films, and plastics sectors. PCI has become part of the energy vertical, and continues to provide services to
enhance our chemicals capabilities in the Decision Analytics segment.

On November 6, 2015, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Infield Systems Limited, or Infield.
Infield is a provider of business intelligence, analysis, and research to the oil, gas, and associated marine
industries. Infield has become part of the energy vertical and continues to provide services to enhance our
upstream and supply chain capabilities in the Decision Analytics segment.

On May 19, 2015, we acquired 100 percent of the stock of Wood Mackenzie. Wood Mackenzie is a
global provider of data analytics and commercial intelligence for the energy, chemicals, metals and mining
verticals. This acquisition advances our strategy to expand internationally and positions ourselves in the global
energy market. Wood Mackenzie is included in the energy and specialized markets vertical, formerly named the
specialized markets vertical, of the Decision Analytics segment.

Description of Discontinued Operations

On June 1, 2016, we sold our healthcare business, Verisk Health, for a price of $714.6 million. Results of
operations for the healthcare business are reported as discontinued operations for the year ended December 31,
2016 and for all prior periods presented. See Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements included in this
annual report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31, 2017 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2016

Consolidated Results of Continuing Operations

Revenues

Revenues were $2,145.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $1,995.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $150.0 million or 7.5%. Excluding revenues of $61.3 million
from RII, Greentech Media, Quest Offshore, Analyze Re, GeoInformation, MarketStance, Arium, Healix, ENI,
Fintellix, MAKE, Aerial Imagery acquisitions, G2, Sequel, LCI, Rebmark, and Service Software, collectively
referred to as our recent acquisitions, our revenue growth was $88.7 million or 4.5%. Revenues within our
Decision Analytics segment, excluding our recent acquisitions of Greentech Media, Quest Offshore, Analyze Re,
Arium, ENI, Fintellix, MAKE, Aerial Imagery acquisitions, G2, Sequel, LCI, Rebmark, and Service Software,
increased by $54.7 million or 4.3%. Revenue growth within Decision Analytics was primarily driven by our
insurance categories. Revenues in our Risk Assessment segment, excluding our recent acquisitions of RII,
GeoInformation, MarketStance, and Healix increased by $34.0 million or 4.7%. Both types of categories within
Risk Assessment, industry-standard insurance programs and property-specific rating and underwriting
information, contributed to its revenue growth. Refer to the Results of Continuing Operations by Segment within
this section for further information regarding our revenues.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues was $783.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $714.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $69.4 million or 9.7%. Our recent acquisitions accounted
for an increase of $45.3 million in cost of revenues, primarily related to salaries and employee benefits.
Excluding the impact of our recent acquisitions, our cost of revenues increased $24.1 million or 3.4%. The
increase was primarily due to increases in salaries and employee benefits cost of $30.7 million, data costs and
data processing fees of $6.1 million, information technology expense of $1.7 million and other operating costs of
$0.1 million. These increases were offset by a decrease in a nonrecurring ESOP charge of $14.5 million which
occurred in 2016. The ESOP charge was related to the stretch-out of our ESOP loan, which was paid off in 2015.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses, or SGA, were $322.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017 compared to $301.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of
$21.2 million or 7.0%. Our recent acquisitions accounted for an increase of $13.7 million in SGA, primarily
related to salaries and employee benefits and transaction costs. Excluding the impact of our recent acquisitions,
SGA increased $7.5 million or 2.5%. The increase was primarily due to increases in salaries and employee
benefits of $8.8 million, professional consulting fees of $4.0 million and other general and administrative of
$0.2 million. These increases were offset by a decrease in information technology expense of $1.2 million and a
2016 ESOP charge of $4.3 million.

Depreciation and Amortization of Fixed Assets

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets was $135.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2017
compared to $119.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $16.5 million or 13.8%. The
increase in depreciation and amortization of fixed assets includes depreciation and amortization related to our recent
acquisitions of $3.8 million. The remaining increase primarily relates to depreciation and amortization of hardware
and software development costs placed into production to support data capacity expansion and revenue growth.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets was $101.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to
$92.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $9.3 million or 10.1%. The increase in
amortization of intangible assets was primarily related to our recent acquisitions of $13.5 million offset by
currency fluctuations impacting amortization denominated in currencies other than U.S. dollars.

Investment Income and Others, Net

Investment income and others, net was a gain of $9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2017
compared to $6.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $3.1 million. The increase was
primarily related to an increase in interest income of $5.1 million generated from the subordinated promissory
note associated with the divestiture of our healthcare business. This increase was offset by a gain on sale of
equity investments of $1.5 million in 2016.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $119.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $120.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2016, a decrease of $0.6 million or 0.5%. As a result of the Second Amendment
to the Credit Facility in May 2016, which reduced the borrowing capacity from $1,750.0
million to $1,500.0 million.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was $135.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to
$202.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, a decrease of $66.3 million or 32.8%. The effective tax rate was
19.7% for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to 30.9% for the year ended December 31, 2016. The decrease
in the effective tax rate in 2017 compared to 2016 was primarily due to lowered federal income tax rates as a result of
U.S. Tax Reform and the adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, partially offset by legislation enacted in the U.K.

Net Income

The net income margin for our consolidated results, including discontinued operations, was 25.9% for the
year ended December 31, 2017 compared to 28.1% for the year ended December 31, 2016. Our net income margin
for the year ended December 31, 2017 was positively impacted by the 2017 tax reform legislation of 4.2%. Our net
income margin for the year ended December 31, 2016 was positively impacted by the discontinued operations,
including the gain on sale of our healthcare business of 5.5% and lowered by an ESOP charge of 0.6%.
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EBITDA

The EBITDA margin for our consolidated results, including discontinued operations, was 48.8% for the
year ended December 31, 2017 compared to 59.4% for the year ended December 31, 2016. Our EBITDA margin
for the year ended December 31, 2016 was positively impacted by the discontinued operations, including the gain
on sale of our healthcare business, of 10.0%, which was partially offset by the impact from an ESOP charge of
0.9%.

Results of Continuing Operations by Segment

Decision Analytics

Revenues

Revenues for our Decision Analytics segment were $1,374.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2017 compared to $1,270.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $104.0 million or
8.2%. Excluding revenues of $49.3 million from our recent acquisitions of Greentech Media, Quest Offshore,
Analyze Re, Arium, ENI, Fintellix, MAKE, Aerial Imagery acquisitions, G2, Sequel, LCI, Rebmark, and Service
Software, Decision Analytics revenues increased $54.7 million or 4.3%.

Our revenue by category for the periods presented is set forth below for the years ended December 31:

2017 2016
Percentage
Change

(In millions)

Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 784.7 $ 699.8 12.1%
Energy and specialized markets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 444.7 442.8 0.4%
Financial services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 145.5 128.3 13.4%

Total Decision Analytics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,374.9 $1,270.9 8.2%

Our insurance revenue increased $84.9 million or 12.1%. Excluding revenues of $17.1 million from our
recent acquisitions of Analyze Re, Arium, ENI, Aerial Imagery acquisitions, Sequel, Rebmark, and Service
Software, our insurance revenue increased $67.8 million or 9.7%. The increase was primarily due to an increase
within our loss quantification solutions, insurance anti-fraud claims revenue, catastrophe modeling services, and
underwriting solutions.

Our energy and specialized markets revenue increased $1.9 million or 0.4%. Excluding revenues of
$11.4 million from our recent acquisitions of Greentech Media, Quest Offshore, and MAKE, our energy and
specialized markets revenue decreased $9.5 million or 2.2% due to the continuing end-market and currency
tailwinds affecting the energy business and declines in our environmental health and safety services.

Our financial services revenue increased $17.2 million or 13.4%. Excluding revenues of $20.8 million
from our recent acquisitions of Fintellix, G2, and LCI, our financial services revenue decreased $3.6 million or
2.8%. The decrease was primarily due to several contract completions in 2016 partially offset by growth in media
effectiveness solutions.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues for our Decision Analytics segment was $557.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2017 compared to $490.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $66.3 million or 13.5%.
Our recent acquisitions within the Decision Analytics segment represented an increase of $39.6 million in cost of
revenues, which was primarily related to salaries and employee benefits. Excluding the impact of our recent
acquisitions, our cost of revenues increased $26.7 million or 5.5%. The increase was primarily due to increases in
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salaries and employee benefits of $22.9 million, data costs and data processing fees of $5.8 million, information
technology expense of $2.6 million, and other operating costs of $1.6 million. These increases were offset by a
decrease in an ESOP charge of $6.2 million that occurred in 2016.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for our Decision Analytics segment were $238.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $214.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an
increase of $23.4 million or 10.9%. Our recent acquisitions within the Decision Analytics segment, accounted for
an increase of $12.2 million in SGA, was primarily related to salaries and employee benefits and transaction
costs. Excluding costs associated with our recent acquisitions, SGA increased $11.2 million or 5.3%. The
increase was primarily due to increases in salaries and employee benefits of $8.3 million, professional consulting
fees of $3.7 million, and other general expenses of $1.8 million. These increases were offset by a decrease in
information technology expense of $0.7 million and a decrease in an ESOP charge of $1.9 million that occurred
in 2016.

EBITDA

The EBITDA margin for our Decision Analytics segment was 42.8% for the year ended December 31,
2017 and including our discontinued operations 60.4% for the year ended December 31, 2016. Our EBITDA
margin for the year ended December 31, 2016 was positively impacted by the discontinued operations, including
the gain on sale of our healthcare business, of 15.6%.

Risk Assessment

Revenues

Revenues for our Risk Assessment segment were $770.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2017
compared to $724.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $46.0 million or 6.4%.
Excluding revenues of $12.0 million from our recent acquisitions of RII, GeoInformation, MarketStance, and
Healix, revenues for our Risk Assessment increased $34.0 million or 4.7% for the year ended December 31,
2017. Our industry-standard insurance programs revenue, excluding revenues of $11.3 million from our recent
acquisitions of RII, MarketStance and Healix, increased $28.3 million or 5.1%. Our property-specific rating and
underwriting information revenue, excluding revenue of $0.7 million from our recent acquisition of
GeoInformation, increased $5.7 million or 3.3%. Revenue growth within this segment primarily resulted from an
increase in prices derived from continued enhancements to the content of the solutions within our industry-
standard insurance programs as well as selling expanded solutions to existing customers.

Our revenue by category for the periods presented is set forth below for the years ended December 31:

2017 2016
Percentage
Change

(In millions)

Industry-standard insurance programs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $593.6 $554.1 7.1%
Property-specific rating and underwriting information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 176.7 170.2 3.8%

Total Risk Assessment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $770.3 $724.3 6.4%

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues for our Risk Assessment segment was $226.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2017 compared to $223.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $3.1 million or 1.4%.
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Our recent acquisitions within this segment represented an increase of $5.7 million in cost of revenues, which
was primarily related to salaries and employee benefits. Excluding the impact of our recent acquisitions, our cost
of revenues decreased $2.6 million or 1.2%. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in an ESOP charge of
$8.3 million that occurred in 2016, decreases in information technology expense of $0.9 million and other
operating costs of $1.5 million. These decreases were offset by increases in salaries and employee benefit costs
of $7.8 million and data costs and data processing fees of $0.3 million.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for our Risk Assessment segment were $84.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $86.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, a decrease of
$2.2 million or 2.6%. Our recent acquisitions within this segment accounted for the $1.5 million in SGA
expenses, which was primarily related to salaries and employee benefits and transaction costs. Excluding costs
associated with our recent acquisitions, SGA decreased $3.7 million or 4.3%. The decrease was primarily due to
the elimination of an ESOP charge of $2.4 million that occurred in 2016, decreases in information technology
expenses of $0.5 million, and other general expense of $1.6 million. These decreases were offset by increases in
salaries and employee benefit costs of $0.5 million and professional consulting costs of $0.3 million.

EBITDA

The EBITDA margin for our Risk Assessment segment was 59.5% for the year ended December 31, 2017
compared to 57.4% for the year ended December 31, 2016. The margin for the year ended December 31, 2016
was negatively impacted by an ESOP charge of 1.5%.

Year Ended December 31, 2016 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2015

Consolidated Results of Continuing Operations

Revenues

Revenues were $1,995.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $1,760.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $234.5 million or 13.3%. Excluding revenues of
$151.0 million from Wood Mackenzie (for the first and second quarters), Infield, PCI, RII, Greentech Media,
Quest Offshore, Analyze Re, GeoInformation, and MarketStance, collectively referred to as our recent
acquisitions, our revenue growth was $83.5 million or 4.9%. Revenues within our Decision Analytics segment,
excluding our recent acquisitions of Wood Mackenzie (for the first and second quarters), Infield, PCI, Greentech
Media, Quest Offshore and Analyze Re, increased by $49.3 million or 4.8%. Revenue growth within Decision
Analytics was primarily driven by our financial services and insurance categories. Revenues in our Risk
Assessment segment, excluding our recent acquisitions of RII, GeoInformation and MarketStance, increased by
$34.2 million or 5.0%. Both categories, industry-standard insurance programs and property-specific rating and
underwriting information, within Risk Assessment contributed to its revenue growth. Refer to the Results of
Continuing Operations by Segment within this section for further information regarding our revenues.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues was $714.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $612.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $102.4 million or 16.7% . Our recent acquisitions
accounted for an increase of $56.1 million in cost of revenues, primarily related to salaries and employee
benefits. Excluding the impact of our recent acquisitions, our cost of revenues increased $46.3 million or 7.8%.
The increase was primarily due to increases in salaries and employee benefits cost of $27.2 million and an ESOP
charge of $14.5 million. Other increases include information technology expense of $5.3 million and data costs
and data processing fees of $0.9 million. These increases were offset by a decrease in other operating costs of
$1.6 million.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses, or SGA, were $301.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to $278.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of
$23.3 million or 8.3%. Our recent acquisitions accounted for an increase of $12.2 million in SGA, primarily
related to salaries and employee benefits. Excluding the impact of our recent acquisitions, SGA increased
$11.1 million or 4.5%. The increase was primarily due to increases in salaries and employee benefits of
$5.6 million, an ESOP charge of $4.3 million, and professional consulting fees of $3.0 million. These increases
were offset by decreases in information technology expense of $0.9 million and other general and administrative
of $0.9 million.

Depreciation and Amortization of Fixed Assets

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets was $119.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to $96.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $22.5 million or 23.2%. The
increase in depreciation and amortization of fixed assets includes depreciation and amortization related to our
recent acquisitions of $11.3 million. The remaining increase primarily relates to hardware and software
development costs placed into production to support data capacity expansion and revenue growth.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets was $92.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
$70.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $22.1 million or 31.2%. The increase in
amortization of intangible assets was primarily related to our recent acquisitions of $20.1 million.

Investment Income and Others, Net

Investment income and others, net was a gain of $6.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to $16.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, a decrease of $10.8 million. The decrease was
primarily related to a gain of $15.6 million in connection with the exercise and payout of common stock warrants
for the year ended December 31, 2015. This decrease was partially offset by increases attributable to interest
income of $6.5 million generated from the subordinated promissory note related to the divestiture of our
healthcare business.

Gain on Derivative instruments

Gain on derivative instruments decreased $85.2 million or 100% due to a one-time foreign currency
hedge gain realized in 2015 relating to the acquisition of Wood Mackenzie, which did not recur in 2016.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $120.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $121.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2015, a decrease of $1.4 million or 1.1%. The decrease is primarily due to the
net payments of our credit facility of $770.0 million mostly funded by the net proceeds from the divestiture of
our healthcare business.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was $202.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
$196.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $5.6 million or 2.8%. The effective tax rate
was 30.9% for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 28.7% for the year ended December 31, 2015.

43



Net Income

The net income margin for our consolidated results, including discontinued operations, was 28.1% for the
year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 24.5% for the year ended December 31, 2015. Our net income
margin for the year ended December 31, 2016 was positively impacted by the discontinued operations, including
the gain on sale of our healthcare business of 5.5% and lowered by an ESOP charge of 0.6%. Our net income
margin for the year ended December 31, 2015 was lowered by the discontinued operations of 3.2% and positively
impacted by the derivative gain and the transaction costs related to the Wood Mackenzie acquisition and the gain
on the exercise and payout of the common stock warrants of 3.2%.

EBITDA

The EBITDA margin for our consolidated results, including discontinued operations, was 59.4% for the
year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 51.0% for the year ended December 31, 2015. Our EBITDA margin
for the year ended December 31, 2016 was positively impacted by the discontinued operations, including the gain
on sale of our healthcare business, of 10.0%, which was partially offset by the impacts from an ESOP charge of
0.9%. Our EBITDA margin for the year ended December 31, 2015 was lowered by the discontinued operations
of 4.2% and positively impacted by the derivative gain and the transaction costs related to the Wood Mackenzie
acquisition and the warrant exercise of 3.6%.

Results of Continuing Operations by Segment

Decision Analytics

Revenues

Revenues for our Decision Analytics segment were $1,270.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared to $1,072.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $198.4 million or
18.5%. Excluding revenues of $149.1 million from Wood Mackenzie (for the first and second quarters) and our
recent acquisitions of Infield, PCI, Greentech Media, Quest Offshore, and Analyze Re, Decision Analytics
revenues increased $49.3 million or 4.8%.

Our revenue by category for the periods presented is set forth below for the years ended December 31:

2016 2015
Percentage
Change

(In millions)

Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 699.8 $ 647.2 8.1%
Energy and specialized markets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 442.8 308.8 43.4%
Financial services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 128.3 116.5 10.1%

Total Decision Analytics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,270.9 $1,072.5 18.5%

Our insurance revenue increased $52.6 million or 8.1%. Excluding revenues of $0.5 million from our
recent acquisition, our insurance revenue increased $52.1 million or 8.1%. The increase was primarily due to an
increase within our loss quantification solutions, underwriting solutions, insurance anti-fraud claims revenue, and
catastrophe modeling services.

Our energy and specialized markets revenue increased $134.0 million or 43.4%. Excluding revenues of
$148.6 million from Wood Mackenzie (for the first and second quarters) and our recent acquisitions of Infield,
PCI, Greentech Media, and Quest Offshore, our energy and specialized markets revenue decreased $14.6 million
or 5.5% due to the continuing end-market and currency headwinds affecting the energy business and declines in
our environmental health and safety services.
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Our financial services revenue increased $11.8 million or 10.1%, primarily due to the continued demand
for our media effectiveness services and analytic solutions.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues for our Decision Analytics segment was $490.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared to $412.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $78.7 million or 19.1%.
Our recent acquisitions within the Decision Analytics segment represented an increase of $54.8 million in cost of
revenues, which was primarily related to salaries and employee benefits. Excluding the impact of our recent
acquisitions, our cost of revenues increased $23.9 million or 6.1%. The increase was primarily due to increases in
salaries and employee benefits of $16.9 million, an ESOP charge of $6.2 million, and information technology
expense of $4.2 million. These increases were offset by decreases in data costs and data processing fees of
$0.2 million and other operating costs of $3.2 million.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for our Decision Analytics segment were $214.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $196.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an
increase of $18.4 million or 9.4%. Our recent acquisitions within the Decision Analytics segment, accounted for
an increase of $11.5 million in SGA, which was primarily related to salaries and employee benefits. Excluding
costs associated with our recent acquisitions, SGA increased $6.9 million or 4.2%. The increase was primarily
due to increases in salaries and employee benefits of $6.8 million, an ESOP charge of $1.9 million, and
professional consulting fees of $1.4 million. These increases were offset by decreases in information technology
expense of $1.3 million and other general expenses of $1.9 million.

EBITDA

The EBITDA margin for our Decision Analytics segment, including our discontinued operations, was
60.4% for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 46.9% for the year ended December 31, 2015. Our EBITDA
margin for the year ended December 31, 2016 was positively impacted by the discontinued operations, including
the gain on sale of our healthcare business, of 15.6%, which was partially offset by the impact from an ESOP
charge of 0.6%. The nonrecurring derivative gain, net of transaction costs related to the Wood Mackenzie
acquisition and the warrant exercise and payout, positively impacted our EBITDA margin by 5.4%, which was
offset by the impact from the discontinued operations of 5.9% for year ended December 31, 2015.

Risk Assessment

Revenues

Revenues for our Risk Assessment segment were $724.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to $688.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $36.1 million or 5.2%.
Excluding revenues of $1.9 million from our recent acquisitions of RII, GeoInformation and MarketStance,
revenues for our Risk Assessment increased $34.2 million or 5.0% for the year ended December 31, 2016.
Revenue growth within this segment primarily resulted from an increase in prices derived from continued
enhancements to the content of the solutions within our industry-standard insurance programs as well as selling
expanded solutions to existing customers.
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Our revenue by category for the periods presented is set forth below for the years ended December 31:

2016 2015
Percentage
Change

(In millions)

Industry-standard insurance programs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $554.1 $524.6 5.6%
Property-specific rating and underwriting information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 170.2 163.6 4.0%

Total Risk Assessment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $724.3 $688.2 5.2%

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues for our Risk Assessment segment was $223.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared to $200.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $23.7 million or 11.9%.
Our recent acquisitions within this segment represented an increase of $1.3 million in cost of revenues, which
was primarily related to salaries and employee benefits. Excluding the impact of our recent acquisitions, our cost
of revenues increased $22.4 million or 11.2%. The increase was primarily due to increases in salaries and
employee benefit costs of $10.3 million, an ESOP charge of $8.3 million, data costs and data processing fees of
$1.1 million, information technology expense of $1.1 million, and other operating costs of $1.6 million.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for our Risk Assessment segment were $86.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $81.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of
$4.9 million or 5.9%. Our recent acquisitions within this segment, accounted for an increase of $0.7 million in
SGA, which was primarily related to salaries and employee benefits. Excluding costs associated with our recent
acquisitions, SGA increased $4.2 million or 5.1%. The increase was primarily due to an ESOP charge of
$2.4 million, increases in professional consulting costs of $1.6 million, information technology expenses of
$0.4 million, and other general expense of $1.0 million. These increases were offset by a decrease in salaries and
employee benefit costs of $1.2 million.

EBITDA

The EBITDA margin for our Risk Assessment segment was 57.4% for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to 59.1% for the year ended December 31, 2015. The margin for the year ended December 31, 2016
was negatively impacted by an ESOP charge of 1.5%.
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Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our quarterly unaudited consolidated statement of operations data for each
of the eight quarters in the period ended December 31, 2017. In management’s opinion, the quarterly data has
been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements included in this annual report on
Form 10-K, and reflects all necessary adjustments for a fair presentation of this data. The results of historical
periods are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for a full year or any future period.

For the Quarters Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, Full Year

2017 2017

(in millions, except for per share data)

Statement of operations data:
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $502.6 $523.2 $549.1 $570.3 $2,145.2
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $187.7 $195.0 $208.4 $210.1 $ 801.2
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $108.8 $121.0 $120.7 $204.6 $ 555.1
Basic net income per share: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.65 $ 0.73 $ 0.73 $ 1.24 $ 3.36
Diluted net income per share: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.64 $ 0.72 $ 0.72 $ 1.22 $ 3.29

For the Quarters Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, Full Year

2016 2016

(in millions, except for per share data)

Statement of operations data:
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $492.7 $498.3 $498.1 $506.1 $1,995.2
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $192.6 $191.1 $198.4 $185.5 $ 767.6
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $109.7 $106.7 $127.6 $107.5 $ 451.5
Income from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (17.1) $155.0 $ — $ 1.8 $ 139.7
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 92.6 $261.7 $127.6 $109.3 $ 591.2
Basic net income per share: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.55 $ 1.56 $ 0.76 $ 0.65 $ 3.51
Diluted net income per share: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.54 $ 1.53 $ 0.74 $ 0.64 $ 3.45

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale securities of
$146.1 million and $138.5 million, respectively. Subscriptions for our solutions are billed and generally paid in
advance of rendering services either quarterly or in full upon commencement of the subscription period, which is
usually for one year. Subscriptions are automatically renewed at the beginning of each calendar year. We have
historically generated significant cash flows from operations. As a result of this factor, as well as the availability
of funds under our syndicated revolving credit facility, we believe we will have sufficient cash to meet our
working capital and capital expenditure needs, and to fuel our future growth plans.

We have historically managed the business with a working capital deficit due to the fact that, as described
above, we offer our solutions and services primarily through annual subscriptions or long-term contracts, which
are generally prepaid quarterly or annually in advance of the services being rendered. When cash is received for
prepayment of invoices, we record an asset (cash and cash equivalents) on our balance sheet with the offset
recorded as a current liability (deferred revenues). This current liability is deferred revenue that does not require
a direct cash outflow since our customers have prepaid and are obligated to purchase the services. In most
businesses, growth in revenue typically leads to an increase in the accounts receivable balance causing a use of
cash as a company grows. Unlike these businesses, our cash position is favorably affected by revenue growth,
which results in a source of cash due to our customers prepaying for most of our services.

Our consolidated capital expenditures as a percentage of consolidated revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, were 8.6% and 7.4%, respectively. We estimate our capital expenditures for 2018
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will be approximately $230.0 million, which primarily consists of expenditures on our technology infrastructure
and our continuing investments in developing and enhancing our solutions. Expenditures related to developing
and enhancing our solutions are predominately related to internal-use software and are capitalized in accordance
with ASC 350-40, “Accounting for Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.“ ” We
also capitalize amounts in accordance with ASC 985-20, “Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed.”

We have also historically used a portion of our cash for repurchases of our common stock from our
stockholders. For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, we repurchased $276.3 million,
$326.8 million and $20.4 million, respectively, of our common stock.

Financing and Financing Capacity

We had total debt, excluding capital lease obligations, the discounts and debt issuance costs on our senior
notes and our committed senior unsecured Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility, or the Credit Facility, of
$3,015.0 million and $2,400.0 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The debt at December 31,
2017 primarily consists of senior notes issued in 2015, 2012 and 2011 and borrowings outstanding under the
Credit Facility described below. Interest on the senior notes is payable semi-annually each year. The discount and
debt issuance costs were recorded as “Long-term debt” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, and
will be amortized to “Interest expense” in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations within this
Form 10-K over the life of the respective senior note. The indenture governing the senior notes restricts our
ability to, among other things, create certain liens, enter into sale/leaseback transactions and consolidate with,
sell, lease, convey, or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of our assets, or merge with or into, any other
person or entity. As of December 31, 2017, we had senior notes with an aggregate principal amount of
$2,300.0 million outstanding, and we were in compliance with our financial debt covenants.

We have a credit facility with Bank of America N.A., JP Morgan Chase, N.A., Sun Trust Bank, Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A., Citizens Bank, N.A., Morgan Stanley, N.A., HSBC Bank USA, N.A., Royal Bank of Canada,
BNP Paribas, TD Bank, N.A., and The Northern Trust Company. On May 18, 2017, we entered into the third
amendment to the Credit Facility, which, among other things, extended the maturity date one year to May 15,
2022. The Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital needs and
capital expenditures, acquisitions and the share repurchase program, or the Repurchase Program. The Credit
Facility contains certain financial and other covenants that, among other things, impose certain restrictions on
indebtedness, liens, investments, and capital expenditures. These covenants also place restrictions on mergers,
asset sales, sale/leaseback transactions, payments between us and our subsidiaries, and certain transactions with
affiliates. The financial covenants require that, at the end of any fiscal quarter, we have a consolidated interest
coverage ratio of at least 3.0 to 1.0 and that we maintain, during any period of four fiscal quarters, a consolidated
funded debt leverage ratio of 3.5 to 1.0. We were in compliance with all financial covenants under the Credit
Facility as of December 31, 2017. Interest on borrowings under the Credit Facility is payable at an interest rate of
LIBOR plus 1.125% to 1.625%, depending upon the consolidated funded debt leverage ratio. During the year
ended December 31, 2017, we had borrowings of $870.0 million and repayments of $255.0 million under the
credit facility. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, we had outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility of
$715.0 million and $100.0 million, respectively. In January 2018, we repaid a total of $110.0 million of the
$715.0 million outstanding borrowings at December 31, 2017 under the Credit Facility. On May 18, 2017, we
entered into the third amendment to the Credit Facility, which, among other things, extended the maturity date
one year to May 15, 2022.

OnMarch 10, 2015, in connection with our agreement to acquire WoodMackenzie, we entered into a
commitment letter for a $2,300.0 million 364-day bridge financing arrangement with Bank of America N.A. and
Morgan Stanley Bank N.A. acting as joint lead arrangers. This financing arrangement was only to be utilized in the
event we did not complete the debt and equity offerings relating to its acquisition of WoodMackenzie by a certain
date, and was terminated upon the closing of the acquisition. We paid fees associated with this financing arrangement
of $9.1 million. Due to the completion of the debt and equity offerings, this arrangement was terminated and the full
$9.1 million of fees were recorded to “Interest expense” for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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Cash Flow

The following table summarizes our cash flow data for the years ended December 31:

2017 2016 2015

(In millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 743.5 $ 577.5 $ 663.8
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(1,105.5) $ 493.2 $(3,006.3)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 362.5 $(1,064.2) $ 2,440.9

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities increased to $743.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2017 compared to $577.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. The increase of $166.0 million in net
cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to an increase in cash receipts from customers driven by
an increase in revenues and operating profit. Our net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended
December 31, 2016 also included a $99.9 million tax payment related to the gain on the sale of our healthcare
business and a one time cash funding of our ESOP plan of $18.8 million. These operating cash expenditures in
2016 did not occur in 2017.

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased to $577.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared to $663.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The decrease of $86.3 million in net
cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to the additional income tax payments of $99.9 million
related to the gain on the sale of our healthcare business and a one time cash funding of our ESOP plan of
$18.8 million, partially offset by an increase in cash receipts from customers driven by an increase in revenues
and operating profit as well as additional operating cash flow from the acquisition of Wood Mackenzie in May
2015.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities of $1,105.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 was
primarily related to acquisitions, including escrow funding, of $914.9 million and capital expenditures of
$183.5 million.

Net cash provided by investing activities of $493.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 was
primarily related to proceeds from the sale our healthcare business of $714.6 million, partially offset by capital
expenditures of $156.5 million and acquisitions including escrow payments of $74.1 million.

Net cash used in investing activities of $3,006.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 was
primarily due to acquisitions including escrow payments of $2,856.4 million, which includes the acquisition of
Wood Mackenzie, net of a gain on derivative instruments and capital expenditures of $166.1 million.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities of $362.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 was
primarily related to $615.0 million of borrowings, net under our Credit Facilities and proceeds from stock option
exercises, net of net share settlement of taxes from restricted stock, of $32.1 million, partially offset by share
repurchases of $276.3 million.

Net cash used in financing activities of $1,064.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 was
primarily related to a $770.0 million repayments of borrowings under our Credit Facilities and share repurchases
of $326.8 million, partially offset by proceeds from stock option exercises and other option-related items of
$38.0 million.
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Net cash provided by financing activities of $2,440.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 was
primarily related to the net proceeds from the debt and equity offerings of $1,244.0 million and $720.8 million,
respectively, and other borrowings from our old and new credit facilities of 830.0 million and proceeds from
stock option exercises and other option-related items of $36.4 million, partially offset by repayments of short-
term and long-term debt of $340.0 million, and repurchases of common stock of $20.4 million.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2017 and the future periods
in which such obligations are expected to be settled in cash:

Payments Due by Period

Total
Less than
1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years

More than
5 years

(In millions)

Contractual obligations
Long-term debt, current portion of long-term debt and
interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,319.8 $110.4 $454.3 $ 974.2 $1,780.9

Operating leases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 365.3 40.6 84.7 66.1 173.9
Pension and postretirement plans(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33.4 2.6 5.0 4.3 21.5
Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18.0 10.0 6.6 1.4 —
Other long-term liabilities(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.2 0.4 0.3 — 0.5

Total(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,737.7 $164.0 $550.9 $1,046.0 $1,976.8

(1) Our funding policy is to contribute at least equal to the minimum legal funding requirement.

(2) Other long-term liabilities consist of our employee-related deferred compensation plan. We also have a
deferred compensation plan for our Board of Directors; however, based on past performance and the
uncertainty of the dollar amounts to be paid, if any, we have excluded such amounts from the above table.

(3) Unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $16.3 million have been recorded as liabilities in accordance
with ASC 740, which have been omitted from the table above, and we are uncertain as to if or when such
amounts may be settled, with the exception of those amounts subject to a statute of limitation. Related to the
unrecognized tax benefits, we also have recorded a liability for potential penalties and interest of
$4.5 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based on
our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements require management to
make estimates and judgments that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and related disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and revenue and expenses during the
reporting periods. These estimates are based on historical experience and on other assumptions that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates, including
those related to revenue recognition, goodwill and intangible assets, pension and other post retirement benefits,
stock based compensation, and income taxes. Actual results may differ from these assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenues are primarily derived from sales of services and revenue is recognized as
services are performed and information is delivered to our customers. Revenue is recognized when persuasive
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evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, fees and/or price are
fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenues for subscription services are recognized
ratably over the subscription term, usually one year. Revenues from transaction-based fees are recognized as
information is delivered to customers, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria are met.

The Company also has term-based software licenses where the only remaining undelivered element is
post-contract customer support, or PCS, including unspecified upgrade rights on a when-and-if available basis.
The Company recognizes revenue for these licenses ratably over the duration of the license term. The PCS
associated with these arrangements is coterminous with the duration of the license term. The Company also
provides hosting or software solutions that provide continuous access to information and include PCS and
recognizes revenue ratably over the duration of the license term. In addition, the determination of certain of our
services revenues requires the use of estimates, principally related to transaction volumes in instances where
these volumes are reported to us by our customers on a monthly basis in arrears. In these instances, we estimate
transaction volumes based on average actual volumes reported by our customers in the past. Differences between
our estimates and actual final volumes reported are recorded in the period in which actual volumes are reported.
We have not experienced significant variances between our estimates of these services revenues reported to us by
our customers and actual reported volumes in the past.

We invoice our customers in annual, quarterly, or monthly installments. Amounts billed and collected in
advance are recorded as deferred revenues on the balance sheet and are recognized as the services are performed
and revenue recognition criteria are met.

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of equity awards is measured on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing
model, which requires the use of several estimates, including expected term, expected risk-free interest rate,
expected volatility, and expected dividend yield.

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the awards
granted, and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period. Option grants and restricted stock awards
are generally expensed ratably over the four-year vesting period. We follow the substantive vesting period
approach for awards granted after January 1, 2005, which requires that stock-based compensation expense be
recognized over the period from the date of grant to the date when the award is no longer contingent on the
employee providing additional service.

We estimate expected forfeitures of equity awards at the date of grant and recognize compensation
expense only for those awards expected to vest. The forfeiture assumption is ultimately adjusted to the actual
forfeiture rate.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition costs over the fair value of tangible net assets and
identifiable intangible assets of the businesses acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have
indefinite lives are not amortized. Intangible assets determined to have definite lives are amortized over their
useful lives. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are subject to impairment testing annually as of
June 30, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be fully
recoverable, using the guidance and criteria described in the accounting standard for Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. This testing compares carrying values to fair values and, when appropriate, the carrying value
of these assets is reduced to fair value.

As of December 31, 2017, we had goodwill of $3,368.7 million, which represents 56.0% of our total
assets. During 2017, we performed an impairment test as of June 30, 2017 and confirmed that no impairment
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charge was necessary. As part of this process, we conducted the annual impairment test of our energy reporting
unit at June 30, 2017, at which time the fair value exceeded its carrying value by less than 10.0%. This outcome
is consistent with our expectation due to the decline in the GBP/USD exchange rate as well as current energy
market conditions. The carrying value of the goodwill associated with our energy reporting unit was
$1,841.8 million as of June 30, 2017.

There are many assumptions and estimates used that directly impact the results of impairment testing,
including an estimate of future expected revenues, earnings and cash flows, useful lives and discount rates
applied to such expected cash flows in order to estimate fair value. We have the ability to influence the outcome
and ultimate results based on the assumptions and estimates we choose for determining the fair value of our
reporting units. To mitigate undue influence, we set criteria and benchmarks that are reviewed and approved by
various levels of management and reviewed by other independent parties. The determination of whether or not
goodwill or indefinite-lived acquired intangible assets have become impaired involves a significant level of
judgment in the assumptions and estimates underlying the approach used to determine the value of our reporting
units. Changes in our strategy or market conditions could significantly impact these judgments and require an
impairment to be recorded to intangible assets and goodwill. There have been no goodwill impairment indicators
subsequent to the impairment test performed as of June 30, 2017. For the year ended December 31, 2017, there
were no impairment indicators related to our intangible assets.

We allocate the fair value of the purchase consideration to the tangible assets acquired, liabilities assumed
and intangible assets acquired based on their estimated fair values. The excess of the fair value of the purchase
consideration over the fair values of these identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Such
valuations require management to make significant estimates and assumptions, especially with respect to
intangible assets. The estimates used in valuing the intangible assets are determined with the assistance of third
party specialists, a discounted cash flow analysis and estimates made by management. Management’s estimates
of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain and
unpredictable and, as a result, actual results may differ from estimates. During the measurement period, which is
not to exceed one year from the acquisition date, we may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, with the corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period, any
subsequent adjustments are recorded to earnings.

Pension and Postretirement

We account for our pension and postretirement benefit plans in accordance with the accounting standard
for Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. This standard requires
that employers recognize on a prospective basis the funded status of their defined benefit pension and other
postretirement benefit plans on their consolidated balance sheets and recognize as a component of other
comprehensive loss, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period
but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit (credit) cost.

Certain assumptions are used in the determination of our annual net period benefit (credit) cost and the
disclosure of the funded status of these plans. The principal assumptions concern the discount rate used to
measure the projected benefit obligation and the expected return on plan assets. We revise these assumptions
based on an annual evaluation of long-term trends and market conditions that may have an impact on the cost of
providing retirement benefits.

In determining the discount rate, we utilize quoted rates from long-term bond indices, and changes in
long-term bond rates over the past year, cash flow models and other data sources we consider reasonable based
upon the life expectancy and mortality rate of eligible employees. As part of our evaluation, we calculate the
approximate average yields on securities that were selected to match our separate projected cash flows for both
the pension and postretirement plans. Our separate benefit plan cash flows are input into actuarial models that
include data for corporate bonds rated AA or better at the measurement date. The output from the actuarial
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models are assessed against the prior year’s discount rate and quoted rates for long-term bond indices. For our
pension plans at December 31, 2017, we determined this rate to be 3.50%, a decrease of 0.49% from the 3.99%
rate used at December 31, 2016. Our postretirement rate was 3.00% at December 31, 2017, a decrease of 0.25%
from the 3.25% rate used at December 31, 2016.

The expected return on plan assets is determined by taking into consideration our analysis of our actual
historical investment returns to a broader long-term forecast adjusted based on our target investment allocation,
and the current economic environment. Our pension asset investment guidelines target an investment portfolio
allocation of 40.0% debt securities and 60.0% equity securities. As of December 31, 2017, the pension plan
assets were allocated 37.9% debt, 54.0% equity securities and 8.1% other. The VEBA Plan target allocation is
100% debt. We have used our target investment allocation to derive the expected return as we believe this
allocation will be retained on an ongoing basis that will be commensurate with the projected cash flows of the
plan. The expected return for each investment category within our target investment allocation is developed using
average historical rates of return for each targeted investment category, considering the projected cash flow of
the qualified pension plan and postretirement plan. The difference between this expected return and the actual
return on plan assets is generally deferred and recognized over subsequent periods through future net periodic
benefit (credits) costs. We believe these considerations provide the basis for reasonable assumptions with respect
to the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.

The measurement date used to determine the benefit obligation and plan assets is December 31. The
future benefit payments for the postretirement plan are net of the federal medical subsidy. As a result of the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, the
tax treatment of federal subsidies paid to sponsors of retiree health benefit plans that provide prescription drug
benefits that are at least actuarially equivalent to the corresponding benefits provided under Medicare Part D was
effectively changed. This legislative change reduces future tax benefits of the coverage we provided to
participants in the postretirement plan. We are required to account for this change in the period during which the
law is enacted.

A one percent change in discount rate and future rate of return on plan assets would have the following
effects:

Pension Postretirement

1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase

Benefit
(Credit)
Cost

Projected
Benefit

Obligation

Benefit
Cost

(Credit)

Projected
Benefit

Obligation
Benefit
Cost

Projected
Benefit

Obligation
Benefit
(Credit)

Projected
Benefit

Obligation

(In millions)

Discount Rate . . . . . . . . . . $(0.7) $50.1 $ 0.4 $(41.9) $ — $0.8 $ — $(0.7)
Expected Rate of Return on
Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4.3 $ — $(4.3) $ — $0.1 $ — $(0.1) $ —

Income Taxes

In projecting future taxable income, we develop assumptions including the amount of future state, federal
and foreign pretax operating income, the reversal of temporary differences, and the implementation of feasible
and prudent tax planning strategies. These assumptions require significant judgment about the forecasts of future
taxable income and are consistent with the plans and estimates we use to manage the underlying businesses. The
calculation of our tax liabilities also involves dealing with uncertainties in the application and evolution of
complex tax laws and regulations in other jurisdictions.

We account for uncertain tax positions in accordance with Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes —
an interpretation of ASC 740, which addresses the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to
be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under this interpretation, we may
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recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will
be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.

We recognize and adjust our liabilities when our judgment changes as a result of the evaluation of new
information not previously available. Due to the complexity of some of these uncertainties, the ultimate
resolution may result in a payment that is materially different from our current estimate of the tax liabilities.
These differences will be reflected as increases or decreases to income tax expense in the period in which they
are determined.

On December 22, 2017, President Trump signed comprehensive tax legislation commonly referred to as
the Tax Cuts and Job Act, or Tax Act. The Tax Act makes complex changes to the tax law which will impact the
2017 year, including but not limited to 1) a re-measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities as a result of the
corporate tax rate change from 35.0% to 21.0%, 2) 100% bonus depreciation on qualifying property placed in
service after September 27, 2017, and 3) requiring a one-time repatriation tax on foreign earnings.

Based on our initial analysis of the Tax Act, we have made reasonable estimates of its 2017 impact and
have recorded provisional adjustments as follows:

1) Due to the federal corporate rate reduction, a re-measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
resulted in the recording of a benefit of approximately $89.1 million.

2) 100% bonus depreciation on qualifying assets resulted in an estimated decrease to the current
income tax payable of approximately $8.0 million.

3) We are not expected to be impacted by the one-time repatriation tax on foreign earnings.

The Tax Act will also affect 2018 and forward, including but not limited to 1) a reduction in the federal
corporate rate from 35.0% to 21.0%, 2) elimination of the corporate alternative minimum tax, 3) creation of a
new minimum tax - the base erosion anti-abuse tax, or BEAT, 4) a general elimination of U.S. federal income
taxes on dividends from foreign subsidiaries, 5) a new provision designed to tax global intangible low-taxed
income, or GILTI, 6) a new limitation on deductible interest expense, 7) the repeal of Section 199 domestic
production activity deduction, 8) a new limitation on the deductibility of certain executive compensation, 9)
limitations on net operating losses, or NOL’s, generated after December 31, 2017, 10) a special deduction for
Foreign Derived Intangible Income, or FDII, and various other items. We have evaluated the above provisions
and other than the reduction in corporate tax rate, we do not believe that the new provisions will have a material
impact on the provision for income taxes.

We estimate unrecognized tax positions of $0.5 million that may be recognized by December 31, 2018,
due to expiration of statutes of limitations and resolution of audits with taxing authorities, net of additional
uncertain tax positions.

As of December 31, 2017, we have gross federal, state, and foreign income tax net operating loss
carryforwards of $211.5 million, which will expire at various dates from 2018 through 2037. Such net operating
loss carryforwards expire as follows:

(In millions)

2018 - 2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.9
2026 - 2030 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.8
2031 - 2037 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 205.8

$211.5

The net deferred income tax liability of $321.9 million consists primarily of timing differences involving
depreciation and amortization.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements, refer to Note 2(r) to the audited consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risk from fluctuations in interest rates. At December 31, 2017, we had
borrowings outstanding under our credit facility of $715.0 million, which bear interest at variable rates based on
LIBOR plus 1.125% to 1.625%, depending on certain ratios defined in the credit agreement. A change in interest
rates on variable rate debt impacts our pre-tax income and cash flows, but does not impact the fair value of the
instruments. Based on our overall interest rate exposure at December 31, 2017, a one percent change in interest
rate would result in a change in annual pre-tax interest expense of approximately $7.2 million based on our
current borrowing levels.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our foreign-based businesses and results of operations are exposed to movements in the U.S. dollar to
British pounds and other foreign currency exchange rates. A portion of our revenue is denominated in British
pounds and other foreign currencies. If the U.S. dollar strengthens against British pounds and other foreign
currencies, our revenues reported in U.S. dollars would decline. With regard to operating expense, our primary
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk relates to operating expense incurred in British pounds and other
foreign currencies. If British pounds and other foreign currencies strengthen, costs reported in U.S. dollars will
increase. Movements in the U.S. dollar to British pounds and other foreign currency exchange rates did not have
a material effect on our revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017. A hypothetical ten percent change in
average exchange rates versus the U.S. dollar would not have resulted in a material change to our earnings.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item is set forth on pages 58 through 118 of this annual report on
Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We are required to maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in our reports under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized,
and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and
that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. Any
controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives at the reasonable assurance level.

Our management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
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Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K for the
Company and our subsidiaries other than our recent acquisitions in 2017 (See Note 8 of our consolidated
financial statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K). Management excluded from its assessment the
internal control over financial reporting of these acquisitions and collectively represents approximately 2.0% of
total assets (excluding goodwill and intangible assets which were integrated into the Company’s systems and
control environment) and 1.9% of revenues as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017. Based upon the
foregoing assessments, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of
December 31, 2017, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2017 is set forth
in Item 8. Financial Statement and Supplementary Data.

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting as of December 31, 2017 is set forth in Item 8. Financial Statement and Supplementary Data.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We are in the process of integrating our recent acquisitions in 2017 into our overall internal control over
financial reporting process. Other than this ongoing integration, there have been no changes in our internal
control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation of such internal control that occurred
during the fourth quarter of 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required to be furnished by this Item 10. is incorporated herein by reference to our
Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days of December 31,
2017 (the “Proxy Statement”).

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required to be furnished by this Item 11. is incorporated herein by reference to our Proxy
Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required to be furnished by this Item 12. is incorporated herein by reference to our Proxy
Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required to be furnished by this Item 13. is incorporated herein by reference to our Proxy
Statement.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required to be furnished by this Item 14. is incorporated herein by reference to our Proxy
Statement.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report.

(1) Financial Statements. See Index to Financial Statements and Schedules in Part II, Item 8. on this
Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedule. See Schedule II. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves.

(3) Exhibits. See Index to Exhibits in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule

Verisk Analytics, Inc. Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for
the Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Controls Over Financial
Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62

Consolidated Balance Sheets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63

Consolidated Statements of Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69

Financial Statements Schedule

Schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 118
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, a system of internal control over financial reporting
can provide only reasonable assurance and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that internal controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting based on the framework set forth in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 2013.

Based on this assessment, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective at December 31, 2017.

Management excluded from its assessment the internal control over financial reporting for our
acquisitions in 2017 (See Note 8 of our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report on Form
10-K). The excluded financial statements of these acquisitions constitute approximately 2.0% of total assets
(excluding goodwill and intangible assets which were integrated into the Company’s systems and control
environment) and 1.9% of revenues collectively included within our consolidated financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2017. Due to the timing of the acquisitions, management did not assess the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting for these acquisitions.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated
financial statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K has also audited the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, as stated in their report which is included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Verisk Analytics, Inc.

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Verisk Analytics, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by
COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2017, of the Company and our report dated February 20, 2018, expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements.

As described in Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting, management
excluded from its assessment the internal control over financial reporting at Arium Limited, which was acquired
on January 21, 2017, Healix International Holdings Limited, which was acquired on February 16, 2017,
Emergent Network Intelligence Limited, which was acquired on February 24, 2017, Fintellix Solutions Private
Limited, which was acquired on March 31, 2017, MAKE Consulting A/S, which was acquired on May 19, 2017,
Aerial Imagery group of companies, which were acquired during the three months ended June 30, 2017, G2 Web
Services LLC, which was acquired on August 3, 2017, Sequel Business Solutions Ltd., which was acquired on
August 23, 2017, Lundquist Consulting, Inc., which was acquired on August 31, 2017, Rebmark Legal Solutions
Ltd., which was acquired on November 9, 2017, Service Software, LLC., which was acquired on December 22,
2017 and PowerAdvocate, Inc., which was acquired on December 29, 2017 (collectively the “2017 acquired
businesses”). The financial statements of the 2017 acquired businesses constitute 2.0% of total assets (excluding
goodwill and intangible assets which were integrated into the Company’s systems and control environment) and
1.9% of revenues collectively of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2017. Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at the
2017 acquired businesses.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a
public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

60



Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey
February 20, 2018
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Verisk Analytics, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Verisk Analytics, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2017, and the related notes and the schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 (collectively referred to
as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 20, 2018, expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with
the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey
February 20, 2018

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2001.
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VERISK ANALYTICS, INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

(In millions, except for
share and per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 142.3 $ 135.1
Available-for-sale securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.8 3.4
Accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 345.5 263.9
Prepaid expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38.1 28.9
Income taxes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28.8 49.3
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39.1 20.3

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 597.6 500.9
Noncurrent assets:
Fixed assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 478.3 380.3
Intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,345.3 1,010.8
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,368.7 2,578.1
Deferred income tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15.9 15.6
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 214.5 145.5

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,020.3 $ 4,631.2

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 225.4 $ 184.0
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 724.4 106.8
Deferred revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 384.7 330.8
Income taxes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.1 —

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,337.6 621.6
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,284.4 2,280.2
Deferred income tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 337.8 322.2
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 135.1 74.8

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,094.9 3,298.8

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Verisk common stock, $.001 par value; 2,000,000,000 shares authorized; 544,003,038
shares issued and 164,878,930 and 166,915,772 shares outstanding, respectively . . . 0.1 0.1

Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,180.1 2,121.6
Treasury stock, at cost, 379,124,108 and 377,087,266 shares, respectively . . . . . . . . . . (3,150.5) (2,891.4)
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,308.0 2,752.9
Accumulated other comprehensive losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (412.3) (650.8)

Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,925.4 1,332.4

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,020.3 $ 4,631.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VERISK ANALYTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For The Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015

2017 2016 2015

(In millions, except for share and per share data)

Revenues $ 2,145.2 $ 1,995.2 $ 1,760.7

Expenses:
Cost of revenues (exclusive of items shown separately
below) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 783.8 714.4 612.0

Selling, general and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 322.8 301.6 278.3
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . 135.6 119.1 96.6
Amortization of intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101.8 92.5 70.4

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,344.0 1,227.6 1,057.3

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 801.2 767.6 703.4

Other income (expense):
Investment income and others, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.2 6.1 16.9
Gain on derivative instruments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 85.2
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (119.4) (120.0) (121.4)

Total other expense, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (110.2) (113.9) (19.3)

Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 691.0 653.7 684.1
Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (135.9) (202.2) (196.6)

Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 555.1 451.5 487.5

Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations (Note 9) . . . . . . . . . . — 253.0 33.4
Provision for income taxes from discontinued operations . . — (113.3) (13.3)

Income from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 139.7 20.1

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 555.1 $ 591.2 $ 507.6

Basic net income per share:
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.36 $ 2.68 $ 2.95
Income from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 0.83 0.12

Basic net income per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.36 $ 3.51 $ 3.07

Diluted net income per share:
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.29 $ 2.64 $ 2.89
Income from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 0.81 0.12

Diluted net income per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.29 $ 3.45 $ 3.01

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 165,168,224 168,248,304 165,090,380

Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 168,688,868 171,171,572 168,451,343

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VERISK ANALYTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015

2017 2016 2015

(In millions)

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $555.1 $ 591.2 $ 507.6

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 227.0 (395.6) (162.7)
Unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.4 0.3 0.1
Pension and postretirement adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11.1 (13.5) 1.1

Total other comprehensive income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 238.5 (408.8) (161.5)

Comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $793.6 $ 182.4 $ 346.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

65



V
E
R
IS
K

A
N
A
L
Y
T
IC

S,
IN

C
.

C
O
N
SO

L
ID

A
T
E
D
ST

A
T
E
M
E
N
T
S
O
F
C
H
A
N
G
E
S
IN

ST
O
C
K
H
O
L
D
E
R
S’

E
Q
U
IT

Y
F
or

T
he

Y
ea
rs

E
nd

ed
D
ec
em

be
r
31
,2
01
7,
20
16

an
d
20
15

C
om

m
on

St
oc
k

Is
su
ed

P
ar

V
al
ue

U
ne
ar
ne
d

K
SO

P
C
on

tr
ib
ut
io
ns

A
dd

it
io
na

l
P
ai
d-
in

C
ap

it
al

T
re
as
ur

y
St
oc
k

R
et
ai
ne
d

E
ar
ni
ng

s

A
cc
um

ul
at
ed

O
th
er

C
om

pr
eh
en
si
ve

L
os
se
s

T
ot
al

St
oc
kh

ol
de
rs
’

E
qu

it
y

(I
n
m
ill
io
ns
,e
xc
ep
t
fo
r
sh
ar
e
da

ta
)

B
al
an
ce
,J
an
ua
ry

1,
20
15

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

54
4,
00
3,
03
8

$0
.1

$(
0.
2)

$1
,1
71
.2

$(
2,
53
3.
7)

$1
,6
54
.1

$
(8
0.
5)

$
21
1.
0

N
et
in
co
m
e
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
—

—
50
7.
6

—
50
7.
6

O
th
er

co
m
pr
eh
en
si
ve

lo
ss

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
—

—
—

(1
61
.5
)

(1
61
.5
)

T
re
as
ur
y
st
oc
k
ac
qu
ir
ed

(1
,0
88
,4
74

sh
ar
es
)
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

—
—

—
10
0.
0

(1
20
.5
)

—
—

(2
0.
5)

K
SO

P
sh
ar
es

ea
rn
ed

(4
7,
68
6
sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
.

—
—

0.
2

13
.6

0.
3

—
—

14
.1

Sh
ar
es

is
su
ed

fr
om

eq
ui
ty

of
fe
ri
ng

(1
0,
60
4,
00
0
re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
65
1.
3

69
.6

—
—

72
0.
9

St
oc
k
op
tio

ns
ex
er
ci
se
d,
in
cl
ud
in
g
ta
x
be
ne
fi
to

f
$2
8.
0
(1
,7
39
,8
47

sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
57
.5

11
.7

—
—

69
.2

R
es
tr
ic
te
d
st
oc
k
la
ps
ed
,i
nc
lu
di
ng

ta
x
be
ne
fi
to

f
$1
.2
(1
77
,2
52

sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
0.
1

1.
2

—
—

1.
3

E
m
pl
oy
ee

st
oc
k
pu
rc
ha
se

pl
an

(2
5,
59
9
sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
1.
6

0.
2

—
—

1.
8

St
oc
k
ba
se
d
co
m
pe
ns
at
io
n

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
30
.1

—
—

—
30
.1

N
et
sh
ar
e
se
ttl
em

en
tf
ro
m

re
st
ri
ct
ed

st
oc
k
aw

ar
ds

(3
2,
88
2
sh
ar
es

w
ith

he
ld

fo
r
ta
x
se
ttl
em

en
t)
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

—
—

—
(2
.4
)

—
—

—
(2
.4
)

O
th
er

st
oc
k
is
su
an
ce
s
(5
,8
44

sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
.

—
—

—
0.
4

—
—

—
0.
4

B
al
an
ce
,D

ec
em

be
r
31
,2
01
5

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

54
4,
00
3,
03
8

0.
1

—
2,
02
3.
4

(2
,5
71
.2
)

2,
16
1.
7

(2
42
.0
)

1,
37
2.
0

N
et
in
co
m
e
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
—

—
59

1.
2

—
59
1.
2

O
th
er

co
m
pr
eh
en
si
ve

lo
ss

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
—

—
—

(4
08
.8
)

(4
08
.8
)

T
re
as
ur
y
st
oc
k
ac
qu
ir
ed

(4
,3
25
,5
48

sh
ar
es
)
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

—
—

—
—

(3
33
.3
)

—
—

(3
33
.3
)

K
SO

P
sh
ar
es

ea
rn
ed

(1
81
,1
98

sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..

—
—

—
13
.2

1.
3

—
—

14
.5

St
oc
k
op
tio

ns
ex
er
ci
se
d,
in
cl
ud
in
g
ta
x
be
ne
fi
to

f
$2
2.
1
(1
,4
09
,8
03

sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
56
.2

10
.2

—
—

66
.4

R
es
tr
ic
te
d
st
oc
k
la
ps
ed
,i
nc
lu
di
ng

ta
x
be
ne
fi
to

f
$1
.2
(1
69
,3
65

sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
—

1.
2

—
—

1.
2

E
m
pl
oy
ee

st
oc
k
pu
rc
ha
se

pl
an

(2
9,
86

7
sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
2.
1

0.
2

—
—

2.
3

St
oc
k
ba
se
d
co
m
pe
ns
at
io
n

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
29
.9

—
—

—
29
.9

N
et
sh
ar
e
se
ttl
em

en
tf
ro
m

re
st
ri
ct
ed

st
oc
k
aw

ar
ds

(3
8,
25

0
sh
ar
es

w
ith

he
ld

fo
r
ta
x
se
ttl
em

en
t)
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

—
—

—
(3
.1
)

—
—

—
(3
.1
)

O
th
er

st
oc
k
is
su
an
ce
s
(2
6,
10
6
sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..

—
—

—
(0
.1
)

0.
2

—
—

0.
1

B
al
an
ce
,D

ec
em

be
r
31
,2
01
6

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

54
4,
00
3,
03
8

0.
1

—
2,
12
1.
6

(2
,8
91
.4
)

2,
75
2.
9

(6
50
.8
)

1,
33
2.
4

N
et
in
co
m
e
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
—

—
55
5.
1

—
55
5.
1

O
th
er

co
m
pr
eh
en
si
ve

in
co
m
e
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
—

—
—

23
8.
5

23
8.
5

T
re
as
ur
y
st
oc
k
ac
qu
ir
ed

(3
,3
56
,3
60

sh
ar
es
)
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

—
—

—
—

(2
69
.8
)

—
—

(2
69
.8
)

St
oc
k
op
tio

ns
ex
er
ci
se
d
(1
,1
25
,0
04

sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
28
.7

9.
2

—
—

37
.9

R
es
tr
ic
te
d
st
oc
k
la
ps
ed

(1
43
,5
57

sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..

—
—

—
(1
.1
)

1.
1

—
—

—
E
m
pl
oy
ee

st
oc
k
pu
rc
ha
se

pl
an

(2
9,
60
5
sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
2.
2

0.
2

—
—

2.
4

St
oc
k
ba
se
d
co
m
pe
ns
at
io
n

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

—
—

—
31
.8

—
—

—
31
.8

N
et
sh
ar
e
se
ttl
em

en
tf
ro
m

re
st
ri
ct
ed

st
oc
k
aw

ar
ds

(3
6,
06
7
sh
ar
es

w
ith

he
ld

fo
r
ta
x
se
ttl
em

en
t)
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

—
—

—
(2
.9
)

—
—

—
(2
.9
)

O
th
er

st
oc
k
is
su
an
ce
s
(2
1,
35
2
sh
ar
es

re
is
su
ed

fr
om

tr
ea
su
ry

st
oc
k)

..
..
..

—
—

—
(0
.2
)

0.
2

—
—

—

B
al
an
ce
,D

ec
em

be
r
31
,2
01
7

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..

54
4,
00
3,
03
8

$0
.1

$
—

$2
,1
80
.1

$(
3,
15
0.
5)

$3
,3
08
.0

$(
41
2.
3)

$1
,9
25
.4

T
he

ac
co
m
pa
ny
in
g
no
te
s
ar
e
an

in
te
gr
al
pa
rt
of

th
es
e
co
ns
ol
id
at
ed

fi
na
nc
ia
ls
ta
te
m
en
ts
.

66



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

VERISK ANALYTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015

2017 2016 2015

(In millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 555.1 $ 591.2 $ 507.6
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 135.6 126.2 120.6
Amortization of intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101.8 98.4 94.8
Amortization of debt issuance costs and original issue discount . . . . . . . 4.2 5.0 12.9
Provision for doubtful accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.0 2.4 1.3
KSOP stock based compensation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 14.5 14.1
Stock based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31.8 30.0 30.5
Gain on derivative instruments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (85.2)
Gain on sale of subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (265.9) —
Realized loss on securities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 0.5 0.2
Gain on sale of non-controlling equity investments in non-public
companies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (1.5) —

Gain on exercise of common stock warrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (15.6)
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (73.6) 14.8 (4.1)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.1 1.0 0.4
Loss on extinguishment of convertible note . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 0.5

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (45.5) (5.7) (14.6)
Prepaid expenses and other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (30.6) (26.5) (2.2)
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22.7 8.7 51.6
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28.5 (2.6) (8.8)
Deferred revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29.2 (8.2) (43.5)
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (17.8) (4.8) 3.3

Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 743.5 577.5 663.8

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired of $29.9 million, $2.1 million and

$41.4 million, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (873.3) (67.7) (2,858.2)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 714.6 —
Proceeds from extinguishment of convertible note . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 0.4
Escrow funding associated with acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (41.6) (6.4) (83.4)
Proceeds from the settlement of derivative instruments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 85.2
Capital expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (183.5) (156.5) (166.1)
Purchases of available-for-sale securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.3) (0.3) (0.2)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities . . . . . 0.4 0.5 0.4
Cash received from the exercise of common stock warrants . . . . . . . . . . — — 15.6
Other investing activities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7.2) 9.0 —

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,105.5) 493.2 (3,006.3)
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VERISK ANALYTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
For The Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015

2017 2016 2015

(In millions)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of original issue discount . . — — 1,244.0
Repayments of current portion of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (170.0)
Repayments of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (50.0)
Proceeds from issuance of short-term debt with original maturities greater
than three months . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 455.0 — 830.0

Repayment of short-term debt with original maturities greater than three
months . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (15.0)

Proceeds (repayments) from short-term debt, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 160.0 (770.0) (105.0)
Payment of debt issuance costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.5) (0.5) (23.9)
Repurchases of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (276.3) (326.8) (20.4)
Net share settlement of taxes from restricted stock awards . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2.9) (3.1) (2.4)
Proceeds from stock options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.0 41.1 38.8
Proceeds from issuance of stock as part of a public offering . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 720.8
Other financing activities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7.8) (4.9) (6.0)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 362.5 (1,064.2) 2,440.9

Effect of exchange rate changes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.7 (9.7) 0.6

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.2 (3.2) 99.0
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 135.1 138.3 39.3

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 142.3 $ 135.1 $ 138.3

Supplemental disclosures:
Income taxes paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 186.3 $ 289.2 $ 158.5

Interest paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 113.9 $ 116.6 $ 106.1

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Repurchases of common stock included in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 6.5 $ —

Promissory note received for sale of discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 82.9 $ —

Equity interest received for sale of discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 8.4 $ —

Deferred tax liability established on the date of acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 74.4 $ 4.7 $ 213.0

Tenant improvement allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 0.1 $ 1.6

Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 10.9 $ 11.7 $ 1.7

Capital expenditures included in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.9 $ 1.9 $ 2.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

68



VERISK ANALYTICS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in millions, except for share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

1. Organization:

Verisk Analytics, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (“Verisk” or the “Company”) is a data analytics
provider serving customers in insurance, energy and specialized markets, and financial services. Using various
technologies to collect and analyze billions of records, Verisk draws on numerous data assets and domain
expertise to provide first-to-market innovations that are integrated into customer workflows. Verisk offers
predictive analytics and decision support solutions to customers in rating, underwriting, claims, catastrophe and
weather risk, global risk analytics, natural resources intelligence, economic forecasting, and many other fields.
Around the world, Verisk helps customers protect people, property, and financial assets.

Verisk was established to serve as the parent holding company of Insurance Services Office, Inc. (“ISO”)
upon completion of the initial public offering (“IPO”), which occurred on October 9, 2009. ISO was formed in
1971 as an advisory and rating organization for the property and casualty (“P&C”) insurance industry to provide
statistical and actuarial services, to develop insurance programs and to assist insurance companies in meeting
state regulatory requirements. For over the past decade, the Company broadened its data assets, entered new
markets, placed a greater emphasis on analytics, and pursued strategic acquisitions. Verisk trades under the ticker
symbol “VRSK” on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.

2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with these accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Significant estimates include acquisition purchase price allocations, the fair value of goodwill,
the realization of deferred tax assets, acquisition related liabilities, fair value of stock based compensation for
stock options granted, and assets and liabilities for pension and postretirement benefits. Actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. Certain reclassifications have been made to assets and liabilities for
pension and postretirement benefits and cash flows from investing activities within the consolidated financial
statements and in the notes to conform to the respective 2017 presentation. As of March 31, 2016, the Company’s
healthcare business qualified as assets held-for-sale. The healthcare business was sold on June 1, 2016. The
results of operations for the Company’s healthcare business are reported as discontinued operations for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 (See Note 9).

As of December 31, 2017, the Company simplified the presentation of its consolidated financial
statements. Amounts, except for share and per share data, are presented in millions.

Significant accounting policies include the following:

(a) Intercompany Accounts and Transactions

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Verisk. All intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

(b) Revenue Recognition

The following describes the Company’s primary types of revenues and the applicable revenue
recognition policies. The Company’s revenues are primarily derived from the sales of services and
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VERISK ANALYTICS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS— (Continued)

revenue is recognized as services are performed and information is delivered to customers. Revenue is
recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have
been rendered, fees and/or price is fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured.
Revenue is recognized net of applicable sales tax withholdings.

Industry-Standard Insurance Programs

Industry-standard insurance programs, statistical agent and data services and actuarial services are
sold to participating insurance company customers under annual agreements covering a calendar year
where the price is determined at the inception of the agreement. In accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) 605, Revenue Recognition, the Company recognizes revenue ratably over the term
of these annual agreements, as services are performed and continuous access to information is provided
over the entire term of the agreements.

Property-Specific Rating and Underwriting Information

The Company provides property-specific rating information through reports issued for specific
commercial properties, for which revenue is recognized when the report is delivered to the customer,
provided that all other revenue recognition criteria are met.

In addition, the Company provides hosting or software solutions that provide continuous access to
information about the properties being insured and underwriting information in the form of standard
policy forms to be used by customers. As the customer has a contractual right to take possession of the
software without significant penalty, revenues from these arrangements are recognized ratably over the
contract period from the time when the customer had access to the solution in accordance with ASC
985-605, Software Revenue Recognition (“ASC 985-605”). The Company recognizes software license
revenue when the arrangement does not require significant production, customization or modification of
the software and the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an agreement exists, delivery has
occurred, fees are fixed or determinable, and collections are probable. These software arrangements
include post-contract customer support (“PCS”). The Company recognizes software license revenue
ratably over the duration of the annual license term as vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) of
PCS, the only remaining undelivered element, cannot be established in accordance with ASC 985-605.
The PCS associated with these arrangements is coterminous with the duration of the license term.

Insurance

Insurance services primarily consist of term-based software licenses. These software arrangements
include PCS, which includes unspecified upgrades on a when-and-if available basis. The Company
recognizes software license revenue ratably over the duration of the annual license term as VSOE of PCS,
the only remaining undelivered element, cannot be established in accordance with ASC 985-605. The
PCS associated with these arrangements is coterminous with the duration of the license term. In certain
instances, the customers are billed for access on a monthly basis for the term-based software licenses and
the Company recognizes revenue accordingly.

There are also services within insurance, which are comprised of transaction-based fees
recognized as information is delivered to customers, provided that all other revenue recognition criteria
have been met.
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Financial Services

Financial services include various types of services to customers. The Company primarily
recognizes revenue ratably for these services over the term of the agreements, as services are performed
and continuous service is provided over the entire term of the agreements. In addition, there are certain
services which are comprised of transaction-based fees; in these instances, revenue is recognized as
information is delivered to customers, provided that all other revenue recognition criteria have been met.

Energy and Specialized Markets

The Company provides hosting solutions that give continuous access to research information such
as data analytics and commercial intelligence for the energy, chemicals, metals and mining verticals. For
the hosting arrangements, whereby the customer does not have the right to take possession of the
software, which include PCS throughout the hosting term, revenues from these multiple element
arrangements are recognized in accordance with ASC 605-25, Revenue recognition — Multiple element
arrangements (“ASC 605-25”). The Company recognizes revenue ratably over the duration of the license
term, since the contractual elements do not have stand alone value. Specialized markets consist of term-
based software licenses. These software arrangements include PCS, which includes unspecified upgrades
on a when-and-if available basis. The Company recognizes software license revenue ratably over the
duration of the annual license term as VSOE of PCS, the only remaining undelivered element, cannot be
established in accordance with ASC 985-605. The PCS associated with these arrangements is
coterminous with the duration of the license term. In certain instances, the customers are billed for access
on a monthly basis for the term-based software licenses and the Company recognizes revenue
accordingly. In addition, specialized markets are comprised of transaction-based fees recognized as
information is delivered to customers, provided that all other revenue recognition criteria have been met.

The Company services long-term contract arrangements with certain customers. For these
arrangements, revenue is recognized in accordance with ASC 605-35, Revenue Recognition —
Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts (“ASC 605-35”), using the percentage-of-completion
method, which requires the use of estimates. In such instances, management is required to estimate the
input measures, based on hours incurred to date compared to total estimated hours of the project, with
consideration also given to output measures, such as contract milestones, when applicable. Adjustments
to estimates are made in the period in which the facts requiring such revisions become known.
Accordingly, recognized revenues and profits are subject to revisions as the contract progresses to
completion. The Company considers the contract substantially complete when there is compliance with
all performance specifications and there are no remaining costs or potential risk.

There are also services within energy and specialized markets, which are comprised of
transaction-based fees recognized as information is delivered to customers, provided that all other
revenue recognition criteria have been met.

(c) Deferred Revenues

The Company invoices its customers in annual, quarterly, monthly, or milestone installments.
Amounts billed and collected in advance of earnings are recorded as “Deferred revenues” in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are recognized as the services are performed and the
applicable revenue recognition criteria are met.
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(d) Fixed Assets and Finite-lived Intangible Assets

Property and equipment, internal-use software and finite-lived intangibles are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization, which are computed on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset or the lease term.

The Company’s internal software development costs primarily relate to internal-use software.
Such costs are capitalized in the application development stage in accordance with ASC 350-40,
Internal-use Software. The Company also capitalizes software development costs upon the establishment
of technological feasibility for a product in accordance with ASC 985-20, Software to be Sold, Leased, or
Marketed (“ASC 985-20”). Software development costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over a
three-year period, which management believes represents the useful life of these capitalized costs.

In accordance with ASC 360, Property, Plant & Equipment, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets may
not be recoverable, the Company reviews its long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets for
impairment by first comparing the carrying value of the assets to the sum of the undiscounted cash flows
expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the assets. If the carrying value exceeds the
sum of the assets’ undiscounted cash flows, the Company estimates and recognizes an impairment loss by
taking the difference between the carrying value and fair value of the assets.

(e) Capital and Operating Leases

The Company leases various property, plant and equipment. Leased property is accounted for
under ASC 840, Leases (“ASC 840”). Accordingly, leased property that meets certain criteria is
capitalized and the present value of the related lease payments is recorded as a liability. Amortization of
assets accounted for as capital leases is computed utilizing the straight-line method over the shorter of the
remaining lease term or the estimated useful life (principally three to four years for computer equipment
and automobiles).

All other leases are accounted for as operating leases. Rent expense for operating leases, which
may have rent escalation provisions or rent holidays, is recorded on a straight-line basis over the
non-cancelable lease period in accordance with ASC 840. The initial lease term generally includes the
build-out period, where no rent payments are typically due under the terms of the lease. The difference
between rent expensed and rent paid is recorded as deferred rent. Construction allowances received from
landlords are recorded as a deferred rent credit and amortized to rent expense over the term of the lease.

(f) Fair Value of Financial and Non-financial Instruments

The Company follows the provisions of ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements (“ASC 820-10”),
which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under U.S. GAAP and expands
fair value measurement disclosures. The Company follows the provisions of ASC 820-10 for its financial
assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company follows the
provisions of ASC 820-10 for its non-financial assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value.

(g) Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable is generally recorded at the invoiced amount. The allowance for doubtful
accounts is estimated based on an analysis of the aging of the accounts receivable, historical write-offs,
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customer payment patterns, individual customer creditworthiness, current economic trends, and/or
establishment of specific reserves for customers in adverse financial condition. The Company assesses the
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts on a quarterly basis.

(h) Foreign Currency

The Company has determined local currencies are the functional currencies of the foreign
operations. The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated at the period-end rate of
exchange and statement of operations items are translated at the average rates prevailing during the year.
The resulting translation adjustment is recorded as a component of “Accumulated other comprehensive
losses” in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity.

(i) Stock Based Compensation

The Company follows ASC 718, Stock Compensation (“ASC 718”). Under ASC 718, stock based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the awards granted, and is
recognized as expense over the requisite service period.

Other equity awards, including restricted stock, are valued at the closing price of the Company’s
common stock on the grant date. Restricted stock generally has a service vesting period of four years and
the Company recognizes the expense ratably over this service vesting period.

The Company estimates expected forfeitures of equity awards at the date of grant and recognizes
compensation expense only for those awards expected to vest. The forfeiture assumption is ultimately
adjusted to the actual forfeiture rate. Changes in the forfeiture assumptions may impact the total amount
of expense ultimately recognized, as well as the timing of expense recognized over the requisite service
period.

The payment of taxes related to the vesting is recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in-capital.
This transaction is reflected within “Net share settlement of restricted stock awards” within cash flows
from financing activities in the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows.

The Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-09, Improvements to
Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting (“ASU No. 2016-09”) on January 1, 2017. Excess tax
benefit from exercised stock options is recorded as an income tax benefit in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. This tax benefit is calculated as the excess of the intrinsic value of
options exercised over the compensation recognized for financial reporting purposes. The amount of the
tax benefit that has been realized is presented as an operating cash inflow within the accompanying
consolidated statements of cash flows.

(j) Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs, which are primarily related to personnel and related overhead
costs incurred in developing new services for customers, are expensed as incurred. Such costs were
$37.4 million, $27.4 million and $20.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, and were included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

(k) Advertising Costs

Advertising costs, which are primarily associated with promoting the Company’s brand, names
and solutions provided, are expensed as incurred. Such costs were $6.9 million, $6.5 million and
$5.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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(l) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method under ASC 740,
Income Taxes (“ASC 740”), which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Under this
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial
statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Deferred tax assets are recorded to the extent these assets are more likely than not to be realized.
In making such determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence,
including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax
planning strategies and recent financial operations. Valuation allowances are recognized to reduce
deferred tax assets if it is determined to be more likely than not that all or some of the potential deferred
tax assets will not be realized.

The Company follows ASC 740-10, Income Taxes (“ASC 740-10”), which clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial statements. ASC 740-10 provides
that a tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized based on the technical merits when it
is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including resolutions of any
related appeals or litigation processes. Income tax positions must meet a more likely than not recognition
threshold in accordance with ASC 740-10. This standard also provides guidance on measurement,
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and
transition.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits within the
income tax expense line in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Accrued interest and
penalties are included within “Other liabilities” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

(m) Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) are determined in accordance with ASC 260,
Earnings per Share, which specifies the computation, presentation and disclosure requirements for EPS.
Basic EPS excludes all dilutive common stock equivalents. It is based upon the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS, as calculated using the treasury stock
method, reflects the potential dilution that would occur if the Company’s dilutive outstanding stock
options and stock awards were issued.

(n) Pension and Postretirement Benefits

The Company accounts for its pension and postretirement benefits under ASC 715, Compensation
— Retirement Benefits (“ASC 715”). ASC 715 requires the recognition of the funded status of a benefit
plan in the balance sheet, the recognition in other comprehensive income (loss) of gains or losses and
prior service costs arising during the period, but which are not included as components of periodic benefit
cost or credit, and the measurement of defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the balance sheet
date. The Company utilizes a valuation date of December 31.
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(o) Product Warranty Obligations

The Company provides warranty coverage for certain of its solutions. The Company recognizes a
product warranty obligation when claims are probable and can be reasonably estimated. As of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, product warranty obligations were not material.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into numerous agreements that contain
standard indemnities whereby the Company indemnifies another party for breaches of confidentiality,
infringement of intellectual property or gross negligence. Such indemnifications are primarily granted
under licensing of computer software. Most agreements contain provisions to limit the maximum
potential amount of future payments that the Company could be required to make under these
indemnifications; however, the Company is not able to develop an estimate of the maximum potential
amount of future payments to be made under these indemnifications as the triggering events are not
subject to predictability.

(p) Loss Contingencies

The Company accrues for costs relating to litigation, claims and other contingent matters when
such liabilities become probable and reasonably estimable. Such estimates are based on management’s
judgment. Actual amounts paid may differ from amounts estimated, and such differences will be charged
to operations in the period in which the final determination of the liability is made.

(q) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition costs over the fair value of tangible net assets and
identifiable intangible assets of the businesses acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have
indefinite lives are not amortized. Intangible assets determined to have finite lives are amortized over
their useful lives. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are subject to impairment testing
annually as of June 30 or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be fully recoverable. The Company completed the required annual impairment test as of June 30,
2017, which resulted in no impairment of goodwill in 2017. This test compares the carrying value of each
reporting unit to its fair value. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net
assets, including goodwill assigned to that reporting unit, goodwill is not impaired. If the carrying value
of the reporting unit’s net assets, including goodwill, exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, then the
Company will determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. If the carrying value of a
reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then an impairment loss is recorded for the
difference between the carrying amount and the implied fair value of the goodwill.

(r) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Topic 606”). Topic 606
replaces numerous requirements in U.S. GAAP, including industry-specific requirements, and provides
companies with a single revenue recognition model for recognizing revenue from contracts with
customers. The core principle of Topic 606 is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The two permitted transition
methods under Topic 606 are the full retrospective method, in which case the standard would be applied
to each prior reporting period presented and the cumulative effect of applying the standard would be

75



VERISK ANALYTICS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS— (Continued)

recognized at the earliest period shown, or the modified retrospective method, in which case the
cumulative effect of applying the standard would be recognized at the date of initial application. In July
2015, the FASB approved the deferral of Topic 606’s effective date by one year. Topic 606 is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The FASB permits companies to adopt
Topic 606 early, but not before the original effective date of the annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016.

The Company established a corporate implementation team, which engaged with cross-functional
representatives from all of its business verticals. The Company utilized a bottom-up approach, with the
assistance of third party specialists, to analyze the impact of the standard on the contract portfolio by
reviewing previous accounting policies and practices to identify potential differences that would result
from applying the requirements of Topic 606 to revenue contracts. In addition, the Company identified
and is in the process of implementing appropriate changes to its business processes, systems, and controls
to support recognition and disclosure under Topic 606.

The Company adopted Topic 606 using the modified retrospective approach effective January 1,
2018. The Company’s revenue streams primarily consist of subscription services provided through a
hosted environment or by delivering term based software as well as other services including consulting
and transactional solutions. Based on the Company’s assessment, the analysis of the contract portfolio
under Topic 606 results in the revenue for the majority of the Company’s customer contracts being
recognized over time, as the Company offers most of its solutions through a series of services primarily in
a hosted environment, which is consistent with the Company’s previous revenue recognition model. For
the majority of its contracts, there is continuous transfer of control to the customer and the number of
performance obligations under Topic 606 is consistent with those identified under the existing standard.

An identified impact of adopting Topic 606 related to the deferral of commissions on revenue
contracts, which were previously expensed as incurred but under Topic 606, the majority of such
commissions will be capitalized and amortized over a period of time of up to five years. The Company
determined the impact of the adoption on both revenue recognition for customer contracts and related
commissions to be immaterial on its consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities (“ASU No. 2016-01”). The amendments in this update require all equity
investments to be measured at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income
(other than those accounted for under equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of
the investee). The amendments allow equity investments that do not have readily determinable fair values
to be remeasured at fair value either upon occurrence of an observable price change or upon identification
of an impairment. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-01 are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. For amendments applicable to the
Company, early adoption is not permitted. The cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings in
connection to the adoption of ASU No. 2016-01 was immaterial to the consolidated financial statements
as of January 1, 2018.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (“ASU No. 2016-02”). This ASU
amends the existing accounting considerations and treatments for leases through the creation of Topic
842, Leases, to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by requiring the recognition
of lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and the disclosure of key information about lease
arrangements. Lessees and lessors are required to disclose qualitative and quantitative information about
leasing arrangements to enable a user of the financial statements to assess the amount, timing and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from such leases. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-02 are effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years,
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and allows for modified retrospective adoption with early adoption permitted. The Company has decided
not to early adopt the amendments and is presently evaluating changes to its processes to support the
implementation of ASU No. 2016-02. The Company is also assessing the impact associated with the
adoption of ASU No. 2016-02 on the consolidated balance sheet, which is expected to be material based
upon review of the future contractual obligations.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-08, Principal Versus Agent Considerations
(“ASU No. 2016-08”). The amendments to this update are intended to improve the operability and
understandability of the implementation guidance on principal versus agent considerations. The
amendments in ASU No. 2016-08 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2017, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. Earlier application is permitted
only as of annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim reporting
periods within that reporting period. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-08 is not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based
Payment Accounting (“ASU No. 2016-09”). The objective of this update is to simplify several aspects of
the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences,
classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows.
The Company adopted the guidance prospectively for the income statement impact of income taxes and
has retrospectively applied the guidance to the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows for the
impact of excess tax benefits on January 1, 2017 in accordance with ASU No. 2016-09. The presentation
requirements for cash flows related to employee taxes paid for withheld shares had no impact to any of
the periods presented in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows, since such cash flows have
historically been presented in financing activities. The treatment of forfeitures has not changed as the
Company is electing to continue the current process of estimating the number of forfeitures. Accordingly,
excess tax benefits from exercised stock options in 2017 were recorded as income tax benefit in the
consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2017 and presented as an
operating activity on the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015. There was no cumulative-effect adjustment required to retained
earnings under the prospective method as of the beginning of the year because all tax benefits had been
previously recognized when the tax deductions related to stock compensation were utilized to reduce tax
payable. The Company did not record any deferred tax assets or tax liabilities as the result of the adoption
of ASU 2016-09.

In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-10, Identifying Performance Obligations and
Licensing (“ASU No. 2016-10”). The amendments in this update clarify the following two aspects of
Topic 606: identifying performance obligations and the licensing implementation guidance, while
retaining the related principles for those areas. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-10 are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting periods within
that reporting period. Earlier application is permitted only as of annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. The Company has
not elected to early adopt. The Company has been evaluating Topic 606 and refer to discussions above.

In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-12, Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical
Expedients (“ASU No. 2016-12”). ASU No. 2016-12 does not change the core principle of the guidance
in Topic 606. Rather, this update affects only the narrow scope improvements to the guidance on
collectability, noncash consideration, and completed contracts at transition. The effective date and
transition requirements for ASU 2016-12 are the same as the effective date and transition requirements
for Topic 606. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-12 is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and
Cash Payments (“ASU No. 2016-15”). The amendments in this update provide guidance on various
specific cash flow issues to reduce diversity in the practice of how certain transactions are classified in
the statement of cash flows. ASU No. 2016-15 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2017, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company has not
elected to early adopt. The Company will evaluate the impact of ASU No. 2016-15 for future transactions
subsequent to the effective date.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, Clarifying the Definition of a Business
(“ASU No. 2017-01”). Under the amendments in this update, an acquisition would have to include an
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs to be
considered a business. In acquisitions where outputs are not present, FASB has developed more stringent
criteria for sets without outputs. ASU No. 2017-01 is effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those periods. The amendments in this update
should be applied prospectively on or after the effective date. No disclosures are required at transition.
The Company will evaluate the impact of ASU No. 2017-01 for the future acquisitions subsequent to the
effective date.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Simplifying the Test for Goodwill
Impairment (“ASU No. 2017-04”). The guidance eliminates Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test,
which requires a hypothetical purchase price allocation. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount
by which a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of
goodwill. The same one-step impairment test will be applied to goodwill at all reporting units, even those
with zero or negative carrying amounts. Entities will be required to disclose the amount of goodwill at
reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts. ASU 2017-04 is effective for its annual or any
interim goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is
permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1,
2017. The Company is currently evaluating ASU No. 2017-04 and has not yet determined the impact
these amendments may have on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, Scope of Modification Accounting (“ASU
2017-09”), that clarifies when changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award must be
accounted for as modifications. Under the guidance within this update, a company will not apply
modification accounting to a share-based payment award if all of the following are the same immediately
before and after the change:

• The award’s fair value (or calculated value or intrinsic value, if those measurement methods are used)

• The award’s vesting conditions

• The award’s classification as an equity or liability instrument.

ASU No. 2017-09 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including
interim periods within those periods. The amendments in this update should be applied prospectively to
an award modified on or after the effective date. The Company will evaluate the impact of ASU
No. 2017-09 for future award changes subsequent to the effective date.

3. Concentration of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to credit risk consist primarily of cash and
cash equivalents, available for sale securities and accounts receivable, which are generally not collateralized. The
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Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in higher credit quality financial institutions in order to limit
the amount of credit exposure. The total domestic cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) to a maximum amount of $250.0 thousand per bank at December 31, 2017 and 2016. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had cash balances on deposit that exceeded the balance insured by
the FDIC limit by approximately $40.6 million and $61.0 million with seven and four banks, respectively. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company also had cash on deposit with foreign banks of approximately
$99.8 million and $73.1 million, respectively.

The Company considers the concentration of credit risk associated with its trade accounts receivable to be
commercially reasonable and believes that such concentration does not result in the significant risk of near-term
severe adverse impacts. The Company’s top fifty customers represent approximately 34.2% of revenues for 2017,
29.9% for 2016 and 40.8% for 2015 with no individual customer accounting for more than 2.1% of revenues
during the year ended December 31, 2017, 2.0% for 2016 and 2.3% for 2015. No individual customer comprised
more than 2.3% and 3.3% of accounts receivable at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in banks, commercial paper, money-market funds, and other
liquid instruments with original maturities of 90 days or less at the time of purchase.

5. Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31:

2017 2016

Billed receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $291.4 $216.4
Unbilled receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 58.7 50.9

Total receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 350.1 267.3
Less allowance for doubtful accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4.6) (3.4)

Accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $345.5 $263.9

6. Fair Value Measurements:

Certain assets and liabilities of the Company are reported at fair value in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. Such assets and liabilities include amounts for both financial and non-financial instruments. To
increase consistency and comparability of assets and liabilities recorded at fair value, ASC 820-10 establishes a
three-level fair value hierarchy to prioritize the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. ASC
820-10 requires disclosures detailing the extent to which companies’ measure assets and liabilities at fair value,
the methods and assumptions used to measure fair value and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings.
In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Company applied the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Assets or liabilities for which the identical item is traded on an active exchange, such as
publicly-traded instruments.

Level 2 — Assets and liabilities valued based on observable market data for similar instruments.

Level 3 — Assets or liabilities for which significant valuation assumptions are not readily observable in
the market; instruments valued based on the best available data, some of which is internally-
developed, and considers risk premiums that a market participant would require.
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The following table provides information for such assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and
2016. The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, securities accounted for under ASC
323-10-25, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and short-term debt approximate their carrying amounts
because of the short-term nature of these instruments.

The following table summarizes fair value measurements by level for cash equivalents and registered
investment companies that were measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Quoted Prices
in Active Markets

for Identical
Assets (Level 1)

December 31, 2017
Registered investment companies(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3.8
December 31, 2016
Registered investment companies(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3.4

(1) Registered investment companies are classified as available-for-sale securities and are valued using quoted
prices in active markets multiplied by the number of shares owned.

The Company has elected to carry its subordinated promissory note receivable and long-term debt at
carrying value. The carrying value of the subordinated promissory note receivable represents amortized cost and
has been included in “Other assets” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The carrying value of the
long-term debt represents amortized cost less unamortized discount and debt issuance costs. The Company
assesses the fair value of these financial instruments based on an estimate of interest rates available to the
Company for financial instruments with similar features, the Company’s current credit rating and spreads
applicable to the Company. The following table summarizes the carrying value and estimated fair value of the
long-term debt as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 respectively:

Fair Value
Hierarchy

2017 2016

Carrying
Value

Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

Estimated
Fair Value

Financial instrument not carried at fair value:
Subordinated promissory note receivable . . . . . . . . . Level 2 $ 95.3 $ 83.3 $ 84.1 $ 76.8
Long-term debt excluding capitalized leases . . . . . . . Level 2 $2,280.6 $2,439.8 $2,277.3 $2,402.6
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7. Fixed Assets

The following is a summary of fixed assets:

Useful Life Cost

Accumulated
Depreciation and
Amortization Net

December 31, 2017
Furniture and office equipment . . . . . . . . 3-10 years $ 276.2 $(183.5) $ 92.7
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . Lease term 83.1 (40.7) 42.4
Purchased software . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 years 123.0 (97.6) 25.4
Software development costs . . . . . . . . . . . 3-7 years 525.3 (230.9) 294.4
Leased equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3-4 years 35.0 (29.7) 5.3
Aircraft equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2-10 years 20.4 (2.3) 18.1

Total fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,063.0 $(584.7) $478.3

December 31, 2016
Furniture and office equipment . . . . . . . . 3-10 years $ 238.8 $(162.5) $ 76.3
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . Lease term 66.5 (32.3) 34.2
Purchased software . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 years 122.8 (90.9) 31.9
Software development costs . . . . . . . . . . . 3-7 years 404.7 (169.8) 234.9
Leased equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3-4 years 32.8 (29.8) 3.0

Total fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 865.6 $(485.3) $380.3

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015
were $135.6 million, $119.1 million and $96.6 million, of which $58.0 million, $43.6 million and $22.3 million
related to amortization of internal-use software development costs, respectively. Amortization expense related to
development of software for sale in accordance with ASC 985-20 was $9.5 million, $9.2 million and $9.2 million
for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company had unamortized software
development costs that had been capitalized in accordance with ASC 985-20 of $19.4 million, $25.6 million and
$12.7 million as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Leased equipment includes amounts held
under capital leases for automobiles, computer software and computer equipment.

8. Acquisitions

2017 Acquisitions

On December 29, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of PowerAdvocate, Inc.
(“PowerAdvocate”), a provider of market, cost intelligence, and supply chain solutions serving the energy sector,
for a net cash purchase price of $200.4 million, of which $10.0 million represents indemnity escrows. Within the
Decision Analytics segment, PowerAdvocate expands the Company’s offerings to the energy sector by adding
proprietary spend data and cost models and providing insight into customers’ cost savings opportunities. The
preliminary purchase price allocation of the acquisition is presented in the table below.

On December 22, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the asset of Service Software, LLC.
(“Service Software”), a provider of business management software for the construction industry, for a net cash
purchase price of $6.8 million, of which $0.5 million represents indemnity escrows. Within the Decision
Analytics segment, Service Software expands the Company’s offerings to the insurance sector by integrating
with the existing loss quantification solutions, which makes it possible for restoration professionals to save time
by sharing job information, reducing duplicate data entry, and increasing productivity. The preliminary purchase
price allocation of the acquisition is presented as part of “Others” in the table below.
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On November 9, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Rebmark Legal Solutions Ltd.
(“Rebmark”), a provider of injury claims solutions, for a net cash purchase price of $2.5 million, of which
$0.2 million represents indemnity escrows. Rebmark has become part of the insurance vertical within the
Decision Analytics segment. Rebmark’s solutions aid claimant and defendant lawyers, barristers, and claims
handlers with the preparation of schedules of loss, which is useful in complex, high-value injury claims where
calculations can be time-consuming and there is greater potential for error. The preliminary purchase price
allocation of the acquisition is presented as part of “Others” in the table below.

On August 31, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Lundquist Consulting, Inc.
(“LCI”), a provider of risk insight, prediction, and management solutions for banks and creditors, for a net cash
purchase price of $150.6 million, of which $12.8 million represents indemnity escrows. LCI has become part of
the financial services vertical within the Decision Analytics segment. This acquisition brings together the
Company’s proprietary data assets and LCI’s proprietary time-series data, including consumer and commercial
bankruptcies, consumer behavior, and legal and technical terms associated with debtor settlements. The
preliminary purchase price allocation of the acquisition is presented in the table below.

On August 23, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Sequel Business Solutions Ltd.
(“Sequel”), a provider of commercial and specialty insurance and reinsurance software based in the U.K., for a
net cash purchase price of $320.3 million. Sequel has become part of the insurance vertical within the Decision
Analytics segment. The acquisition of Sequel further enhances the Company’s comprehensive offerings to the
global complex commercial and specialty insurance industry, enabling integrated global data analytics through a
specialized end-to-end workflow solution. The preliminary purchase price allocation of the acquisition is
presented in the table below.

On August 3, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of G2 Web Services, LLC (“G2”), a
provider of merchant risk intelligence solutions for acquirers, commercial banks, and other payment system
providers, for a net cash purchase price of $112.0 million, of which $5.6 million represents indemnity escrows.
G2 has become part of the financial services vertical within the Decision Analytics segment. The acquisition of
G2 positions the Company to further enhance its offerings to clients and partners, by providing solutions that
help fight fraud, transaction laundering, and reputational risk within the global payments and e-commerce
ecosystem. The preliminary purchase price allocation of the acquisition is presented in the table below.

During the three months ended June 30, 2017, the Company acquired the net assets of Blue Skies
Consulting, LLC, ControlCam, LLC, Krawietz Aerial Photography, LLC, Richard Crouse & Associates, Inc.,
Rocky Mountain Aerial Surveys, Inc., Skyview Aerial Photo, Inc., and Valley Air Photos, LLC (collectively
referred to as “Aerial Imagery acquisitions”), a group of similar but unrelated companies, which gives the
Company broad geographic coverage of the United States for aerial image capture purposes. The Aerial Imagery
acquisitions provide multi-spectral aerial photographic services with expertise in offering digital
photogrammetric and remote sensing data for mapping and surveying applications. The purchase consideration
consists of an aggregate net cash purchase price of $28.1 million and a holdback of $3.1 million. Within the
Company’s Decision Analytics segment, the Aerial Imagery acquisitions enable the Company to enhance and
maintain its database of images with the required frequency, resolution, and coverage across the United States
(“U.S.”) to support the Company’s objective as the leading provider of loss quantification data, analytics, and
decision-support solutions to the insurance industry, and the photogrammetry, surveying, mapping and other
related markets. The preliminary purchase price allocation of the acquisition is presented as part of “Others” in
the table below.

On May 19, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of MAKE Consulting A/S (“MAKE”),
a research and advisory business specializing in wind power, for a net cash purchase price of $16.9 million, of
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which $2.7 million represents indemnity escrows. MAKE has become part of the energy and specialized markets
vertical within the Decision Analytics segment. MAKE enhances the Company’s offering to existing customers
and forms a market analysis and advisory consortium on renewables and the transformation of the global
electricity industry. With detailed coverage of power market fundamentals, solar, wind, energy storage, and grid
edge technologies, the energy and specialized markets vertical is positioned to bring customers market analysis
and insight on the evolution of the energy landscape and provide a comprehensive platform for the future. The
preliminary purchase price allocation of the acquisition is presented in the table below.

On March 31, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Fintellix Solutions Private Limited
(“Fintellix”), a Bangalore-based data solutions company specializing in the development of data management
platforms and regulatory reporting solutions for financial institutions, for a net cash purchase price of
$16.9 million, of which $1.8 million represents indemnity escrows. Fintellix has become part of the financial
services vertical within the Decision Analytics segment. The acquisition of Fintellix positions the Company to
expand the data hosting and regulatory platforms and better address the increasingly complex needs of its
customers. The preliminary purchase price allocation of the acquisition is presented in the table below.

On February 24, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Emergent Network Intelligence
Limited (“ENI”), a developer in insurance claims efficiency and fraud detection solutions based in the United
Kingdom (“U.K.”), for a net cash purchase price of $6.1 million, of which $0.5 million represents indemnity
escrows. With the acquisition of ENI within the Decision Analytics segment, the Company’s customers in the
U.K. can take advantage of technologically advanced tools that allow them to improve motor vehicle claims
workflow and reduce their costs and exposure to fraud. The preliminary purchase price allocation of the
acquisition is presented as part of “Others” in the table below.

On February 16, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Healix International Holdings
Limited (“Healix”), a software analytics provider in automated medical risk assessment for the travel insurance
industry, for a net cash purchase price of $52.4 million, of which $7.5 million represents indemnity escrows.
Healix is within the Company’s Risk Assessment segment. The acquisition further expands the Company’s
offerings for the global insurance industry, providing solutions that are embedded with customer workflows and
can help underwrite medical coverage for travelers with greater speed, accuracy, and efficiency. The preliminary
purchase price allocation of the acquisition is presented in the table below.

On January 21, 2017, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Arium Limited (“Arium”) for a
net cash purchase price of $1.9 million. Arium specializes in liability risk modeling and decision support. Arium
has become part of the insurance vertical within the Decision Analytics segment, and enables the Company to
provide its customers with additional modeling solutions and analytics for the casualty market. The preliminary
purchase price allocation of the acquisition is presented as part of “Others” in the table below.
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The preliminary purchase price allocations of the 2017 acquisitions resulted in the following:

Healix Fintellix MAKE G2 Sequel LCI
Power

Advocate Others Total

Cash and cash
equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.9 $ 1.1 $ 1.5 $ 1.0 $ 16.0 $ 1.1 $ 7.7 $ 0.6 $ 29.9

Accounts receivable . . . . . . 0.9 2.1 0.9 3.7 9.5 3.1 8.3 1.9 30.4
Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . — 0.3 2.7 3.4 1.4 — 0.5 0.8 9.1
Fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 0.1 — 6.4 7.5 5.7 0.2 12.0 31.9
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . 24.1 6.6 6.9 45.3 102.4 59.0 99.1 9.7 353.1
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32.7 11.7 12.7 71.4 230.0 99.1 162.8 26.1 646.5
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.5 2.0 0.1 2.8 — 12.8 10.0 1.2 36.4

Total assets acquired . . . . . . 66.1 23.9 24.8 134.0 366.8 180.8 288.6 52.3 1,137.3

Current liabilities . . . . . . . . 1.1 1.5 3.3 3.2 9.8 1.1 3.4 0.8 24.2
Deferred revenues . . . . . . . . 0.1 0.8 1.5 0.4 2.4 0.3 11.0 0.6 17.1
Deferred income taxes,
net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.1 1.8 1.6 14.6 18.3 14.9 18.4 0.7 74.4

Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . 7.5 1.8 — 2.8 — 12.8 47.7 4.2 76.8

Total liabilities assumed . . . 12.8 5.9 6.4 21.0 30.5 29.1 80.5 6.3 192.5

Net assets acquired . . . . . . . 53.3 18.0 18.4 113.0 336.3 151.7 208.1 46.0 944.8

Cash acquired . . . . . . . . . . . (0.9) (1.1) (1.5) (1.0) (16.0) (1.1) (7.7) (0.6) (29.9)

Net cash purchase price . . . $52.4 $16.9 $16.9 $112.0 $320.3 $150.6 $200.4 $45.4 $ 914.9

The preliminary amounts assigned to intangible assets by type for the 2017 acquisitions are summarized
in the table below:

Weighted
Average

Useful Life Total

Technology-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 years $ 99.2
Marketing-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 years 20.4
Customer-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 years 190.5
Database-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 years 43.0

Total intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $353.1

The preliminary allocations of the purchase price of these acquisitions are subject to revisions as
additional information is obtained about the facts and circumstances that existed as of each acquisition date. The
revisions may have an impact on the consolidated financial statements. The allocations of the purchase price will
be finalized once all information is obtained, but not to exceed one year from the acquisition date. The primary
areas of the purchase price allocation that are not yet finalized relate to fixed assets and operating leases, income
and non-income taxes, deferred revenues, the valuation of intangible assets acquired, and residual goodwill. The
preliminary amounts assigned to intangible assets by type for these acquisitions were based upon the Company’s
valuation model and historical experiences with entities with similar business characteristics.

The goodwill of $628.2 million associated with the stock purchases of PowerAdvocate, Rebmark, LCI,
Sequel, G2, MAKE, Fintellix, ENI, Healix and Arium is not deductible for tax purposes, with the exception of
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$20.2 million of goodwill attributable to G2. The goodwill of $18.3 million associated with the asset purchases of
Service Software and Aerial Imagery acquisitions is deductible for tax purposes. For the year ended
December 31, 2017, the Company incurred transaction costs related to these acquisitions of $6.8 million, which
are included within “Selling, general and administrative” expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations. Refer to Note 10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets for further discussion.

The 2017 acquisitions were immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 and therefore, supplemental
information disclosure on an unaudited pro forma basis is not presented.

2016 Acquisitions

On November 23, 2016, the Company acquired the net assets of IntelliStance, LLC (“MarketStance”), a
provider of market intelligence data and analytics to the property/casualty insurance market, for a net cash
purchase price of $8.6 million, of which $0.7 million represents indemnity escrows. MarketStance is within the
Company’s Risk Assessment segment. MarketStance has built a proprietary analytics model to provide
actionable insights on customer’s profitability and that enhances the Company’s offerings. The final purchase
price allocation of the acquisition is combined in the table below.

On November 11, 2016, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of The GeoInformation Group
Limited (“GeoInformation”), a provider of geographic data solutions, for a net cash purchase price of
$6.3 million, of which $0.3 million represents indemnity escrows. GeoInformation offers mapping services and
geospatial data and analytic solutions to companies and public sector organizations. GeoInformation’s resources
complement the Company’s risk management and predictive analytics capabilities internationally within the Risk
Assessment segment. The final purchase price allocation of the acquisition is combined in the table below.

On October 20, 2016, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Analyze Re, Inc. (“Analyze
Re”), a software analytics provider for the reinsurance and insurance industries, for a net cash purchase price of
$9.5 million, of which $1.0 million represents indemnity escrows. Analyze Re has become part of of the
Company’s Decision Analytics segment and enables the Company to provide its customers with additional real-
time pricing, exposure management, and enterprise portfolio roll-up capabilities. The final purchase price
allocation of the acquisition is combined in the table below.

On August 19, 2016, the Company acquired the data and subscriptions business of Quest Offshore
Resources, Inc. (“Quest Offshore”), which supplies market intelligence to the offshore oil and gas sector, for a
net cash purchase price of $7.2 million, including a holdback of $0.8 million. The data and subscriptions business
has become part of Wood Mackenzie Limited (“Wood Mackenzie”) within the Decision Analytics segment and
complements its existing upstream analysis expertise. The final purchase price allocation of the acquisition is
combined in the table below.

On July 26, 2016, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Greentech Media, Inc. (“Greentech
Media”), an information services provider for the electricity and renewables sector, for a net cash purchase price of
$36.1 million, of which $4.4 million represents indemnity escrows. Greentech Media has become part of Wood
Mackenzie within the Decision Analytics segment and enables WoodMackenzie to provide its customers with market
intelligence across several categories, including solar generation, energy storage, and smart grids that react to changes
in supply and demand. The final purchase price allocation of the acquisition is combined in the table below.

On April 14, 2016, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Risk Intelligence Ireland Limited
(“RII”), a provider of fraud detection, compliance, risk control, and process automation services to the Irish
insurance industry, for a net cash purchase price of $6.2 million. RII enhances the ability of the Company’s Risk
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Assessment segment to serve the international insurance market. The final purchase price allocation of the
acquisition is combined in the table below.

The combined final purchase price allocations of the 2016 acquisitions resulted in the following:

Total

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.1
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.3
Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.3
Fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.2
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30.5
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55.4
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.7

Total assets acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 96.5
Current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.2
Deferred revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.7
Deferred income taxes, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.1
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.5

Total liabilities assumed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20.5

Net assets acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76.0

Less: Cash acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.1

Net cash purchase price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $73.9

The impacts of finalization of the purchase accounting for MarketStance, GeoInformation, Analyze Re,
Quest Offshore, Greentech Media, and RII during the measurement periods in accordance with ASC 805 were
not material to the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016. The goodwill of $42.9 million associated with the stock purchases of GeoInformation, Analyze Re,
Greentech Media and RII is not deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill of $12.5 million associated with
MarketStance and Quest Offshore asset acquisitions is deductible for tax purposes. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, the Company incurred transaction costs related to these acquisitions of $1.6 million, which
are included within “Selling, general and administrative” expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations. Refer to Note 10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets for further discussion.

2015 Acquisitions

On November 20, 2015, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of The PCI Group (“PCI”). PCI
is a consortium of five specialist companies that offer integrated data and subscriptions research in the chemicals,
fibers, films, and plastics sectors. PCI has become part of Wood Mackenzie and continues to provide services to
enhance Wood Mackenzie’s chemicals capabilities in the Decision Analytics segment. The Company paid a net
cash purchase price of $36.8 million after a working capital adjustment of $0.6 million. The final purchase price
allocation of the acquisition is presented as “Others” in the table below.

On November 6, 2015, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Infield Systems Limited
(“Infield”). Infield is a provider of business intelligence, analysis, and research to the oil, gas, and associated
marine industries. Infield has become part of Wood Mackenzie and continues to provide services to enhance
Wood Mackenzie’s upstream and supply chain capabilities in the Decision Analytics segment. The Company
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paid a net cash purchase price of $14.1 million after a working capital adjustment of $0.3 million. The final
purchase price allocation of the acquisition is presented as “Others” in the table below.

On May 19, 2015, the Company acquired 100 percent of the stock of Wood Mackenzie for a net cash
purchase price of $2,889.6 million, including $78.7 million of an indemnity escrow, which the Company
financed through a combination of debt and equity offerings, borrowings under the Company’s Credit Facility,
and cash on hand. Due to the fact that a portion of the purchase price was funded in pounds sterling and the
remainder in U.S. dollars, the Company entered into a foreign currency hedging instrument to purchase pounds
sterling. The Company recorded a gain on the hedge of $85.2 million within “Gain on derivative instruments” in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The proceeds from the gain were utilized to partially
fund the acquisition of Wood Mackenzie. Wood Mackenzie is a global provider of data analytics and commercial
intelligence for the energy, chemicals, metals and mining verticals. This acquisition advances the Company’s
strategy to expand internationally and positions the Company in the global energy market. Wood Mackenzie is
included in the energy and specialized markets vertical, formerly named the specialized markets vertical, of the
Decision Analytics segment.

The final purchase price allocations of the acquisitions resulted in the following:

Wood
Mackenzie Others Total

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 35.4 $ 6.0 $ 41.4
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 80.3 2.0 82.3
Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 97.4 0.2 97.6
Fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71.9 0.3 72.2
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,112.0 17.2 1,129.2
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,002.4 40.7 2,043.1
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.0 5.0 7.0

Total assets acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,401.4 71.4 3,472.8

Current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122.0 4.1 126.1
Deferred revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 142.5 2.8 145.3
Deferred income taxes, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 204.3 2.9 207.2
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.6 4.7 12.3

Total liabilities assumed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 476.4 14.5 490.9

Net assets acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,925.0 56.9 2,981.9

Less: Cash acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.4 6.0 41.4

Net cash purchase price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,889.6 $50.9 $2,940.5
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The Company determined the fair values of the assets and liabilities of Wood Mackenzie, Infield and PCI
with the assistance of valuations performed by third party specialists, discounted cash flow analysis and estimates
made by management. The final amounts assigned to intangible assets by type for the acquisitions are
summarized in the table below:

Weighted
Average

Useful Life Total

Technology-based . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 years $ 112.0
Marketing-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 years 234.1
Customer-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 years 284.4
Database-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 years 498.6

Total intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,129.1

The impacts of finalization of the purchase accounting for Wood Mackenzie, Infield and PCI during the
measurement periods in accordance with ASC 805 were not material to the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. The goodwill of $2,043.1 million
associated with the stock purchases of PCI, Infield and Wood Mackenzie is not deductible for tax purposes. For
the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company incurred transaction costs related to these acquisitions of
$27.6 million included within “Selling, general and administrative” expenses and $13.3 million included within
“Interest expense” in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Refer to Note 10. Goodwill and
Intangible Assets for further discussion.

Acquisition Escrows

Pursuant to the related acquisition agreements, the Company has funded various escrow accounts to
satisfy pre-acquisition indemnity and tax claims arising subsequent to the acquisition dates, as well as a portion
of the contingent payments. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company released $3.8 million of
indemnity escrows, of which $3.2 million related to the acquisition of PCI. During the year ended December 31,
2016, the Company released $38.0 million of indemnity escrows, of which $37.0 million related to the Wood
Mackenzie acquisition. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the current portion of the escrows amounted to
$22.9 million and $4.1 million, and the noncurrent portion of the escrows amounted to $26.3 million and
$6.3 million, respectively. The current and noncurrent portions of the escrows have been included in “Other
current assets” and “Other assets” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, respectively.

9. Discontinued Operations:

2016 Discontinued Operation

On June 1, 2016, the Company sold 100 percent of the stock of its healthcare business, Verisk Health
(“Verisk Health”), in exchange for a purchase price that consisted of $714.6 million of cash consideration after a
working capital adjustment of $5.4 million, a subordinated promissory note with a face value of $100.0 million
and an eight year maturity (the “Note”), and other contingent consideration (collectively, the “Sale”). Results of
operations for the healthcare business are reported as a discontinued operation for the year ended December 31,
2016 and for all prior periods presented.

The Note has a stated interest rate of 9.0% per annum, increasing to 11.0% per annum at the earlier of
specified refinancings or acquisitions, or the fourth anniversary of the closing of the Sale. Interest shall accrue
from the closing date and on each anniversary of the Sale until the Note is paid in full on the unpaid principal
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amount of the Note outstanding at the interest rate in effect (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve
30-day months). On each anniversary of the Sale, accrued interest shall be paid in kind by adding the amount of
such accrued interest to the outstanding principal amount of the Note. The issuer of the Note may, at its option at
any time prior to the maturity date, prepay any, or all, of the principal amount of the Note, plus accrued but
unpaid interest as of the elected prepayment date, without any premium or penalty. There is a mandatory
prepayment of the Note as a result of (i) the proceeds of a specified dividend recapitalization received by the
issuer, (ii) the consummation of a change of control of the issuer, or (iii) the sale, transfer or other disposition by
the parent of the issuer of more than 10.0% of the capital stock of the issuer. As of December 31, 2017, the
Company had a receivable of $95.3 million outstanding under the Note. The carrying value of the Note
represents amortized cost. The fair value of the Note is based on management estimates with the assistance of
valuations performed by third party specialists, discounted cash flow analysis based on current market conditions
and assumptions that the Note would be paid in full at maturity, including accrued interest, with no prepayment
election. Refer to Note 6. Fair Value Measurements for further discussion.

The Company also received a 10.0% non-participating interest in the issuer’s stock, the exercise value of
which will be contingent on the parent of the issuer realizing a specified rate of return on its investment. As of
December 31, 2017, the Company had an equity investment of $8.4 million related to such interest accounted for
in accordance with ASC 323-10-25, The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock (“ASC
323-10-25”). The value of the equity investment has been included in “Other assets” in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

The healthcare business met the criteria for being reported as discontinued operations and have been
segregated from continuing operations. The following table summarizes the results from discontinued operations
for the years ended December 31:

2016 2015

Revenues from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 112.3 $307.3

Expenses:
Cost of revenues (exclusive of items shown separately below) . . . . . . . . . 75.9 191.3
Selling, general and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36.5 34.3
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.1 24.0
Amortization of intangibles assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.9 24.4

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 125.4 274.0
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (13.1) 33.3
Other income (expense):
Gain on sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 265.9 —
Investment income and others, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.2 0.1

Total other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 266.1 0.1
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 253.0 33.4
Provision for income taxes (including tax on the gain of $111.8 million for
2016) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (113.3) (13.3)

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 139.7 $ 20.1
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Net cash provided by operating activities and net cash used in investing activities from the healthcare
business for the years ended December 31:

2016 2015

Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 21.4 $ 73.2
Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(10.6) $(27.4)

10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

The Company completed the required annual impairment test as of June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, which
resulted in no impairment of goodwill. Based on the results of the impairment assessment as of June 30, 2017,
the Company determined that the fair value of its reporting units exceeded their respective carrying value. There
were no goodwill impairment indicators after the date of the last annual impairment test.

The following is a summary of the change in goodwill from December 31, 2015 through December 31,
2017, both in total and as allocated to the Company’s operating segments:

Risk
Assessment

Decision
Analytics Total

Goodwill at December 31, 2015(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 55.5 $2,697.5 $2,753.0
Acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16.2 43.8 60.0
Purchase accounting reclassifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 12.8 12.8
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.4) (247.3) (247.7)

Goodwill at December 31, 2016(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71.3 2,506.8 2,578.1
Current year acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32.7 613.8 646.5
Purchase accounting reclassifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2.8) (1.6) (4.4)
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.3 145.2 148.5

Goodwill at December 31, 2017(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $104.5 $3,264.2 $3,368.7

(1) These balances are net of accumulated impairment charges of $3.2 million that occurred prior to
December 31, 2015.
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The Company’s intangible assets and related accumulated amortization consisted of the following:

Weighted
Average
Useful Life Cost

Accumulated
Amortization Net

December 31, 2017
Technology-based . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 years $ 421.0 $(222.9) $ 198.1
Marketing-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 years 263.9 (62.9) 201.0
Contract-based . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 years 5.0 (5.0) —
Customer-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 years 704.2 (174.0) 530.2
Database-based . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 years 474.7 (58.7) 416.0

Total intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . $1,868.8 $(523.5) $1,345.3

December 31, 2016
Technology-based . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 years $ 310.9 $(196.6) $ 114.3
Marketing-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 years 227.5 (47.5) 180.0
Contract-based . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 years 5.0 (5.0) —
Customer-related . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 years 483.1 (128.5) 354.6
Database-based . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 years 393.9 (32.0) 361.9

Total intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . $1,420.4 $(409.6) $1,010.8

Amortization expense related to intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,
was $101.8 million, $92.5 million, and $70.4 million, respectively. Estimated amortization expense in future
periods through 2023 and thereafter for intangible assets subject to amortization is as follows:

Year Amount

2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 129.1
2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 128.2
2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 126.0
2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 115.5
2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 104.2
2023 and thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 742.3

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,345.3

11. Income Taxes:

Domestic and foreign income from continuing operations before income taxes was as follows:

2017 2016 2015

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $669.9 $626.6 $573.3
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21.1 27.1 110.8

Total income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $691.0 $653.7 $684.1
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The components of the provision for income taxes from continuing operations for the years ended
December 31 were as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Current:
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $176.6 $171.7 $168.8
State and local . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23.4 24.0 23.9
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.5 3.6 3.3

Total current provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 209.5 199.3 196.0

Deferred:
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (66.3) 29.4 23.4
State and local . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.7 4.9 1.4
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (13.0) (31.4) (24.2)

Total deferred provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (73.6) 2.9 0.6

Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $135.9 $202.2 $196.6

On December 22, 2017, President Trump signed comprehensive tax legislation commonly referred to as
the Tax Cuts and Job Act (“Tax Act”). The Tax Act makes complex changes to the tax law which will impact the
2017 year, including but not limited to 1) a re-measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities as a result of the
corporate tax rate change from 35.0% to 21.0%, 2) 100% bonus depreciation on qualifying property placed in
service after September 27, 2017, and 3) requiring a one-time repatriation tax on foreign earnings.

Based on the initial analysis of the Tax Act, the Company has made reasonable estimates of its 2017
impact and has recorded provisional adjustments as follows:

1) Due to the federal corporate rate reduction, a re-measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
resulted in the recording of a benefit of approximately $89.1 million.

2) 100% bonus depreciation on qualifying assets resulted in an estimated decrease to the current
income tax payable of approximately $8.0 million.

3) The Company is not expected to be impacted by the one-time repatriation tax on foreign earnings.

The Tax Act will also affect 2018 and forward, including but not limited to 1) a reduction in the federal
corporate rate from 35.0% to 21.0%, 2) elimination of the corporate alternative minimum tax, 3) creation of a
new minimum tax — the base erosion anti-abuse tax (“BEAT”), 4) a general elimination of U.S. federal income
taxes on dividends from foreign subsidiaries, 5) a new provision designed to tax global intangible low-taxed
income (“GILTI”), 6) a new limitation on deductible interest expense, 7) the repeal of Section 199 domestic
production activity deduction, 8) a new limitation on the deductibility of certain executive compensation, 9)
limitations on net operating losses (“NOL’s”) generated after December 31, 2017, 10) a special deduction for
Foreign Derived Intangible Income (“FDII”) and various other items. The Company has evaluated the above
provisions and other than the reduction in corporate tax rate, it does not believe that the new provisions will have
a material impact on the provision for income taxes.
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The reconciliation between the Company’s effective tax rate on income from continuing operations and
the statutory tax rate is as follows for the years ended December 31:

2017 2016 2015

Federal statutory rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.6% 2.7% 2.6%
Foreign tax differentials . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2.1)% (4.7)% (6.8)%
Federal Tax Reform-deferred rate change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (12.9)% —% —%
U.K. legislative change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . —% (1.0)% (2.1)%
Stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2.5)% —% —%
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.4)% (1.1)% —%

Effective tax rate for continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19.7% 30.9% 28.7%

The decrease in the effective tax rate in 2017 compared to 2016 was primarily due to lowered federal
income tax rates as a result of U.S. Tax Reform and the adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, partially offset by
legislation enacted in the U.K.

The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company’s deferred tax assets as of December 31 are
as follows:

2017 2016

Deferred income tax asset:
Employee wages, pension and other benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 15.5 $ 30.1
Deferred rent . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.8 6.3
Net operating loss carryover . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36.4 24.3
Capital and other unrealized losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.1 3.5
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.1 —
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8.2 12.3

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75.1 76.5
Less valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (17.6) (8.1)

Deferred income tax asset . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57.5 68.4

Deferred income tax liability:
Fixed assets and intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (366.2) (355.2)
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (13.2) (19.8)

Deferred income tax liability . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (379.4) (375.0)

Deferred income tax liability, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(321.9) $(306.6)

The net deferred income liability of $321.9 million consists primarily of timing differences involving
depreciation and amortization.
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The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets depends on the Company’s ability to generate sufficient
taxable income in the future. The Company has provided a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets
associated with the interest expense deduction limitation in the U.K. The Company has also provided for a
valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets associated with the net operating losses of certain subsidiaries.
The Company’s net operating loss carryforwards expire as follows:

Years Amount

2018-2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.9
2026-2030 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.8
2031-2037 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 205.8

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $211.5

A valuation allowance has been established based on the Company’s evaluation of the likelihood of
utilizing these benefits before they expire. The Company has determined that the generation of future taxable
income from certain subsidiaries to fully realize the deferred tax assets is uncertain. Other than these items, the
Company has determined, based on the Company’s historical operating performance, that taxable income of the
Company will more likely than not be sufficient to fully realize the deferred tax assets.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company has not made a provision for U.S. or additional foreign
withholdings taxes for any additional outside basis difference inherent in its foreign subsidiaries, as these
amounts continue to be indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. Determining the amount of unrecognized
deferred tax liability related to any additional outside basis difference in these entities is not practicable. The
Company does not rely on these unremitted earnings as a source of funds for its domestic business as it expects
to have sufficient cash flow in the U.S. to fund its U.S. operational and strategic needs.

The Company follows ASC No. 740-10, which prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial
statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in income tax returns. For each tax position, the Company must determine whether it is more likely than
not that the position will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation. A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition
threshold is then measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognize within the financial statements. No
benefits may be recognized for tax positions that do not meet the more likely than not threshold. A reconciliation
of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefit is as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Unrecognized tax benefit as of January 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $16.8 $14.5 $10.6
Gross increase in tax positions in prior period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.7 2.5 7.1
Gross decrease in tax positions in prior period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1.2) (0.4) (2.6)
Gross increase in tax positions in current period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 6.4 —
Settlements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (5.3) (0.3)
Lapse of statute of limitations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1.0) (0.9) (0.3)

Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . $16.3 $16.8 $14.5

Of the total unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, $13.2 million,
$13.8 million and $11.4 million, respectively, represent the amounts that, if recognized, would have a favorable
effect on the Company’s effective tax rate in any future periods.
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The total gross amount of accrued interest and penalties for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and
2015 was $4.5 million, $3.4 million and $2.8 million, respectively. The Company’s practice is to recognize
interest and penalties associated with income taxes as a component of “Provision for income taxes” in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The Company does not expect a significant increase in unrecognized benefits related to federal, foreign,
or state tax exposures within the coming year. In addition, the Company believes that it is reasonably possible
that approximately $0.5 million of its currently remaining unrecognized tax positions, each of which is
individually insignificant, may be recognized by the end of 2018 as a result of a combination of audit settlements
and lapses of statute of limitations, net of additional uncertain tax positions.

The Company is subject to tax in the U.S. and in various state and foreign jurisdictions. The Company
joined by its domestic subsidiaries, files a consolidated income tax return for the Federal income tax purposes.
With few exceptions, none of which are material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of
December 31, 2017, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state, and local or non-US income tax
examinations by tax authorities for tax years before 2013. The Internal Revenue Service is conducting an audit of
Wood Mackenzie, Inc. for the period January 1, 2014 through May 19, 2015, as well as Verisk Analytics, Inc. &
Subsidiaries for tax year ended December 31, 2014. In New Jersey, the Company is being audited for the years
ended December 31, 2011 through 2014 with a statute extension until March 31, 2018. The Company is also
under audit in Illinois for the year ended December 31, 2014. The Company does not expect that the results of
these examinations will have a material effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flow.

12. Composition of Certain Financial Statement Captions:

The following table presents the components of “Other current assets”, “Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities” and “Other liabilities” as of December 31:

2017 2016

Other current assets:
Acquisition related escrows . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 22.9 $ 4.1
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16.2 16.2

Total other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 39.1 $ 20.3

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Accrued salaries, benefits and other related costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $115.3 $ 88.6
Escrow liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22.9 4.1
Accrued interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18.3 17.0
Trade accounts payable and other accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 68.9 74.3

Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $225.4 $184.0
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13. Debt:

The following table presents short-term and long-term debt by issuance as of December 31:

Issuance
Date

Maturity
Date 2017 2016

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term
debt:
Syndicated revolving credit facility . . . . . . . . . . Various Various $ 715.0 $ 100.0
Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Various Various 9.4 6.8

Short-term debt and current portion of long-
term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 724.4 106.8

Long-term debt:
Senior notes:
4.000% senior notes, less unamortized

discount and debt issuance costs of
$9.1 million and $10.4 million,
respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5/15/2015 6/15/2025 890.9 889.6

5.500% senior notes, less unamortized
discount and debt issuance costs of
$4.9 million and $5.0 million,
respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5/15/2015 6/15/2045 345.1 345.0

4.125% senior notes, less unamortized
discount and debt issuance costs of
$2.9 million and $3.5 million,
respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9/12/2012 9/12/2022 347.1 346.5

4.875% senior notes, less unamortized
discount and debt issuance costs of
$0.7 million and $1.4 million,
respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12/8/2011 1/15/2019 249.3 248.6

5.80% senior notes, less unamortized
discount and debt issuance costs of
$1.8 million and $2.4 million,
respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4/6/2011 5/1/2021 448.2 447.6

Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Various Various 7.6 7.1
Syndicated revolving credit facility debt
issuance costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3.8) (4.2)

Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,284.4 2,280.2

Total debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,008.8 $2,387.0

Accrued interest associated with the Company’s outstanding debt obligations was $18.3 million and
$17.0 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and included in “Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities” within the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Interest expense associated with the
Company’s outstanding debt obligations was $119.4 million, $120.0 million and $121.4 million for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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Senior Notes

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had senior notes with an aggregate principal amount of
$2,300.0 million outstanding. Interest on senior notes is payable semiannually. The discount and debt issuance
costs were recorded in “Long-term debt” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and these costs will be
amortized to “Interest expense” in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations over the life of the
respective senior note. The indenture governing senior notes restricts the Company’s ability to, among other
things, create certain liens, enter into sale/leaseback transactions and consolidate with, sell, lease, convey or
otherwise transfer all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, or merge with or into, any other person or
entity. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company was in compliance with the financial debt covenants
governing the senior notes.

Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility

The Company has a committed senior unsecured Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility (the “Credit
Facility”) with Bank of America N.A., JP Morgan Chase, N.A., Sun Trust Bank, Wells Fargo Bank N.A.,
Citizens Bank, N.A., Morgan Stanley, N.A., HSBC Bank USA, N.A., Royal Bank of Canada, BNP Paribas, TD
Bank, N.A., The Northern Trust Company, and Capital One N.A. On May 18, 2017, the Company entered into
the third amendment to the Credit Facility, which, among other things, extended the maturity date one year to
May 15, 2022. The Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital needs
and capital expenditures, acquisitions and the share repurchase program (the “Repurchase Program”). The Credit
Facility contains certain financial and other covenants that, among other things, impose certain restrictions on
indebtedness, liens, investments, and capital expenditures. These covenants also place restrictions on mergers,
asset sales, sale/leaseback transactions, payments between the Company and its subsidiaries, and certain
transactions with affiliates. The financial covenants require that, at the end of any fiscal quarter, the Company
has a consolidated interest coverage ratio of at least 3.0 to 1.0 and that it maintains, during any period of four
fiscal quarters, a consolidated funded debt leverage ratio of less than 3.5 to 1.0. The Company was in compliance
with all financial covenants under the Credit Facility as of December 31, 2017. Interest on borrowings under the
Credit Facility is payable at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.125% to 1.625%, depending upon the consolidated
funded debt leverage ratio. A commitment fee on any unused balance is payable periodically and may range from
12.50 to 25.00 basis points based upon the consolidated funded debt leverage ratio. As of December 31, 2017 and
2016, the Company had outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility of $715.0 million and $100.0 million,
respectively.

Private Placements

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had no outstanding private placement debt. The Company
prepaid this debt and the contractual costs for the prepayment was $4.8 million, which was recorded to “Interest
expense” in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Bridge Financing

On March 10, 2015, in connection with the Company’s acquisition of Wood Mackenzie, the Company
entered into a commitment letter for a $2,300.0 million 364-day bridge financing arrangement with Bank of
America N.A. and Morgan Stanley Bank N.A. acting as joint lead arrangers. This financing arrangement was
terminated upon the closing of the acquisition. The Company paid fees associated with this financing
arrangement of $9.1 million. Due to the completion of the debt and equity offerings, this arrangement was
terminated and the full $9.1 million of fees were recorded to “Interest expense” in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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The Company was in compliance with all financial covenants at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Debt Maturities

The following table reflects the Company’s debt maturities:

Year Amount

2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 724.4
2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 253.9
2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.3
2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 451.4
2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 350.0
2023 and thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,250.0

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,032.0

14. Stockholders’ Equity:

The Company has 2,000,000,000 shares of authorized common stock as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.
The common shares have rights to any dividend declared by the board of directors, subject to any preferential or
other rights of any outstanding preferred stock, and voting rights to elect all thirteen members of the board of
directors.

The Company has 80,000,000 shares of authorized preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share. The
preferred shares have preferential rights over the common shares with respect to dividends and net distribution
upon liquidation. The Company did not issue any preferred shares as of December 31, 2017.

Share Repurchase Program

Since May 2010, the Company has authorized repurchases of up to $2,800.0 million of its common stock
through its Repurchase Program. Since the introduction of share repurchase as a feature of the Company’s capital
management strategies in 2010, the Company has repurchased shares with an aggregate value of
$2,433.8 million. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had $366.2 million available to repurchase shares. The
Company has no obligation to repurchase stock under this program and intends to use this authorization as a
means of offsetting dilution from the issuance of shares under the ISO 401(k) Savings and Employee Stock
Ownership Plan (“KSOP”), the Verisk 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2013 Incentive Plan”), the Verisk 2009
Equity Incentive Plan (the “2009 Incentive Plan”), and the ISO 1996 Incentive Plan (the “1996 Incentive Plan”),
while providing flexibility to repurchase additional shares if warranted. This authorization has no expiration date
and may be increased, reduced, suspended, or terminated at any time. Shares that are repurchased under the
Repurchase Program will be recorded as treasury stock and will be available for future issuance.

During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company repurchased 3,356,360 and 4,325,548
shares of common stock as part of the Repurchase Program at a weighted average price of $80.39 and $77.06 per
share, respectively. The Company utilized cash from operations and borrowings from its Credit Facility to fund
these repurchases.

Treasury Stock

As of December 31, 2017, the Company’s treasury stock consisted of 379,124,108 shares of common
stock. During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company reissued 1,319,518 and 1,816,339
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shares of common stock, under the 2013 Incentive Plan, 2009 Incentive Plan and the 1996 Incentive Plan, from
the treasury shares at a weighted average price of $8.13 and $7.23 per share, respectively.

Earnings Per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS
computations for the years ended December 31:

2017 2016 2015

(In millions, except for share and per share data)

Numerator used in basic and diluted EPS:
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . $ 555.1 $ 451.5 $ 487.5
Income from discontinued operations . . . . . — 139.7 20.1

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 555.1 $ 591.2 $ 507.6

Denominator:
Weighted average number of common
shares used in basic EPS . . . . . . . . . . . . . 165,168,224 168,248,304 165,090,380

Effect of dilutive shares:
Potential common stock issuable from

stock options and stock awards . . . . . . . . 3,520,644 2,923,268 3,360,963

Weighted average number of common
shares and dilutive potential common
shares used in diluted EPS . . . . . . . . . 168,688,868 171,171,572 168,451,343

The potential shares of common stock that were excluded from diluted EPS were 1,967,409, 1,724,338
and 1,221,301 at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, because the effect of including those potential
shares was anti-dilutive.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Losses

The following is a summary of accumulated other comprehensive losses as of December 31:

2017 2016

Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(334.4) $(561.4)
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.7 0.3
Pension and postretirement adjustment, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (78.6) (89.7)

Accumulated other comprehensive losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(412.3) $(650.8)
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The before tax and after tax amounts of other comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31, 2017,
2016 and 2015 are summarized below:

Before
Tax

Tax Benefit
(Expense) After Tax

December 31, 2017
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 227.0 $ — $ 227.0

Unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities before
reclassifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.5 (0.1) 0.4

Unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.5 (0.1) 0.4

Pension and postretirement adjustment before reclassifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19.7 (4.9) 14.8
Amortization of net actuarial loss and prior service benefit reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive losses(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4.9) 1.2 (3.7)

Pension and postretirement adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14.8 (3.7) 11.1

Total other comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 242.3 $(3.8) $ 238.5

December 31, 2016
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(395.6) $ — $(395.6)

Unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities before
reclassifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.5 (0.2) 0.3

Unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.5 (0.2) 0.3

Pension and postretirement adjustment before reclassifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (18.1) 6.8 (11.3)
Amortization of net actuarial loss and prior service benefit reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive losses(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3.6) 1.4 (2.2)

Pension and postretirement adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (21.7) 8.2 (13.5)

Total other comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(416.8) $ 8.0 $(408.8)

December 31, 2015
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(162.7) $ — $(162.7)

Unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities before
reclassifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.4 (0.2) 0.2
Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive losses(1) . . . . . . (0.2) 0.1 (0.1)

Unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.2 (0.1) 0.1

Pension and postretirement adjustment before reclassifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.3 (2.2) 3.1
Amortization of net actuarial loss and prior service benefit reclassified from

accumulated other comprehensive losses(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3.3) 1.3 (2.0)

Pension and postretirement adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.0 (0.9) 1.1

Total other comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(160.5) $(1.0) $(161.5)

(1) This accumulated other comprehensive losses component, before tax, is included under “Investment income
and others, net” in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

(2) This accumulated other comprehensive losses component, before tax, is included under “Cost of revenues”
and “Selling, general and administrative” in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. This
component is also included in the computation of net periodic benefit (credit) cost (see Note 16 Pension and
Postretirement Benefits for additional details).
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15. Compensation Plans:

KSOP

The Company has established the KSOP for the benefit of eligible employees in the U.S. and Puerto Rico.
The KSOP includes both an employee savings component and an employee stock ownership component. The
purpose of the combined plan is to enable the Company’s employees to participate in a tax-deferred savings
arrangement under Internal Revenue Service Code Sections 401(a) and 401(k) (the “Code”), and to provide
employee equity participation in the Company through the employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”) accounts.

Under the KSOP, eligible employees may make pre-tax and after-tax cash contributions as a percentage
of their compensation, subject to certain limitations under the applicable provisions of the Code. The maximum
pre-tax contribution that can be made to the 401(k) account as determined under the provisions of Code
Section 401(g) is eighteen thousand dollars for 2017, 2016 and 2015. Certain eligible participants (age 50 and
older) may contribute an additional six thousand dollars on a pre-tax basis for 2017, 2016 and 2015. After-tax
contributions are limited to 10.0% of a participant’s compensation. The quarterly matching contributions are
primarily equal to 75.0% of the first 6.0% of the participant’s contribution.

The Company established the ESOP component as a funding vehicle for the KSOP. The common shares
acquired by the KSOP were pledged as collateral under an intercompany loan agreement (“ESOP loan”) between
the KSOP and Company. The Company accounted for its ESOP in accordance with ASC 718-40, Employee
Stock Ownership Plans (“ASC 718-40”) and ASC 480-10, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (“ASC
480-10”). As of December 31, 2015, the KSOP no longer had any outstanding ESOP loan balance with the
Company. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company instructed the KSOP to release 145,007 shares
of common stock at a weighted average per price of $72.06 to fund the quarterly matching contributions. Upon
maturity of the ESOP loan, the Company issued common stock under the KSOP from the Company’s treasury
shares to fund the 401(k) matching contributions. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued
181,198 shares of common stock at a weighted average per price of $79.97 to fund the quarterly matching
contributions. The Company also contributed a total of $18.8 million of cash to the KSOP for the year ended
December 31, 2016. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company opted to fund the 401(k) matching
contributions in cash in lieu of issuance of common stock from treasury shares and made cash contributions of
$15.6 million. KSOP compensation expense including the discontinued operations funded by the Company’s
common stock for 2016 and 2015 was $14.5 million and $14.1 million, respectively. At December 31, 2017,
2016 and 2015, the fair value of Verisk common stock was $96.00, $81.17, and $76.88 per share, respectively.

In 2005, the Company established the ISO Profit Sharing Plan (the “Profit Sharing Plan”), a defined
contribution plan, to replace the qualified pension plan for all eligible employees hired on or after March 1, 2005.
The Profit Sharing Plan is a component of the KSOP. Eligible employees participated in the Profit Sharing Plan
if they completed 1,000 hours of service each plan year and were employed on December 31 of that year. The
Company can make a discretionary contribution to the Profit Sharing Plan based on the annual performance of
the Company. Participants vest once they have completed four years and 1,000 hours of service. For the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, there were no profit sharing contributions.

Equity Compensation Plans

All of the Company’s outstanding stock options and restricted stock are covered under the 2013 Incentive
Plan, 2009 Incentive Plan or the 1996 Incentive Plan. Awards under the 2013 Incentive Plan may include one or
more of the following types: (i) stock options (both nonqualified and incentive stock options), (ii) stock
appreciation rights, (iii) restricted stock, (iv) restricted stock units, (v) performance awards, (vi) other share-
based awards, and (vii) cash. Employees, directors and consultants are eligible for awards under the 2013
Incentive Plan. The Company issued common stock under these plans from the Company’s treasury shares. The
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number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2013 Incentive Plan is 15,700,000 and such
amount shall be reduced on a 1-for-1 basis for every share issued that is subject to an option or stock appreciation
right and on a 2.5-for-1 basis for every share issued that is subject to an award other than an option or stock
appreciation right. Shares that were subject to an award under the 2013 Incentive Plan that become forfeited,
expired or otherwise terminated shall again be available for issuance under the 2013 Incentive Plan on a 1-for-1
basis if the shares were subject to options or stock appreciation rights, and on an 2.5-for-1 basis if the shares were
subject to awards other than options or stock appreciation rights. As of December 31, 2017, there were 6,761,346
shares of common stock reserved and available for future issuance. Cash received from stock option exercises
including the discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 was $35.0 million,
$41.1 million and $38.8 million, respectively.

The Company has granted equity awards to key employees and directors. The nonqualified stock options
have an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date, with a
ten-year contractual term. The fair value of the restricted stock is determined using the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the grant date. The restricted stock is not assignable or transferable until it
becomes vested. The Company recognizes the expense of the equity awards over the vesting period. A summary
of the equity awards granted for the year ended December 31, 2017 is presented below.

Grant Date Service Vesting Period Stock Options Restricted Stock Common Stock

January 1 to December 31,
2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Four-year graded vesting 1,318,107 273,966 —

April 1, 2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . Two-year graded vesting 47,030 11,272 —
July 1, 2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . One-year graded vesting 75,133 10,308 —
April 1 to September 30,
2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Not applicable — 1,304 3,573

1,440,270 296,850 3,573

The fair value of the stock options granted was estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes
option valuation model that uses the weighted-average assumptions noted in the following table during the years
ended December 31:

2017 2016 2015

Option pricing model . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
Expected volatility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18.72% 20.26% 19.51%
Risk-free interest rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.82% 1.14% 1.29%
Expected term in years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.5 4.5 4.5
Dividend yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . —% —% —%
Weighted average grant date fair value per

stock option . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 15.71 $ 15.33 $ 13.58

The expected term for the stock options granted for a majority of the awards granted was estimated based
on studies of historical experience and projected exercise behavior. However, for certain awards granted, for
which no historical exercise pattern exists, the expected term was estimated using the simplified method. The
risk-free interest rate is based on the yield of U.S. Treasury zero coupon securities with a maturity equal to the
expected term of the equity award. The volatility factor is calculated using historical daily closing prices over the
most recent period that is commensurate with the expected term of the stock option awards. The expected
dividend yield was based on the Company’s expected annual dividend rate on the date of grant.
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A summary of options outstanding under the Incentive Plan and the Option Plan and changes during the
three years then ended is presented below:

Number
of Options

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
Per Share

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

(In millions, except for share and per share data)

Outstanding at January 1, 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,205,690 $31.11 $303.3

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,884,262 $72.20
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,739,847) $23.71 $ 87.0

Cancelled or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (232,372) $64.05

Outstanding at December 31, 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,117,733 $40.17 $334.7

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,364,916 $80.23
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,409,803) $31.47 $ 69.3

Cancelled or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (301,929) $73.01

Outstanding at December 31, 2016 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,770,917 $46.67 $302.6

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,440,270 $81.33
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,125,004) $33.66 $ 57.2

Cancelled or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (179,074) $76.70

Outstanding at December 31, 2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,907,109 $53.31 $380.2

Options exercisable at December 31, 2017 . . . . . 5,995,339 $41.50 $326.8

Options exercisable at December 31, 2016 . . . . . 6,148,349 $35.35 $281.7
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A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvested options and changes is presented below:

Number
of Options

Weighted
Average

Grant-Date
Fair Value
Per Share

Nonvested balance at January 1, 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,045,795 $12.55

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,884,262 $13.58
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,121,181) $13.24
Cancelled or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (232,372) $13.05

Nonvested balance at December 31, 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,576,504 $12.95

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,364,916 $15.33
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,016,923) $12.78
Cancelled or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (301,929) $14.18

Nonvested balance at December 31, 2016 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,622,568 $14.12

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,440,270 $15.71
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (971,994) $14.19
Cancelled or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (179,074) $14.53

Nonvested balance at December 31, 2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,911,770 $14.86

Intrinsic value for stock options is calculated based on the exercise price of the underlying awards and the
quoted price of Verisk’s common stock as of the reporting date. The Company adopted ASU No. 2016-09
prospectively on January 1, 2017 and excess tax benefits from exercised stock options were recorded as income
tax benefit in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. This tax benefit is calculated as the
excess of the intrinsic value of options exercised and restricted stock lapsed in excess of compensation
recognized for financial reporting purposes. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded
excess tax benefit from exercised stock options of $19.0 million as income tax benefit in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Prior to the adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded excess tax benefit from exercised stock options of
$23.3 million and $29.2 million, respectively, in “Additional paid-in capital” in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The Company realized $28.4 million, $31.4 million and $40.1 million of tax benefit within the
Company’s tax payments through December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company estimates
expected forfeitures of equity awards at the date of grant and recognizes compensation expense only for those
awards that the Company expects to vest. Estimated forfeiture is ultimately adjusted to actual forfeiture. Changes
in the forfeiture assumptions may impact the total amount of expense ultimately recognized over the requisite
service period and may impact the timing of expense recognized over the requisite service period. Stock based
compensation expense, including the discontinued operations, for 2017, 2016 and 2015 was $31.8 million,
$30.0 million and $30.5 million, respectively.
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A summary of the status of the restricted stock awarded under the 2013 Incentive Plan and changes is
presented below:

Number
of Shares

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value
Per Share

Outstanding at January 1, 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 442,310 $56.84

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 350,004 $72.24
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (211,265) $58.64
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (47,281) $63.10

Outstanding at December 31, 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 533,768 $66.25

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 292,941 $80.27
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (230,683) $64.44
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (58,359) $72.86

Outstanding at December 31, 2016 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 537,667 $73.34

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 296,850 $82.02
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (197,403) $70.72
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (32,650) $77.13

Outstanding at December 31, 2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 604,464 $78.28

For the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, certain employees had restricted stock vesting and
covered the aggregate statutory minimum tax withholding of $2.9 million and $3.1 million through a net
settlement of 36,067 shares and 38,250 shares, respectively.

As of December 31, 2017, there was $68.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the 2013 Incentive Plan and the 2009 Incentive
Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.53 years. As of December 31,
2017, there were 2,911,770 and 604,331 nonvested stock options and restricted stock, respectively, of which
2,450,191 and 509,701 are expected to vest. The total grant date fair value of options vested during the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 was $16.6 million, $14.2 million and $16.8 million, respectively. The
total grant date fair value of restricted stock vested during the year ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015
was $17.6 million, $14.4 million and $16.3 million, respectively.

The Company also offers eligible employees the opportunity to participate in an employee stock purchase
plan (“ESPP”). Under the ESPP, participating employees may authorize payroll deductions of up to 20.0% of
their regular base salary and up to 50.0% of their short-term incentive compensation, both of which in total may
not exceed twenty-five thousand dollars in any calendar year, to purchase shares of the Company’s common
stock at a 5.0% discount of its fair market value at the time of purchase. In accordance with ASC 718, the ESPP
is noncompensatory as the purchase discount is 5.0% or less from the fair market value, substantially all
employees that meet limited employment qualifications may participate, and it incorporates no option features.
During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company issued 29,605, 29,867 and 25,599
shares of common stock at a weighted average discounted price of $81.38, $76.75 and $70.27, respectively.
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16. Pension and Postretirement Benefits:

The Company has a frozen qualified defined benefit pension plan for certain of its employees through
membership in the Pension Plan for Insurance Organizations (the “Pension Plan”), a multiple-employer trust.
Prior to the freeze, the Company applied a cash balance formula to determine future benefits. Under the cash
balance formula, each participant has an account, which was credited annually based on salary rates determined
by years of service, as well as the interest earned on the previous year-end cash balance. The Company also has a
non-qualified frozen supplemental cash balance plan (“SERP”) for certain employees. The SERP is funded from
the general assets of the Company.

The Pension Plan’s funding policy is to contribute annually at an amount between the minimum funding
requirements set forth in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and the maximum amount that
can be deducted for federal income tax purposes. The minimum contribution requirement was and is expected to
be $0 in 2017 and 2018, respectively. The Company contributed $0.9 million and $1.0 million to the SERP in
2017 and 2016, respectively, and expects to contribute $0.8 million in 2018.

The Company also provides certain healthcare and life insurance benefits for both active and retired
employees. The Postretirement Health and Life Insurance Plan (the “Postretirement Plan”), which has been
frozen, is contributory, requiring participants to pay a stated percentage of the premium for coverage. The
Company does not expect to contribute to the Postretirement Plan in 2018.
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The following table sets forth the changes in the benefit obligations and the plan assets, the (funded)
unfunded status of the Pension Plan, SERP and Postretirement Plan, and the amounts recognized in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets at December 31:

Pension Plan and SERP Postretirement Plan

2017 2016 2017 2016

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at January 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $438.4 $419.6 $12.8 $15.8
Interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17.1 19.3 0.4 0.4
Actuarial loss (gain) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25.4 28.5 0.7 (1.4)
Plan participants’ contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 1.6 1.9
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (28.0) (29.0) (4.2) (4.4)
Federal subsidy on benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 0.5 0.5

Benefit obligation at December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $452.9 $438.4 $11.8 $12.8

Accumulated benefit obligation at December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $452.9 $438.4

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $444.5 $438.6 $11.1 $13.0
Actual return on plan assets, net of expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67.3 33.9 0.1 0.1
Employer contributions, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.9 1.0 1.0 —
Plan participants’ contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 1.6 1.9
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (28.0) (29.0) (4.2) (4.4)
Federal subsidies received . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 0.5 0.5

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $484.7 $444.5 $10.1 $11.1

(Funded) unfunded status at December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (31.8) $ (6.1) $ 1.7 $ 1.7

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Pension assets, noncurrent . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (45.1) $ (19.6) $ — $ —
Pension, SERP and postretirement benefits, current . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.8 0.9 — —
Pension, SERP and postretirement benefits, noncurrent . . . . . . . . . 12.5 12.6 1.7 1.7

Total Pension, SERP and Postretirement benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (31.8) $ (6.1) $ 1.7 $ 1.7

The pre-tax components included within accumulated other comprehensive losses as of December 31 are
summarized below:

Pension Plan and SERP Postretirement Plan

2017 2016 2017 2016

Prior service benefit cost (credit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.5 $ 3.7 $(0.5) $(0.8)
Actuarial losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124.3 139.6 5.6 5.2

Accumulated other comprehensive losses, pretax . . . . . . . . . $127.8 $143.3 $ 5.1 $ 4.4
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The pre-tax components of net periodic benefit (credit) cost and the amounts recognized in other
comprehensive loss are summarized below for the years ended December 31:

Pension Plan and SERP Postretirement Plan

2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015

Interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 17.1 $ 19.3 $ 18.1 $ 0.4 $ 0.4 $ 0.5
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (31.1) (31.7) (34.4) (0.3) (0.5) (0.6)
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) reclassified from

accumulated other comprehensive losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.2 0.1 — (0.2) (0.1) (0.1)
Amortization of net actuarial loss reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.5 3.2 2.8 0.4 0.4 0.6

Net periodic benefit (credit) cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (9.3) (9.1) (13.5) 0.3 0.2 0.4
Amortization of prior service benefit cost (credit) reclassified
from accumulated other comprehensive losses . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.2) (0.1) — 0.2 0.1 0.1

Amortization of actuarial loss reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.1) — (0.2) — — —

Net loss recognized reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4.4) (3.2) (2.6) (0.4) (0.4) —

Plan amendments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 3.8 — — —
Actuarial gain (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (10.8) 26.4 (1.5) 0.9 (1.1) (1.6)

Total recognized in other comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . (15.5) 23.1 (0.5) 0.7 (1.4) (1.5)

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost (credit) and
other comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(24.8) $ 14.0 $(14.0) $ 1.0 $(1.2) $(1.1)

The estimated amounts in accumulated other comprehensive losses that are expected to be recognized as
components of net periodic benefit (credit) cost during 2018 are summarized below:

Pension Plan
and SERP

Postretirement
Plan Total

Amortization of prior service benefit cost (credit) . . . . . . . $0.2 $(0.2) $ —
Amortization of net actuarial loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.4 0.5 3.9

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3.6 $ 0.3 $3.9

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as of December 31, 2017 and
2016 and net periodic benefit (credit) cost for the years 2017, 2016 and 2015 are provided below:

Pension Plan and SERP Postretirement Plan

2017 2016 2017 2016

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:
Discount rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.50% 3.99% 3.00%3.25%
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.00% 7.25% 2.00%3.00%

2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit
(credit) loss:
Discount rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.99% 4.73% 3.99%3.25%3.25%3.00%
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.25% 7.50% 7.50%3.00%4.00%4.00%
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The following table presents the estimated future benefit payments for the respective plans. The future
benefit payments for the Postretirement Plan are net of the federal Medicare subsidy.

Pension Plan
and SERP

Postretirement
Plan

Gross Benefit
Amount

Gross Benefit
Amount

Medicare Subsidy
Payments

Net Benefit
Amount

2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 30.5 $2.0 $(0.3) $1.7
2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 31.5 $1.8 $(0.3) $1.5
2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 30.1 $1.7 $(0.3) $1.4
2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 30.7 $1.5 $(0.3) $1.2
2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 29.9 $1.3 $(0.3) $1.0
2023-2027 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $141.7 $4.4 $(0.2) $4.2

The healthcare cost trend rate for 2017 was 8.75% gradually decreasing to 4.50% in 2035. Assumed
healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the healthcare plan. However, a
1.00% change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have an immaterial effect to our postretirement
benefit obligation.

The subsidy from the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 reduced
the Company’s accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $1.6 million and $2.1 million as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the net periodic benefit cost by approximately $2.0 thousand,
$54.0 thousand and $7.0 thousand in fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The expected return on the Pension Plan assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 was 7.00% and 7.25%,
respectively, which was determined by taking into consideration the Company’s analysis of its actual historical
investment returns to a broader long-term forecast after adjusting for the target investment allocation and
reflecting the current economic environment. The Company’s investment guidelines target investment allocation
of 60% equity securities and 40% debt securities. The Pension Plan assets consist primarily of investments in
various fixed income and equity funds. Investment guidelines are established with each investment manager.
These guidelines provide the parameters within which the investment managers agree to operate, including
criteria that determine eligible and ineligible securities, diversification requirements and credit quality standards,
where applicable. Investment managers are prohibited from entering into any speculative hedging transactions.
The investment objective is to achieve a maximum total return with strong emphasis on preservation of capital in
real terms. The domestic equity portion of the total portfolio should range between 40% and 60%. The
international equity portion of the total portfolio should range between 10% and 20%. The fixed income portion
of the total portfolio should range between 20% and 40%. The asset allocation at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
and target allocation for 2018 by asset category are as follows:

Asset Category
Target

Allocation

Percentage of
Plan Assets

2017 2016

Equity securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60.0% 54.0% 61.6%
Debt securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40.0% 37.9% 37.8%
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . —% 8.1% 0.6%

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The Company has used the target investment allocation to derive the expected return as the Company
believes this allocation will be retained on an ongoing basis that will be commensurate with the projected cash
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flows of the plan. The expected return for each investment category within the target investment allocation is
developed using average historical rates of return for each targeted investment category, considering the
projected cash flow of the Pension Plan. The difference between this expected return and the actual return on
plan assets is generally deferred and recognized over subsequent periods through future net periodic benefit
costs. The Company believes that the use of the average historical rates of returns is consistent with the timing
and amounts of expected contributions to the plans and benefit payments to plan participants. These
considerations provide the basis for reasonable assumptions with respect to the expected long-term rate of return
on plan assets.

The Company also maintains a voluntary employees beneficiary association plan (the “VEBA Plan”)
under Section 501(c)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code to fund the Postretirement Plan. The asset allocation for
the VEBA Plan at December 31, 2017 and target allocation for 2018 are 100% in debt securities.
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There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 or 3 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. Refer
to Note 6. Fair Value Measurements for further discussion with respect to fair value hierarchy. The following
table summarizes the fair value measurements by level of the Pension Plan and Postretirement Plan assets:

Total

Quoted Prices
in Active Markets

for Identical
Assets (Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable

Inputs (Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs (Level 3)

December 31, 2017
Equity
Managed equity accounts(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $201.4 $201.4 $ — $ —
Equity — pooled separate account(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60.3 — 60.3 —
Equity — partnerships(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.2 — — 0.2

Debt
Fixed incomemanager— pooled separate account(2) . . . 183.6 — 183.6 —
Fixed income manager —government securities(4) . . 10.1 10.1 — —

Other
Cash — pooled separate account(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.5 — 0.5 —
Global real estate account(5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38.7 — 38.7 —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $494.8 $211.5 $283.1 $0.2

December 31, 2016
Equity
Managed equity accounts(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $210.2 $210.2 $ — $ —
Equity — pooled separate account(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63.2 — 63.2 —
Equity — partnerships(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.2 — — 0.2

Debt
Fixed income manager —pooled separate account(2) . . 167.9 — 167.9 —
Fixed income manager — government securities(4) . . . 11.1 11.1 — —

Other
Cash — pooled separate account(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.0 — 3.0 —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $455.6 $221.3 $234.1 $0.2

(1) Valued at the closing price of shares for domestic stocks within the managed equity accounts, and valued at
the net asset value (“NAV”) of shares for mutual funds at either the closing price reported in the active
market or based on yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings
for corporate bonds held by the Pension Plan in these managed accounts.

(2) The pooled separate accounts invest in domestic and foreign stocks, bonds and mutual funds. The fair values
of these stocks, bonds and mutual funds are publicly quoted and are used in determining the NAV of the
pooled separate account, which is not publicly quoted.

(3) Investments for which readily determinable prices do not exist are valued by the General Partner using
either the market or income approach. In establishing the estimated fair value of investments, including
those without readily determinable values, the General Partner assumes a reasonable period of time for
liquidation of the investment, and takes into consideration the financial condition and operating results of
the underlying portfolio company, nature of investment, restrictions on marketability, holding period,
market conditions, foreign currency exposures, and other factors the General Partner deems appropriate.

(4) The fund invested in the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities or securities that are rated AAA
by S&P, AAA by Fitch, or Aaa by Moody’s, including but not limited to mortgage securities such as agency
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and non-agency collateralized mortgage obligations, and other obligations that are secured by mortgages or
mortgage backed securities, and valued at the closing price reported in the active market.

(5) The funds invested in common stocks and other equity securities issued by domestic and foreign real estate
companies, including real estate investment trusts (“REIT”) and similar REIT-like entities. The fair values
of these stocks, bonds and mutual funds are publicly quoted and are used in determining the NAV of the
funds, which is not publicly quoted.

17. Segment Reporting

ASC 280-10, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information (“ASC 280-10”),
establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments. ASC 280-10 requires that a public
business enterprise reports financial and descriptive information about its reportable operating segments.
Operating segments are components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is available that is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) in deciding how to allocate resources and
in assessing performance. The Company’s President and CEO is identified as the CODM as defined by ASC
280-10. To align with the internal management of the Company’s business operations based on service offerings,
the Company is organized into the following two operating segments, which are also the Company’s reportable
segments:

Decision Analytics: The Company develops solutions that its customers use to analyze key processes
in managing risk. The Company’s combination of algorithms and analytic methods incorporates its
proprietary data to generate solutions. In most cases, the Company’s customers integrate the solutions into
their models, formulas or underwriting criteria in order to predict potential loss events, ranging from
hurricanes to earthquakes. The Company develops catastrophe and extreme event models and offers
solutions covering natural and man-made risks, including acts of terrorism. The Company also develops
solutions that allow customers to quantify costs after loss events occur. Fraud solutions include data on
claim histories, analysis of claims to find emerging patterns of fraud, and identification of suspicious claims
in the insurance sector. The Company further leverages predictive models and proprietary data to advise
customers to make asset investment and portfolio allocation decisions in the global energy market. On
June 1, 2016, the Company sold its healthcare business, Verisk Health. Results of operations for the
healthcare business are reported as discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 and for
all prior periods presented. Refer to Note 9 for more information.

Risk Assessment: The Company is the leading provider of statistical, actuarial and underwriting data
for the U.S. P&C insurance industry. The Company’s databases include cleansed and standardized records
describing premiums and losses in insurance transactions, casualty and property risk attributes for
commercial buildings and their occupants and fire suppression capabilities of municipalities. The Company
uses this data to create policy language and proprietary risk classifications that are industry standards and to
generate prospective loss cost estimates used to price insurance policies.

The two aforementioned operating segments represent the segments for which separate discrete financial
information is available and upon which operating results are regularly evaluated by the CODM in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The Company uses EBITDA as the profitability measure for making
decisions regarding ongoing operations. EBITDA is net income before interest expense, provision for income
taxes, depreciation and amortization of fixed and intangible assets. Operating expenses consist of direct and
indirect costs principally related to personnel, facilities, software license fees, consulting, travel, and third-party
information services. Indirect costs are generally allocated to the segments using fixed rates established by
management based upon estimated expense contribution levels and other assumptions that management considers
reasonable. The Company does not allocate interest expense and provision for income taxes, since these items are
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not considered in evaluating the segment’s overall operating performance. The CODM does not evaluate the
financial performance of each segment based on assets or geographical locations. On a geographic basis,
revenues from countries outside of the U.S. accounted for 21.7%, 22.6% and 18.2% of the Company’s
consolidated revenues for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. No individual
country outside of the U.S. accounted for 10.0% or more of the Company’s consolidated revenues for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

The following table provides the Company’s revenue and EBITDA by reportable segment for the years
ended December 31, as well as a reconciliation to operating income for all periods presented in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations:

2017 2016 2015

Decision
Analytics

Risk
Assessment Total

Decision
Analytics

Risk
Assessment Total

Decision
Analytics

Risk
Assessment Total

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,374.9 $ 770.3 $2,145.2 $1,270.9 $ 724.3 $1,995.2 $1,072.5 $ 688.2 $1,760.7
Expenses:

Cost of revenues (exclusive
of items shown separately
below) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (557.0) (226.8) (783.8) (490.7) (223.7) (714.4) (412.0) (200.0) (612.0)

Selling, general and
administrative . . . . . . . . . (238.3) (84.5) (322.8) (214.9) (86.7) (301.6) (196.5) (81.8) (278.3)

Investment income and
others, net . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.5 (0.3) 9.2 4.5 1.6 6.1 16.8 0.1 16.9

EBITDA from discontinued
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 266.0 — 266.0 81.7 — 81.7

Gain on derivative
instruments . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — — 85.2 — 85.2

EBITDA . . . . . . . . . . . . . 589.1 458.7 1,047.8 835.8 415.5 1,251.3 647.7 406.5 1,054.2
Depreciation and
amortization of fixed
assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (105.2) (30.4) (135.6) (91.4) (27.7) (119.1) (70.8) (25.8) (96.6)

Amortization of intangible
assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (97.8) (4.0) (101.8) (91.8) (0.7) (92.5) (70.0) (0.4) (70.4)

Investment income and
others, net . . . . . . . . . . . . (9.5) 0.3 (9.2) (4.5) (1.6) (6.1) (16.8) (0.1) (16.9)

EBITDA from discontinued
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — (266.0) — (266.0) (81.7) — (81.7)

Gain on derivative
instruments . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — — (85.2) — (85.2)

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . $ 376.6 $ 424.6 801.2 $ 382.1 $ 385.5 767.6 $ 323.2 $ 380.2 703.4

Investment income and others,
net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.2 6.1 16.9

Gain on derivative
instruments . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 85.2

Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . (119.4) (120.0) (121.4)

Income from continuing
operations before income
taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 691.0 $ 653.7 $ 684.1
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Operating segment revenue by type of service is provided below for the years ended December 31:

2017 2016 2015

Decision Analytics
Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 784.7 $ 699.8 $ 647.2
Energy and specialized markets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 444.7 442.8 308.8
Financial services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 145.5 128.3 116.5

Total Decision Analytics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,374.9 1,270.9 1,072.5

Risk Assessment
Industry-standard insurance programs . . . . . . . . . . . . 593.6 554.1 524.6
Property-specific rating and underwriting
information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 176.7 170.2 163.6

Total Risk Assessment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 770.3 724.3 688.2

Total consolidated revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,145.2 $1,995.2 $1,760.7

Long-lived assets by country are provided below as of December 31:

2017 2016

Long-lived assets:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,438.6 $1,754.0
U.K. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,656.6 2,102.5
Other countries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 327.5 273.8

Total long-lived assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $5,422.7 $4,130.3

18. Related Parties:

The Company considers its stockholders that own more than 5% of the outstanding stock within the class
to be related parties as defined within ASC 850, Related Party Disclosures. The Company had no material
transactions with related parties owning more than 5% of the entire class of stock as of December 31, 2017 and
2016, except for transactions with the KSOP as disclosed in Note 15. Compensation Plans in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the Company had no revenues from related parties for the years ended December 31, 2017,
2016 and 2015.
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19. Commitments and Contingencies:

The Company’s operations are conducted on leased premises. Approximate minimum rentals under long-
term noncancelable leases for all leased premises, computer equipment and automobiles are as follows:

Years Ending
Operating
Leases

Capital
Leases

2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 40.6 $10.0
2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41.8 4.2
2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42.9 2.4
2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34.6 1.4
2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31.5 —
2023 and thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 173.9 —

Net minimum lease payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $365.3 18.0

Less amount representing interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.0

Present value of net minimum lease capital
payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $17.0

Most of the leases require payment of property taxes and utilities and, in certain cases, contain renewal
options. Operating leases consist of office space. Capital leases consist of computer equipment, office equipment,
and leased automobiles. Rent expense on operating leases approximated $39.0 million, $39.5 million and
$37.3 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

In addition, the Company is a party to legal proceedings with respect to a variety of matters in the
ordinary course of business, including the matters described below. With respect to ongoing matters, the
Company is unable, at the present time, to determine the ultimate resolution of or provide a reasonable estimate
of the range of possible loss attributable to these matters or the impact they may have on the Company’s results
of operations, financial position or cash flows. This is primarily because the matters are generally in early stages
and discovery has either not commenced or been completed. Although the Company believes it has strong
defenses and intends to vigorously defend these matters, the Company could in the future incur judgments or
enter into settlements of claims that could have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

Intellicorp Records, Inc. Litigation

On September 9, 2015, the Company was served with a nationwide putative class action complaint filed
in the Court of Common Pleas, Cuyahoga County in Ohio naming the Company’s subsidiary Intellicorp Records,
Inc. (“Intellicorp”) titled Sherri Legrand v. Intellicorp Records, Inc. and The Cato Corporation et al. Defendants
removed the case to the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio on October 8, 2015.
Plaintiffs filed their First Amended Class Action Complaint on November 5, 2015 (“Amended Complaint”),
which like the prior complaint claims violations of the Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA”) and alleges two
putative class claims against Intellicorp, namely (i) a section 1681k(a) claim on behalf of all individuals who
were the subjects of consumer reports furnished by Intellicorp, which contained public record information in the
“Government Sanctions” section of the report on or after September 4, 2013 and continuing through the date the
class list is prepared, and (ii) a section 1681e(b) claim on behalf of all individuals who were the subjects of
consumer reports furnished by Intellicorp, which contained public record information in the “Government
Sanctions” section of the report where the address or social security number of the subject of the report do not
match the social security number or address contained in the government database on or after September 4, 2013
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and continuing through the date the class list is prepared. Count I of the Amended Complaint alleges that
defendant Cato violated the FCRA by procuring consumer reports on the plaintiff and other class members
without making the stand-alone disclosure required by FCRA section 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i). Counts II and III allege
that Intellicorp violated the FCRA section 1681e (b) by failing to follow reasonable procedures to assure
maximum accuracy of the adverse information included in its consumer reports and FCRA section 1681k (a) by
failing to maintain strict procedures to assure that the public record information reported, which was likely to
have an adverse effect on the consumer was complete and up to date, respectively. The Amended Complaint
alleges that defendants acted willfully and seeks statutory damages for the classes in an amount not less than one
hundred dollars and not more than one thousand dollars per violation, punitive damages, equitable relief, costs
and attorney’s fees.

On April 24, 2017, the parties agreed to resolve the litigation in a Settlement Agreement and Release and
plaintiffs filed their Motion for Preliminary Approval of the settlement on the same day. The settlement provides
for a non-material cash payment by the Company, as well as certain non-monetary relief. The District Court
granted the Motion for Preliminary Approval on April 25, 2017 and issued its Final Approval Order on
October 31, 2017.

Xactware Solutions, Inc. Patent Litigation

On October 8, 2015, the Company was served with a summons and complaint in an action titled Eagle
View Technologies, Inc. and Pictometry International Group, Inc. v. Xactware Solutions, Inc. and Verisk
Analytics, Inc. filed in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey. The complaint alleges that
the Company’s Roof InSight, Property InSight and Aerial Sketch products infringe seven patents owned by Eagle
View and Pictometry namely, Patent Nos. 436, 840, 152, 880, 770, 732 and 454. On November 30, 2015,
plaintiffs filed a First Amended Complaint adding Patent Nos. 376 and 737 to the Patents in Suit. The First
Amended Complaint seeks an entry of judgment by the Court that defendants have and continue to directly
infringe and/or indirectly infringe, by way of inducement the Patents-in-Suit, permanent injunctive relief,
damages, costs and attorney’s fees. On May 17, 2017, the District Court so ordered a Joint Stipulated Order of
Partial Dismissal with Prejudice dismissing all claims or assertions pertaining to Pictometry Patents Nos. 880 and
732 and certain enumerated claims or assertions pertaining to Eagle View Patents Nos. 436, 840, 152, 770, 454,
376 and 737 (collectively the “Patents in Suit”).

At this time, it is not reasonably possible to determine the ultimate resolution of, or estimate the liability
related to this matter.

Insurance Services Office, Inc. Litigation

On August 1, 2014, the Company was served with an Amended Complaint filed in the United States
District Court for the District of Colorado titled Snyder, et. al. v. ACORD Corp., et al. The action is brought by
nineteen individual plaintiffs, on their own behalf and on behalf of a putative class, against more than 120
defendants, including the Company and ISO. Except for the Company, ISO and the defendant Acord
Corporation, which provides standard forms to assist in insurance transactions, most of the other defendants are
property and casualty insurance companies that plaintiffs claim conspired to underpay property damage claims.
Plaintiffs claim that the Company and ISO, along with all the other defendants, violated state and federal antitrust
and racketeering laws as well as state common law. On September 8, 2014, the Court entered an Order striking
the Amended Complaint and granting leave to the plaintiffs to file a new complaint. On October 13, 2014,
plaintiffs filed their Second Amended Complaint, which was re-filed by plaintiffs to correct errors as the Third
Amended Complaint. The Third Amended Complaint similarly alleges that the defendants conspired to underpay
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property damage claims, but does not specifically allege what role the Company or ISO played in the alleged
conspiracy. It claims that the Company and ISO, along with all the other defendants, violated state and federal
antitrust and racketeering laws as well as state common law, and seeks all available relief including injunctive,
statutory, actual and punitive damages as well as attorneys’ fees. On January 15, 2016, the Court granted
defendants’ motions to dismiss all claims asserted in the Third Amended Complaint. Plaintiffs filed a motion for
reconsideration of this dismissal on February 16, 2016. The Court granted defendants’ motion to strike the
motion for reconsideration on March 2, 2016 and gave plaintiffs leave to file another motion for reconsideration
in accordance with the rules which plaintiffs filed on March 11, 2016 and, which was denied by the Court on
April 25, 2016. On April 1, 2016, plaintiffs also filed a Notice of Appeal of the Court’s January 15, 2016 Order,
which dismissed all claims in the Third Amended Complaint. Plaintiffs also filed an appeal of the Court’s denial
of the motion for reconsideration, which the Court of Appeals for the 10th Circuit consolidated with the appeal of
the Court’s January 15, 2016 dismissal. Appellants filed their brief in support of the consolidated appeal on
July 21, 2016 and Appellees filed their brief in response on September 21, 2016. On April 6, 2017, the Court of
Appeals for the 10th Circuit affirmed the Court’s dismissal of the Third Amended Complaint. Appellants filed a
motion for en banc reconsideration of the 10th Circuit’s affirmance of the dismissal of the Third Amended
Complaint which was denied on May 26, 2017. Appellants filed their petition for a writ of certiorari in the
Supreme Court on August 24, 2017 which was denied on October 30, 2017. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for
Rehearing to the Supreme Court on November 27, 2017 which was denied on January 8, 2018.

**************
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Schedule II

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015

(In millions)

Description

Balance at
Beginning
of Year(1)

Charged to
Costs and
Expenses(2)

Deductions—
Write-offs(3)

Balance at
End of Year

Year ended December 31, 2017
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3.4 $ 2.0 (0.8) $ 4.6

Valuation allowance for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $8.1 $10.0 (0.5) $17.6

Year ended December 31, 2016
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2.6 $ 2.2 (1.4) $ 3.4

Valuation allowance for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $0.9 $ 7.2 $ — $ 8.1

Year Ended December 31, 2015
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3.2 $ 0.8 (1.4) $ 2.6

Valuation allowance for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $0.7 $ 0.2 $ — $ 0.9

(1) Excludes discontinued operations

(2) Primarily additional reserves for bad debts

(3) Primarily accounts receivable balances written off, net of recoveries, and the expiration of loss
carryforwards
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by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 19, 2017.

10.18 Agreement of Purchase and Sale dated April 25, 2016 among Verisk Analytics, Inc., Argus
Information and Advisory Services, LLC, Verisk Health, Inc., MediConnect Global, Inc., VCVH
Holding Corp., VCVH Holdings LLC, VCVH Intermediate Holding Corp. and VCVH Holding II
Corp,. incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated April 28, 2016.

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.*
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Exhibit
Number Description

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Verisk Analytics, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.*

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Verisk Analytics, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.*

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Verisk Analytics, Inc.
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.*

101.INS XBRL Instance Document.*

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema.*

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase.*

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase.*

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase.*

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase.*

* Filed herewith.
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Exhibit 21.1

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

NAME OF SUBSIDIARY JURISDICTION

AIR Worldwide Corporation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Massachusetts
Argus Information and Advisory Services, LLC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . New York
Insurance Services Office, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Delaware
ISO Services, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Delaware
Wood Mackenzie Limited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . United Kingdom
Xactware Solutions, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Delaware



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-216966, 333-194874 and
333-173135 on Form S-3 and Nos. 333-188629, 333-183476, and 333-165912 on Form S-8 of our reports dated
February 20, 2018, relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of Verisk
Analytics, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”), and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey
February 20, 2018



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Scott G. Stephenson, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Verisk Analytics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Scott G. Stephenson

Scott G. Stephenson
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 20, 2018



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Lee M. Shavel, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Verisk Analytics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Lee M. Shavel

Lee M. Shavel
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 20, 2018



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of
Verisk Analytics, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ending December 31, 2017, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Report”), for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code.

Scott G. Stephenson, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Lee M. Shavel, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Scott G. Stephenson

Scott G. Stephenson
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Lee M. Shavel

Lee M. Shavel
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 20, 2018
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Corporate Headquarters
545 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, NJ 07310-1686
201-469-3000
www.verisk.com

Investor Relations
E-mail: ir@verisk.com
201-469-3000
http://investor.verisk.com

Stock Transfer Agent
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
161 North Concord Exchange
St. Paul, MN 55075
651-450-4064

Outside Legal Counsel
Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Deloitte & Touche LLP

Note regarding the use of non-GAAP financial measures
The company has provided certain non-GAAP financial information as supplemental information regarding its operating results. These 
measures are not in accordance with, or an alternative for, U.S. GAAP and may be different from non-GAAP measures reported by other 
companies. The company believes that its presentation of non-GAAP measures, such as adjusted EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA margin, 
adjusted net income, and adjusted earnings per share, provides useful information to management and investors regarding certain finan-
cial and business trends relating to its financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the company’s management uses these 
measures for reviewing the financial results of the company and for budgeting and planning purposes.

© 2018 Verisk Analytics, Inc. Verisk Analytics, the Verisk Analytics logo, FireLine, ISO, ISO ClaimSearch, ISO Risk Analyzer, and ProMetrix are registered trademarks and Verisk,
the Verisk logo, Verisk Maplecroft, ISO Circular Navigator, ISO Electronic Rating Content, ISO Market Landscape, LightSpeed, Mozart Form Composer, Underwriters Advantage,

Worldwide, CATRADER, and Touchstone are registered trademarks of AIR Worldwide Corporation. Argus is a trademark of Argus Information and Advisory Services, LLC. 3E is  
a registered trademark and 3E Protect is a trademark of 3E Company. Aspect EliteLP and Verisk Retail are trademarks of Verisk Crime Analytics, Inc. Wood Mackenzie is a regis
tered trademark of Wood Mackenzie Limited. Xactware and XactAnalysis are registered trademarks and ClaimXperience is a trademark of Xactware Solutions, Inc. All other product
or corporate names are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies.

The following is a reconciliation of net income to adjusted net income from continuing operations:

2017 2016 2015

(in millions)

Net income $ 555.1 $ 591.2 $ 507.6

Amortization of intangibles 101.8 92.5 70.4

Income tax effect on amortization of intangibles (26.5 (24.1 (19.2

Discontinued operations, net of tax — (139.7 (20.1

Nonrecurring ESOP charge — 18.8 —

Income tax effect on nonrecurring ESOP charge — (7.2 —

Nonrecurring items related to the Wood Mackenzie acquisition — — (45.2

Income tax effect on one-time items related to
the Wood Mackenzie acquisition

— — (10.7

Adjusted net income from continuing operations $ 630.4 $ 531.5 $ 482.8

The following is a reconciliation of net income to adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations:

Net income $ 555.1 $ 591.2 $ 507.6

Depreciation and amortization 237.4 211.6 167.0

Interest expense 119.4 120.0 121.4

Provision for income taxes 135.9 202.2 196.6

Discontinued operations, net of tax — (139.7 (20.1

Nonrecurring severance charges — 2.1 —

Gain on sale of equity investments — (1.5 —

Nonrecurring ESOP charge — 18.8 —

Nonrecurring items related to the Wood Mackenzie acquisition — — (58.6

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations $ 1,047.8 $ 1,004.7 $ 913.9

Annual Report cover concept winner: Brian Ostrowski, Verisk Analytics

This annual report is printed on paper certified  
by the Forest Stewardship Council® (FSC®). The FSC 
promotes environmentally sound, socially beneficial,
and economically prosperous forest management.
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